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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG
KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to
which a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should
make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk
that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in
the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the
contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or
any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Perfect Optronics Limited (the “Company”)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors,
having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the
information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading
or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or
this report misleading.
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Chairman’s Statement

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), |
present the annual results of Perfect Optronics Limited
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2021 (the “Year”) to all of its shareholders.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONAL RESULTS

Since the Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19”)
pandemic outbreak, the demand for remote learning and
working from home has continued to be strong, driving
the growth of the display panel market. The variant virus
spreads worldwide and the repeated uncertainties
weakened the momentum of global economic recovery.
Although remote work and learning drove the demand for
display panels, the market price of display panels began
to drop in the second half of 2021 as the peak of related
demand had passed, which affected the decline in the
Group’s overall gross profit margin for the Year as
compared with 2020. On the other hand, the fair value of
the Group’s investment in Mobvoi Inc. (“Mobvoi”) dropped
significantly during the Year, as affected by the new
policies of education sector in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”). Although the Group recorded revenue
of approximately HK$528.4 million for the VYear,
representing an increase of 155% as compared in 2020,
the reduced gross profit margin had diminished its
contribution, together with the significant fair value loss
and increase in distribution and selling expenses incurred
for the Group’s health-related products, leading to the
Group recording a substantial increase in loss during the
Year. Loss attributable to equity holders of the Company
for the Year amounted to approximately HK$43.9 million,
representing an increase in loss of approximately HK$27.0
million as compared with the loss of approximately
HK$16.9 million in 2020.

During the Year, sales of medium-to-large sized display
products, including display panels and modules for
computer notebooks, monitors and televisions, continued
to be the key revenue driver of the Group. Since the
COVID-19 pandemic, the continuous lockdown and
remote work in various countries have driven the
development of the laptop computer, PC monitor and
tablet computer market, increasing the demand for related
display components. With the continuous increase in
vaccination rates in various countries, the peak demand in
many regions has passed, and market demand has begun
to show signs of slowing down. Coupled with the drop in
the market price of display panels, the Group’s gross
profit margin was significantly affected. Nevertheless,
overall sales of the Group’s thin film transistor liquid
crystal display (“TFT-LCD”) panels and modules amounted
to approximately HK$431.8 million during the Year, which
increased more than double as compared with 2020. The
Group continued to expand its electronic signage
business, recorded revenue of approximately HK$15.3
million during the Year, representing an increase of
approximately 30% as compared with 2020. Apart from
that, sales of polarisers for the Year amounted to
approximately HK$44.9 million, representing an increase
of approximately 25% as compared with 2020. Sales of
integrated circuits for the Year amounted to approximately
HK$7.4 million, representing an increase of approximately
HK$6.2 million as compared with 2020.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

Public health awareness heightened significantly under the
COVID-19 pandemic, and there is a strong demand for
disinfection products. The Group responded swiftly to that
and introduced a personal hygiene and disinfectant
product line in Taiwan branded “K-clean” to the Hong
Kong market in 2020. The Group has marketed K-clean to
corporate clients, public sectors and consumers. The
Group also broadened its sales channels from online sales
platforms to various large-scale retail outlets, including
large department stores and drugstores. The Group’s
sales of health-related products amounted to
approximately HK$19.2 million during the Year,
representing an increase of approximately HK$14.7 million
as compared with approximately HK$4.5 million in 2020.

The Group held certain preferred shares of Mobvoi
through its subsidiary since early 2015, which is classified
as a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss of
the Group. Mobvoi is principally engaged in developing
and providing voice search artificial intelligence systems
on mobile, smart wearable, automotive and other devices.
Mobvoi acquired two companies that provide education
and training services to students (including children) in the
PRC in 2020. However, the PRC government began to
reform the PRC education system in 2021 to alleviate
students’ workload from after-school training. Being
participants in the education sector in the PRC, those two
companies were negatively affected. The fair value of the
Group’s investment in Mobvoi dropped and the Group
recognised a fair value loss of approximately HK$21.1
million for the Year. In order to reduce the negative
impacts arising from the aforementioned two education
companies, the Company has been informed by Mobvoi
that it has disposed of part of the shares in one of those
companies subsequent to 31 December 2021.

Perfect Opftronics Limited Annual Report 2021
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Looking forward, under the influence of many uncertain
factors such as the tightening of the global financial
environment, monetary policy and the global supply chain
crisis, the Group remains cautiously optimistic about its
development, in particular its health-related products. The
Group will continue to keep abreast of market dynamics,
remain cautious amid risks and uncertainties, and actively
adopt flexible and innovative operating strategies to seize
market opportunities, in order to create greater value for
the Group and its shareholders.

APPRECIATION

[, on behalf of the Board, would like to present my
sincere gratitude to our shareholders, business partners
and customers for their support and trust over the years.
| also highly appreciate the contribution and dedication of
our management and staff.

Kan Man Wai
Acting Chairman
Perfect Optronics Limited

Hong Kong
22 March 2022
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEBNWN DN

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

Business Review

The Group is principally engaged in the trading,
development, and sales of display and optics products
and other related electronic components, as well as
trading of other products. The Group also processes
some of the products that it sells.

In 2021, the global economy continued its uneven
recovery amid lingering COVID-19-related disruptions. The
persistence of COVID-19 has brought unprecedented
challenges to the global economy, which led to market
uncertainties. The Group recorded revenue growth during
2021. However, the market prices of display panels began
to drop in the second half of 2021, which continuously
affected the Group’s margin and diminished the
contribution from revenue growth. On the other hand, the
fair value of the Group’s investment in Mobvoi dropped
significantly during the Year, as affected by the new
policies of education sector in the PRC. Furthermore,
there was an increase in the Group’s distribution and
selling expenses during the Year as the Group’s health-
related products business grew. These were the principal
factors which led to the increase in loss of the Group
during the Year as compared with 2020.

The Group’s revenue for the Year amounted to
approximately HK$528,350,000 representing an increase
of approximately HK$321,377,000 as compared with
approximately HK$206,973,000 in 2020. Loss attributable
to equity holders of the Company for the Year amounted
to approximately HK$43,857,000 representing an increase
in loss of approximately HK$26,974,000 as compared with
approximately HK$16,883,000 for the year ended 31
December 2020.

Perfect Opftronics Limited Annual Report 2021
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The sales of medium-to-large sized display products,
including display panels and modules for computer
notebooks, monitors and televisions, continued to be the
key revenue driver of the Group during the Year. Due to
the COVID-19 pandemic, the trend of distance learning
and work-from-home mode continued to drive the market
demand for laptops, PC monitors and tablets, and thus
the demand for related display components. However,
such demand began to cool down due to the gradual
relaxation of COVID-19 restrictive measures in various
areas. Moreover, some of the major TV manufacturers
tuned down their sale targets, which resulted in the
oversupply of display panels. The rising inventories of
panels created pressure on and caused the prices to
drop. The drop in market price of panels in the second
half of the Year had directly impacted the Group’s gross
profit margin and affected the Group’s financial
performance during the Year. Nevertheless, the Group’s
sales of TFT-LCD panels and modules amounted to
approximately HK$431,770,000 during the Year,
representing an increase of approximately
HK$293,304,000 as compared with approximately
HK$138,466,000 in 2020. Sales of integrated circuits
amounted to approximately HK$7,428,000 during the
Year, representing an increase of approximately
HK$6,232,000 as compared with approximately
HK$1,196,000 in 2020.

The Group continued to make a strategic layout on
polariser business actively, which brought a significant
increase in the Group’s sales of polarisers in 2021. The
Group’s sales of polarisers during the Year amounted to
approximately HK$44,865,000, representing an increase of
approximately 25% as compared with approximately
HK$35,794,000 in 2020.

For electronic signage products, retail outlets and
shopping malls have progressively adopted new
technologies to enhance shoppers’ experience to keep
pace with digital transformation, which increases the
demand for digital information signages products. With the
Group actively seizing the market opportunity, expanding
its customer base, and developing the Taiwan and
overseas market during the Year, the Group’s sales of
electronic signage products, which include digital
information signages, electronic shelf displays and
electronic white boards, etc., amounted to approximately
HK$15,266,000, representing an increase of approximately
30% as compared with approximately HK$11,774,000 in
2020. The Group will continue to develop its electronic
signage business, explore the application of electronic
signage in different areas, to capture the rising electronic
signage market.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEEFN®RDMN

Similar to 2020, the Group’s sales of optics products
mainly include optics products components, however,
such revenue dropped during the Year. The Group’s sales
of optics products during the Year amounted to
approximately HK$3,171,000, representing a decrease of
approximately 50% as compared with approximately
HK$6,353,000 in 2020.

Despite the Group having faced different challenges and
market uncertainties, the Group still took advantage of its
vast product diversity and flexible business strategy to
capture more market opportunities. Since the outbreak of
COVID-19 in early 2020, the global demand for personal
disinfectant products has increased rapidly. The Group
actively seized the opportunity to introduce the Taiwanese
brand “K-clean” personal hygiene and disinfection product
line to the Hong Kong market in 2020. The Group has
implemented a variety of marketing initiatives through
online and offline mutual drainage, including TV
advertisements, electronic media promotions, retail kiosks
in shopping malls, and at the same time broadened its
sales channels to various online sales platforms, large-
scale chained retail outlets, department stores and
drugstores, in order to increase market penetration of
K-clean. The effectiveness of K-clean has also gained
recognition in the market during the Year. Meanwhile, due
to the COVID-19 pandemic situation remaining volatile, the
demand for personal hygiene and disinfectant products
continued to grow in the market, which propelled K-clean
products demand even further. Sales of the Group’s
health-related products during the Year amounted to
approximately HK$19,162,000, representing an increase of
approximately HK$14,655,000 as compared with
approximately HK$4,507,000 for 2020. As the pandemic
has changed the people’s way of life, health-related
products have taken on a greater importance. The
awareness about home and personal hygiene and the
need for health-related products is expected to continue
to increase.

Perfect Opftronics Limited Annual Report 2021
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The Group holds certain preferred shares of Mobvoi,
which is principally engaged in the business of developing
and providing voice search Al systems on mobile, smart
wearable, automotive and other devices. Such investment
is classified as financial asset at fair value through profit
or loss. During the Year, Mobvoi continues to launch new
and upgraded products to keep up with market demand.
Besides that, Mobvoi also actively seizes the opportunity
to expand high-growth business. Mobvoi acquired two
companies which provide education and training services
to students (including children) in the PRC in 2020 by the
issues of new ordinary shares of Mobvoi. However, the
PRC education system has been reforming, and various
new policies were introduced during the Year. “Double
reduction” policy, which seeks to ease students’
homework and after-school tutoring burdens, was issued.
Being participants in the education sector in the PRC,
those two companies were also negatively affected by
such policies. Fair value of the Group’s investment in
Mobvoi dropped significantly and amounted to
approximately HK$38,461,000 as at 31 December 2021
as compared to approximately HK$59,547,000 as at 31
December 2020. Fair value loss of approximately
HK$21,086,000 was recognised during the Year, as
compared to a fair value gain of approximately
HK$2,009,000 recognised in 2020. To reduce the negative
impact of the aforementioned two education companies,
the Company has been informed by Mobvoi that it has
disposed of part of the shares in one of the aforesaid two
companies which provide education and training services
subsequent to 31 December 2021. Furthermore, Mobvoi
will continue developing new products and exploring more
opportunities and widening its revenue base to enhance
its value.

The Group’s another investment was classified as financial
asset at fair value through other comprehensive income,
representing the Group’s investment in a Taiwan private
company that engages in the separator’s business (a key
component in lithium batteries). Such company allotted
additional shares to raise capital during the Year and the
Group’s shareholding was diluted from approximately
2.22% as at 31 December 2020 to 2% as at 31
December 2021. The fair value of such investment
decreased to approximately HK$1,652,000 as at 31
December 2021 (31 December 2020: HK$1,876,000).
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Prospects

Looking ahead, the global economic recovery remains
fragile and subject to many uncertainties; COVID-19
pandemic continuing to remain volatile may further impose
a negative impact on the economy. Fierce competition in
the display panel market is still expected. The Group will
continue to seize the market opportunity and explore
more business with a high investment value in the market
while firmly developing the main business. K-clean
brought strong growth momentum to the Group during
the Year with the Group’s flexible and innovative
marketing strategy. Due to recurring variant COVID-19
outbreaks in Hong Kong, the demand for personal
hygiene and disinfectants products is expected to
intensify. The Group expects the performance of its
health-related products will have further enhancement in
the coming year. The Group will continue to deploy the
market for health-related products (inter alia, personal
hygiene and disinfectants products, rapid antigen test kits
for COVID-19, etc.). Meanwhile, the Group will continue to
widen its product diversity to minimise the adverse impact
arising from any individual product, and explore
opportunities with new suppliers and customers from
various areas or industries to create greater value for the
Group and its shareholders.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Global economic condition

A slowdown in the global economy, including the
economic climate in the PRC, which has been one of the
major markets for display products, would affect the
results of the Group. A decrease in market demand may
put significant downward pressure on the average selling
prices. Reduced corporate and commercial activities also
have a negative impact on the demand for and prices of
the Group’s products. If the economy continues to grow
at a slow rate, or experiences a prolonged recession, the
Group’s business and results of operations will continue to
be adversely affected.

Inventory risk

The Group places orders with its suppliers based on the
Group’s forecast of future procurement, customers’
intentions and indicated orders, customers’ recent
purchase orders and the Group’s inventory levels. Any
unanticipated drop in sales could cause the Group’s
inventories to accumulate. As technology evolves quickly,
the Group’s inventories may become obsolete and may
adversely affect the Group’s financial position and results
of operations.
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Prices fluctuation risk

Product trends, industry trends and other factors beyond
the Group’s control may cause fluctuations in selling
prices and raw material prices, which could have a drastic
and adverse effect on the Group’s gross profit and net
profit.

Financial risks

The Group’s activities are exposed to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, cash
flow and fair value interest rate risk, price risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. Details of such risks are set out in Note
3 to the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The following discussion should be read in conjunction
with the Group’s consolidated financial statements and its
notes, which are included in this report.

Revenue

Total revenue of the Group for the Year amounted to
approximately HK$528,350,000, which increased by
approximately HK$321,377,000 as compared to
approximately HK$206,973,000 in 2020. Increase in total
revenue was attributable to the increase in revenue from
the Group’s sales of TFT-LCD panels and modules,
polarisers, integrated circuits and electronic signage
products, as well as the Group’s health-related products.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales of the Group mainly consisted of purchase
costs, staff costs, provision for obsolete inventories and
other direct costs. Due to the increase in revenue,
purchase costs and other direct costs increased during
the Year as compared with 2020. However, the write
back of provision for obsolete inventories during the Year
decreased as compared with 2020. Total cost of sales for
the Year amounted to approximately HK$510,795,000,
which increased by approximately HK$320,926,000 as
compared to approximately HK$189,869,000 in 2020.
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Gross profit

Despite the significant increase in the Group’s revenue
during the Year, the Group’s gross profit amounted to
approximately HK$17,555,000, which was comparable to
that of approximately HK$17,104,000 in 2020. It was
mainly attributable to the decrease in gross profit margins
of the products sold, in particular the display panels and
modules, during the Year.

Other (losses)/gains, net

Net other losses of approximately HK$19,486,000 (2020:
net gains of HK$3,256,000) was recorded during the
Year. The balance mainly included the fair value loss in
the Group’s investment in Mobvoi of approximately
HK$21,086,000 (2020: fair value gain of HK$2,009,000)
during the Year.

Distribution and selling expenses

The Group’s distribution and selling expenses for the Year
amounted to approximately HK$15,843,000, representing
an approximately 57% increase as compared to
approximately HK$10,119,000 in 2020. The increase was
mainly attributable to the increase in sales commissions,
staff costs, transportation and promotion expenses
incurred for the Group’s health-related products.

General and administrative expenses

The Group’s general and administrative expenses for the
Year amounted to approximately HK$25,472,000, which
decreased by approximately 5% as compared with
approximately HK$26,747,000 in 2020. The decrease was
mainly attributable to the decrease in depreciation
expense and professional fees.

Research and development expenses

The Group’s research and development expenses
amounted to approximately HK$1,301,000 for the Year,
which was comparable to approximately HK$1,394,000 in
2020.

Finance costs

The Group’s finance costs for the Year represented
interest expenses of approximately HK$469,000 (2020:
HK$678,000) on lease liabilities and bank loan interest of
approximately HK$27,000 (2020: Nil). New bank loan was
borrowed during the Year.
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Income tax

No Hong Kong profits tax was provided by the Group for
the Year (2020: Nil). Income tax during the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020 mainly represented deferred
income tax (charged)/credited to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

Loss attributable to equity holders of the Company

Loss attributable to equity holders of the Company for the
Year amounted to approximately HK$43,857,000,
representing an increase in loss of approximately
HK$26,974,000 as compared with the loss of
approximately HK$16,883,000 in 2020, which was mainly
attributable to the fair value loss on the Group’s
investment in Mobvoi recognised and the increase in
distribution and selling expenses during the Year.

FINANCIAL KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

The financial key performance indicators are analysed as
follows:

Note
BT =
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE BBRR
Revenue WA
Gross profit EH
Loss before interest, income tax, BRAE - FTEHE - 47
depreciation and amortisation EREHTER
(EBITDA) (TEBITDA ) ()
Loss for the year FEEE
Loss attributable to equity holders of 72 A #E %5555 A JE
the Company hEE
Gross profit margin ERME
Return on total assets (%) 48 FE B 3R 3 (%) (i)

P B 2 2% [a] 3R 2R (%) (il
FREREEB B

Return on shareholders’ equity (%)

Basic loss per share (HK cents)
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AEERAFEYEARBENGR (ZF =
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ABRAEERERNBELEMREHR -

ARARBEREARGLER
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438570008 T R _ T T EHEE LD
16,883,000/% 7T 14 /il /&5 18 #926,974,000% 7T+ &
AN F E R N £ B 1% B Mobvoify A 7t &
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EUBREER
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Year ended 31 December
BZ+-A=1+—-HLEE

Percentage change

2021 2020 Increase/ (decrease)

Eﬁmﬁ@

—E-—& T #m/ (D)
HK$’000 HK$'000
THT TR

528,350 206,973 155%

17,555 17,104 3%

(39,129 (11,356) 245%

(45,086) (18,530) 143%

(43,857) (16,883) 160%

Decreased by 5.0%

3.3% 8.3% L 5.0%

Decreased by 14.6%

-23.0% -8.4% B A14.6%

Decrease by 29.7%

-40.9% -11.2% B 229.7%
HK(2.96) cents HK(1.14) cents

(2.96)38 (1.14)7%AL 160%
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As at 31 December

BW+=A=t+—H
Percentage
change
Increase/
Note 2021 2020 (decrease)
BOLLEE
Pt &% —B--F S S VARG
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET
KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS TERBER
Cash and cash equivalents Re kB EEY 88,512 76,403 16%
Net current assets REBEERS 61,524 80,689 24)%
Total assets BERE 195,750 219,932 (11)%
Bank borrowings RITEE 5,888 = N/A 738
Total liabilities BEAE 89,891 68,816 31%
Equity attributable to equity holders AN AIEZEEH AER
of the Company B 107,310 151,361 29)%
Total equity [ Fat 105,859 151,116 (30)%
Decreased
1.7 times 2.3 times by 0.6 times
Current ratio (times) MBI R (F) (iv) 1.71% 2.31% A 0.61F
Decreased
1.2 times 1.8 times by 0.6 times
Quick ratio (times) HELL K (1F) (v) 1.2 1.8f% L 00.65
Increased
by 5.6%
Gearing ratio (%) BEREELLE(%) (vi) 5.6% 0% #915.6%
Increased
by 3.0%
Debt-to-asset ratio (%) BEEENE%) (vii) 3.0% 0% #n3.0%
Notes: Haz -

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

As the Group recorded loss before interest, income tax, depreciation
and amortisation during the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020, no EBITDA margin are presented

Return on total assets = Loss for the year/Total assets

Return on shareholders’ equity = Loss attributable to equity holders
of the Company/Equity attributable to equity holders of the
Company

Current ratio = Current assets/Current liabilities

Quick ratio = (Current assets — Inventories)/Current liabilities

Gearing ratio = Total interest-bearing bank borrowings/Total equity

Debt-to-asset ratio = Total interest-bearing bank borrowings/Total
assets
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group’s funds are principally used to finance working
capital, and the growth and expansion of the Group’s
operations and sales network. The Group’s principal
sources of funds are cash generated from operations and
bank borrowings. As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s
cash and cash equivalents, represented by bank deposits,
bank balances and cash, amounted to approximately
HK$88,512,000 (2020: HK$76,403,000).

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank deposits, bank
balances and cash are denominated in the following
currencies:
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SELENHERENERNERREHEES -
AEETBEHNESRELAAEEEANRER
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As at 31 December

R+=—B=+—8H
2021 2020
—B=--—fF —TEF
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FET FET
United States dollars (“USD”) ESSAE D) 68,952 59,560
Renminbi (“‘RMB”) ARE(TARK]D 9,006 8,805
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) B (ET)) 8,135 7,478
New Taiwan dollars (“TWD”) FEE([FHEEE]) 2,419 560
88,512 76,403

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s total bank
borrowings comprised bank loan of approximately
HK$5,888,000 (2020: Nil). The scheduled repayment date
of the Group’s bank borrowings, as set out in the loan
agreement and without considering the effect of any
repayment on demand clauses were as follows:

W—ZT-_—%+=-fA=+—8" $E@§Eﬁ1
B EREEITE 45,888,000 T (=
T E) o 1B B 2K 1 2 B R B R A A
EREEERROATE AEBETEEZE
BEBBHHFHNT :

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET

On demand or within a period not

BERINTHEB

exceeding 1 year 16F BRfAl 683 —
Within a period of more than 1 year EEZMEHBETNER
but not exceeding 2 years 2% 702 -
Within a period of more than 2 years £ % 24 BB T 4818
but not exceeding 5 years 5% 2,226 -
Within a period of more than 5 years B i&5%4 Hi R 2,277 —
5,888 =
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As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s bank loan was
floating interest rate loan denominated in HKD.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s unutilised banking
facilities restricted for trade finance purposes amounted to
approximately HK$15.6 million.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The capital of the Company only comprises ordinary
shares. There has been no change in the capital structure
of the Group during the Year.

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management
approach towards its treasury policies and thus
maintained a healthy liquidity position throughout the
Year.

The Group strives to reduce exposure to credit risk by
monitoring on an ongoing basis with reference to the
financial position of the debtors, past experience and
other factors. The Group performs regular credit
evaluations of its major customers. To manage liquidity
risk, the management closely monitors the Group’s
liquidity position and maintains sufficient cash and an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities to settle
the payables of the Group.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The Group’s management policies, working environment,
career prospects and employees’ benefits have
contributed to building good employee relations and
employee retention of the Group. The Group offers
competitive remuneration packages commensurate with
industry practice and provides various fringe benefits to
employees including medical benefits, social insurance,
mandatory provident funds, bonuses and a share option
scheme. The management regularly reviews its
employees’ remuneration packages to ensure they are up
to prevailing market standards.
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As at 31 December 2021, the employee headcount of the
Group was 65 (2020: 66) and the total staff costs,
including directors’” emoluments, amounted to
approximately HK$25,331,000 during the Year (2020:
HK$23,911,000).

The Group has established long term business
relationships with its major suppliers for over ten years.
The Group has entered into long term supply framework
agreements with these suppliers. The Group will endeavor
to maintain its established relationship with these existing
suppliers.

The Group has a well-established business relationship
with its customers and has gained recognition in the TFT-
LCD panel industry in the PRC. Some of its customers
have over ten-year business relationships with the Group.
To deal with the downturn in the Group’s business in
recent years, the Group endeavours to secure the
business with existing customers and at the same time
devotes to develop new reliable customers in new
markets.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities (2020: Nil).

CHARGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had charged its
trade receivables of approximately HK$5,377,000 (2020:
Nil) in favour of a bank to secure the banking facilities
granted to the Group.

FOREIGN CURRENCY

The Group’s business transactions, assets and liabilities
are principally denominated in USD, HK$, RMB and TWD.
HK$ are reasonably stable against the USD under the
Linked Exchange Rate System. In addition, the
management considers that the impact on exchange
differences for RMB and TWD is not significant as at
31 December 2021. The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy. However, the Board will
continuously monitor the related foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any
significant capital commitments (2020: Nil).

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend nor declare any dividend
for the Year (2020: Nil).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

In January 2015, the Group subscribed for 25,213,220
Series A-2 Preferred Shares of Mobvoi at a consideration
of USD3,000,000. Mobvoi is principally engaged in the
business of developing and providing voice search Al
systems on mobile, smart wearable, automotive and other
devices. The Company considers that the investment in
Mobvoi, which is intended to be held by the Group for
long-term investment purpose, will provide an opportunity
to the Group to share in and gain from the development
potentials of Mobvoi and its products and technology. The
Group does not have any management or operational role
in Mobvoi. There have been no addition to or disposal of
such investment by the Group since it made the
investment in January 2015. Mobvoi has undertaken
several rounds of fundraising in recent years. As at
31 December 2021, the Group’s shareholding proportion
in Mobvoi was approximately 1.24% (on a fully diluted and
as converted basis).

The Group’s investment in Mobvoi is classified as financial
asset at fair value through profit or loss. As at
31 December 2021, the fair value of the Group’s
investment in Mobvoi was approximately HK$38,461,000,
representing approximately 19.6% of the Group’s total
assets. No dividend has been received by the Group from
Mobvoi since making its investment. A fair value loss of
approximately HK$21,086,000 was recognised on such
investment during the Year.

Save for the abovementioned, the Group did not hold any

significant investment in equity interest in any other
company as at 31 December 2021.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS AND CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group did not have plans for material investments
and capital assets as at 31 December 2021.
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND
AFFILIATED COMPANIES

The Group did not have any material acquisitions and
disposals of subsidiaries and affiliated companies during
the Year.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS INVOLVING THE
COMPANY AND THE DIRECTORS

Reference is made to the announcements of the
Company dated 26 September 2019, 4 October 2019,
10 January 2020, 9 April 2020, 10 July 2020 and
25 September 2020. On 25 September 2019, the
Company received a sealed copy of a petition (the
“Petition”) issued by the High Court of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region (the “High Court”) which
was taken out by the Securities and Futures Commission
(the “SFC”) pursuant to section 214 of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance against certain Directors, namely
Mr. Cheng Wai Tak, Mr. Liu Ka Wing, Mr. Tse Ka Wing,
Mr. Wong Yik Chung John, Mr. Wong Chi Chiu and Mr. Li
Shui Yan (collectively “the Director Respondents”), and the
Company. The SFC alleged in the Petition that the
Director Respondents had breached their duties as
directors of the Company in relation to the disposal of a
subsidiary of the Company holding an approximately
50.14% shareholding in 1 3 % & & 7 & R & A
(Shinyoptics Corporation®) (details of such disposal were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
22 December 2016). As the Company is only a nominal
respondent to the Petition and pursuant to the order of
the High Court, the Company is not required to actively
participate in the legal proceedings in respect of the
Petition.

As detailed in the Company’s announcement dated
25 September 2020, with effect from 25 September
2020, pending the outcome of the legal proceedings of
the Petition, the Director Respondents have been
suspended from their duties as Directors. Mr. Cheng has
also been suspended from his duties as the Chairman of
the Board and the Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”) of the
Company. Mr. Kan Man Wai, an independent
non-executive Director, has been appointed as the acting
Chairman in place of Mr. Cheng. The function of the CEO
is shared among the management staff of the Company
and other members of the Board.

The Company understands the Director Respondents
disagree with the allegations of the SFC in the Petition,
and intend to vigorously contest the Petition. As at the
date of this report, the legal proceedings of the Petition
are ongoing.

*

for identification purpose only
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Corporate Governance Report

TREERKRS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to achieving high standards of
corporate governance with a view to safeguarding the
interests of its shareholders. To accomplish this, the
Company has adopted the principles and the code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) contained in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

Throughout the Year, the Company had complied with all
the code provisions of the CG Code for the time being in
force.

From 1 January 2022, certain amendments to the
Corporate Governance Code (the “New CG Code”) came
into effect and the requirements under the New CG Code
will apply to all listed issuers for financial year
commencing on or after 1 January 2022. The Board will
continue to review and enhance the corporate
governance practice of the Company to ensure
compliance with the New CG Code and align with the
latest developments.

COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CONDUCT
FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by directors on terms no less
exacting than the required standard of dealings set out in
Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having
made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors have
complied with the required standard of dealings and the
code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
Directors adopted by the Company during the Year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board

Up to the date of this annual report, the Board comprises
four executive Directors and five independent non-
executive Directors. The composition of the Board during
the Year and up to the date of this annual report was as
follows.

Executive Directors:

Mr. Cheng Wai Tak (suspended)
Mr. Liu Ka Wing (suspended)
Mr. Tse Ka Wing (suspended)
Mr. Chang Huan Chia
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Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Wong Yik Chung John (suspended)
Mr. Wong Chi Chiu (suspended)

Mr. Kan Man Wai (Acting Chairman)
Mr. Cho Chi Kong

Ms. Hsu Wai Man Helen

Biographical details of all Directors and senior
management of the Company are set out on pages 73 to
77 of this annual report. To the best knowledge of the
Company, there is no financial, business, family or other
material or relevant relationships among members of the
Board.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
25 September 2020, pending the outcome of the legal
proceedings of the Petition against certain Directors,
including Mr. Cheng Wai Tak, Mr. Liu Ka Wing, Mr. Tse
Ka Wing, Mr. Wong Yik Chung John and Mr. Wong Chi
Chiu have been suspended from their duties as Directors
with effect from 25 September 2020. Mr. Kan Man Wai
has been appointed as the acting Chairman in place of
Mr. Cheng Wai Tak with effect from 25 September 2020.
For further details, please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 25 September 2020.

FUNCTIONS OF THE BOARD AND
MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for establishing the strategic
direction of the Company and its subsidiaries; setting
objectives and business development plans; monitoring
the performance of the senior management; and assuming
responsibility for corporate governance. The management
is responsible for implementing the strategies and plans
established by the Board and reporting on the Group’s
operations to the Board on a regular basis to ensure
effective performance of the Board’s responsibilities.

The management provided all members of the Board with
monthly updates in accordance with the code provision
C.1.2 of the CG Code.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITIES

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance
coverage on Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of
any legal actions taken against Directors and senior
management arising out of corporate activities. The
insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.
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BOARD MEETINGS

The Directors can attend meetings in person or through
other means of electronic communication in accordance
with the Company’s articles of association. All minutes of
the Board meetings were recorded in sufficient detail of
the matters considered by the Board and the decisions
made.

Four regular board meetings were held during the Year.
The attendance of individual Directors at these board
meetings were as follows:

Name

" &

Executive Directors: HITEF -
Mr. Cheng Wai Tak EEEEE
Mr. Liu Ka Wing BREAKE
Mr. Tse Ka Wing EIE e
Mr. Chang Huan Chia b

Independent non-executive Directors: & IEHTEF :

Mr. Wong Yik Chung John ERAKE

Mr. Wong Chi Chiu =HEMBELE

Mr. Kan Man Wai 5 X8 e 4

Mr. Cho Chi Kong BEREE

Ms. Hsu Wai Man Helen RmEHLL

Note:

A: attending training courses, seminars, workshops or in-house

briefings or giving talks
B: reading materials relating to laws and regulations, corporate

governance, and other topics relevant to the Group’s strategy and
business
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all
directors shall participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills to ensure their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant.

The Group, together with its legal advisors, continuously
update the Directors on the latest developments regarding
the GEM Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements, to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices. The
Company has received the Directors’ training records for
the Year, and a summary of training participated by the
Directors during the Year is set out on page 24 of this
annual report.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has
entered into an appointment letter with the Company for
a term of three years.

In compliance with the code provision A.4.2 of the CG
Code, all Directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy
should be subject to election by the shareholders at the
first general meeting after their appointment. By virtue of
article 112 of the articles of association of the Company,
the Board shall have power from time to time and at any
time to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a
casual vacancy or as an additional Director but the
number of Directors so appointed shall not exceed the
maximum number determined from time to time by the
shareholders in general meeting. Any Director appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only
until the first general meeting of the Company after his
appointment and be subject to re-election at such
meeting. Any Director appointed by the Board as an
addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until
the next following annual general meeting of the Company
and shall then be eligible for re-election.
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In compliance with the code provision in A.4.2 of the CG
Code, all Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years. Furthermore, pursuant to
article 108(a) of the articles of association of the
Company, at each annual general meeting, one-third of
the Directors for the time being, or, if their number is not
3 or a multiple of 3, then the number nearest to but not
less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation,
provided that every Director (including those appointed for
a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every 3 years. A retiring Director shall be
eligible for re-election. The Company at the general
meeting at which a Director retires may fill the vacated
office.

By virtue of article 108 of the articles of association of the
Company, Mr. Cheng Wai Tak, Mr. Tse Ka Wing and
Mr. Kan Man Wai will retire by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

In compliance with Rules 5.05(1), 5.05(2) and 5.05A of the
GEM Listing Rules, the Company has appointed five
independent non-executive Directors, representing more
than one-third of the Board and with at least one of
whom having appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise. The
Company has received annual independence confirmation
from each of the existing independent non-executive
Directors pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The Board considers all independent non-executive
Directors to be independent in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in the GEM Listing Rules
for the Year.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established, with written terms of

reference, three Board committees, namely audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee, to oversee particular aspects of the

Company’s affairs. The Board committees are provided
with sufficient resources to discharge their duties. The
written terms of reference for each Board committee are
in line with the GEM Listing Rules and are available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company,
respectively.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee on
20 January 2014 with written terms of reference in
compliance with Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules and
code provision C.3 of the CG Code. As at the date of this
report, the audit committee consists of three independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Ms. Hsu Wai Man Helen,
who has the appropriate accounting and related financial
management expertise and serves as the chairperson of
the audit committee, Mr. Cho Chi Kong and Mr. Kan Man
Wai.

The primary duties of the audit committee are (but without
limitation) to assist the Board in providing an independent
view of the effectiveness of the Company’s financial
reporting process and internal control and to review the
Company’s risk management and internal control systems,
to oversee the audit process and to perform other duties
and responsibilities as assigned by the Board.
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The audit committee held four meetings during the Year. BHZZEE@NAFEANRTNAE:H - HK B
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these audit committee meetings are as follows: N
Number of audit
committee
meetings
Members of the audit committee attended/held
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Ms. Hsu Wai Man Helen (Chairperson) BERZE(EE) 4/4
Mr. Cho Chi Kong BEAEE 4/4
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During the VYear, the audit committee reviewed the
Company’s annual financial statements, annual results
announcement, interim and quarterly results
announcements and reports; discussed and reviewed the
internal control and risk management systems of the
Group; reviewed the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal audit function; met with the independent external
auditors and reviewed report from the independent
external auditors regarding their audit on annual financial
statements.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee on
20 January 2014 with written terms of reference in
compliance with code provision B.1 of the CG Code. As
at the date of this report, the remuneration committee
consists of three independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Kan Man Wai, who serves as the chairman of
the remuneration committee, Mr. Cho Chi Kong and
Ms. Hsu Wai Man Helen.

The primary duties of the remuneration committee include
(but without limitation): (i) making recommendations to the
Board on the policy and structure for all remuneration of
Directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing policies on such remuneration; (i) determining
the terms of the specific remuneration packages of the
Directors and senior management; and (i) reviewing and
approving performance-based remuneration by reference
to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board
from time to time.

During the Year, the remuneration committee held one
meeting for, inter alia, reviewing the policy and structure
for all remuneration of Directors and senior management,
assessing performance of executive Directors, approving
the terms of executive Director’s service contract and
making recommendations to the Board regarding the
remuneration packages of executive Directors and senior
management, and director’'s fee of independent non-
executive Directors. The remuneration committee was
satisfied with the existing arrangement and did not make
recommendation to the Board on any change of such
policy and structure.
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Members of the remuneration committee

FHESERE

Mr. Kan Man Wai (Chairman)
Mr. Cho Chi Kong
Ms. Hsu Wai Man Helen

REMUNERATION POLICY FOR
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Each of the Directors will receive a fee which is subject to
an annual adjustment at a rate to be reviewed by the
remuneration committee and be determined at the
discretion of the Board. The Company’s policy concerning
the remuneration of the Directors is that the amount of
remuneration is determined by reference to the relevant
Director’s experience, responsibilities, workload and time
devoted to the Group. The Group has adopted incentive
bonus schemes and continues to maintain these schemes
in order to align the financial well-being of the Group with
that of the employees, and to retain the Directors and
staff of high caliber.

The executive Directors are also the senior management
of the Company. Details of the remuneration of executive
Directors for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set
out in Note 34(a) to the audited consolidated financial
statements contained in this annual report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee on
20 January 2014 with written terms of reference in
compliance with code provision A.5 of the CG Code. As
at the date of this report, the nomination committee
consists of three independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Cho Chi Kong, who serves as chairman of
the nomination committee, Mr. Kan Man Wai and Ms. Hsu
Wai Man Helen.
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The primary functions of the nomination committee
include making recommendations to the Board to fill
vacancies on the same, assessing the independence of
independent non-executive Directors, making
recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment of
Directors and succession planning for Directors and
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board.

During the Year, the nomination committee held one
meeting for, inter alia, reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board and board diversity policy,
discussing matters regarding the retirement and re-
election of Directors and assessment of the independence
of independent non-executive Directors and making
recommendations to the Board on the terms of executive
Director’s service contract.
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Number of

nomination

committee

meetings

Members of the nomination committee attended/held
HEBITH

REZEES

REZEERE BEAE
Mr. Cho Chi Kong (Chairman) BEREE(EE) 11
Mr. Kan Man Wai i B S & 1/1
Ms. Hsu Wai Man Helen ®mEHZLT 11

POLICY FOR NOMINATION OF
DIRECTORS

The Company’s policy for the nomination of Directors (the
“Nomination Policy”) was adopted by the Company
pursuant to Board resolutions. The nomination committee
will review the Nomination Policy, as appropriate, to
ensure the effectiveness of the Nomination Policy and will
discuss any revisions that may be required, and
recommend any such revisions to the Board for
consideration and approval. The Nomination Policy is set
out as follows:

il Objective
This policy sets out the criteria and procedures to

be adopted when considering candidates to be
appointed or re-elected as Directors.
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Nomination Criteria

The nomination committee shall consider the
following criteria in evaluating and selecting
candidates for directorship:

° Character and integrity;

° Qualifications including professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience
that are relevant to the Company’s business
and corporate strategy;

o Willingness to devote adequate time to
discharge duties as a member of the Board;

° Board Diversity Policy and any measurable
objectives adopted for achieving diversity on
the Board;

° Requirement for the Board to have independent
non-executive directors in accordance with the
GEM Listing Rules and whether the
candidates would be considered independent
with reference to the independence guidelines
set out in the GEM Listing Rules; and

° Such other perspectives as are appropriate to
the Company’s business or as suggested by
the Board.

Nomination Process

3.1. Nomination by the nomination committee

3.1.1 The nomination committee reviews the
structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board periodically and
makes recommendation on any
proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate
strategy;
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3.2.

3.1.2 When it is necessary to fill a causal
vacancy or appoint an additional
director, the nomination committee
identifies or selects candidates
recommended to the committee, with or
without assistance from external
agencies or the Company, pursuant to
the “Nomination Criteria” set out above;

3.1.3 If the process vyields one or more
desirable candidates, the nomination
committee shall rank them by order of
preference based on the needs of the
Company and reference check of each
candidate (where applicable);

3.1.4 The nomination committee makes
recommendation to the Board including
the terms and conditions of the
appointment; and

3.1.5 The Board deliberates and decides on the
appointment based upon the
recommendation of the nomination
committee.

Re-election of Director at Annual General
Meeting

3.2.1In accordance with the Company’s
articles of association, every director
shall be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years and shall
be eligible for re-election at each annual
general meeting;

3.2.2 The nomination committee shall review
the overall contribution and service to the
Company of the retiring director. The
nomination committee shall also review
the expertise and professional
qualifications of the retiring director who
offered himself/herself for re-election at
the annual general meeting, to determine
whether such director continues to meet
the “Nomination Criteria” as set out
above; and
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3.2.3 Based on the review made by nomination
committee, the Board shall make
recommendations to shareholders on
candidates standing for re-election at the
annual general meeting of the Company,
and provide the available biographical
information of the retiring director in
accordance with the GEM Listing Rules
to enable shareholders to make informed
decisions on the re-election of such
candidates at annual general meeting of
the Company.

3.3 Nomination by Shareholders

The shareholders of the Company may
propose a person for election as a director in
accordance with the Memorandum and
Articles of Association of the Company and
applicable law. For more details, please refer
to the section in Company’s website “Investor
Relations — Corporate governance —
Procedures for shareholders to propose a
person for election as director”.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the
“Diversity Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve
diversity on the Board. The Company embraces the
benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality
of its performance. Pursuant to the Diversity Policy, the
Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the
consideration of a number of aspects, including (but not
limited to) gender, regional and industry experience, skills,
knowledge and educational background. All appointments
of the Board members will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity of the
Board.

Current Board members have varied educational
backgrounds and expertises, diverse perspectives and
competencies in areas which are relevant and valuable to
the Group, including accounting, corporate finance,
strategic planning, business development and
management. The Board currently has one female Director
and the Board will take opportunities to increase the
proportion of female members over time as and when
suitable candidates are identified.
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The nomination committee will review the Diversity Policy,
as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness. The Board will
also consider setting measurable objectives to implement
the Diversity Policy and review such objectives from time
to time to ensure its appropriateness and ascertain the
progress made towards achieving those objectives.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Company’s corporate governance function is carried
out by the Board pursuant to a set of written terms of
reference adopted by the Board, which include (a)
developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and making
recommendations to the Board; (b) reviewing and
monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management of the
Company and its subsidiaries; (c) reviewing and
monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (d)
developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees
and Directors and its subsidiaries; (e) reviewing the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosures in the corporate governance report of the
Company required to be prepared pursuant to the GEM
Listing Rules; and (f) considering, reviewing and deciding
any other topics as authorised by the Board.

During the Year, the Board reviewed and discussed the
corporate governance policy of the Group and was
satisfied with the effectiveness of its corporate
governance policy.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ and auditor’s responsibilities for the
consolidated financial statements

All Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare
the Group’s consolidated financial statements for each
financial period to give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows for
that period. The Directors continue to adopt the going
concern approach in preparing the consolidated financial
statements and are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern.
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The responsibilities of the external auditors in financial
reporting are set out in the independent auditor’s report
attached to the Company’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 in this
annual report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the Year, the remuneration paid or payable to
PricewaterhouseCoopers in respect of audit and non-audit
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services provided is set out below: LR
Remuneration
Services rendered paid/payable
P 12 it PR 7% Bt EAME
HK$’000
FTER
Audit services FET AR 850
Non-audit services IEEET IR
— tax compliance services — MEEHRRE 78
Total #Et 928

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL SYSTEMS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to maintain an
effective risk management and internal control systems in
order to safeguard the Group’s assets and investments
and the shareholders’ interest. The Board oversees the
overall risk management of the Group and endeavors to
identify, control impact of the identified risks and facilitate
implementation of coordinated mitigating measures. Such
risk management and internal control systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.
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The Group has established a risk management policy
setting out the process of identification, evaluation and
management of the principal risks affecting the business.
Each division is responsible for identifying, assessing and
managing risks within its divisions, identifying and
assessing the principal risks on a quarterly basis with
mitigation plans to manage those risks. The management
is responsible for overseeing the risk management and
internal control activities of the Group, attending quarterly
meetings with each divisions to ensure principal risks are
properly managed and new or changing risks are
identified and documented. Lastly, the Board is
responsible for reviewing and approving the effectiveness
and adequacy of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems.

The risk management framework, coupled with the
Group’s internal controls, ensures that the risks
associated with different divisions are effectively controlled
in line with the Group’s risk appetite.

The risk management report was submitted to the audit
committee and the Board for review.

The Group does not have an internal audit function within
itself. Nevertheless the Company engaged an external
consultant, CT Partners Consultants Limited (“CT
Partners”), to carry out internal audit function and had
during the Year conducted review of the effectiveness of
the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems. The review covered, inter alia, the internal
control systems over the sales, receivable and receipt
cycle and the financial reporting and disclosure of the
Group, and the external consultant made
recommendations for improving the Group’s internal
control systems. The internal control review report was
submitted to the audit committee and the Board for
review. The audit committee has requested the
management to follow up with the recommendations of
the external consultant to remedy control issues identified
and to further improve the Group’s internal control
system.
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The Company has adopted the following internal control
measures:

(@) The officers of the Group will cross check the
counterparty with the list of connected persons
updated on a monthly basis to identify potential
connected transaction.

(b) A material transactions authorisation policy and
procedures (the “Policy”), which include (i)
implementing additional authorisation procedures by
setting different thresholds on the amount of all
transactions with specific authorisation requirements;
(i) preparing monthly reports with details of the
transactions above certain thresholds for the Board
and the audit committee’s review to identify if there
is any irregularity or doubtful transaction; and (iii)
providing ad hoc training to the Group employees to
ensure they are familiar with the Policy. During the
Year, the Company has engaged CT Partners, an
independent internal control consultant, to evaluate
the effectiveness and review the implementation and
enforcement of the Policy.

The Board has the overall responsibility to maintain the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programs and budget of accounting
and financial reporting functions. After having conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems, the Board has reached the
conclusion that the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems were in place, effective and adequate.
The Board will review and assess the risk management
and internal control systems at least once a year.

The Company has established a whistle-blowing policy
and system for employees of the Group to raise concerns
about possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal
control and other matters. No significant areas of concern
that may affect the financial, operational, compliance,
controls and risk management of the Group have been
identified.
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With respect to the monitoring and disclosure of inside
information, the Company has adopted a policy on
disclosure of inside information, with an aim to ensure
that the insiders abide by the confidentiality requirement
and fulfill the disclosure obligation of inside information.
The policy describes clearly the decision trees to identify
inside information and take necessary actions. Employees
and other relevant parties are required to keep inside
information in strict confidence. The Group is committed
to ensure that information contained in announcements
are not false or misleading, or false or misleading through
omission of a material fact in view of presenting
information in a clear and balanced way, which requires
equal disclosure of both positive and negative facts.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The Company aims to provide its shareholders and
investors with high standards of disclosure and financial
transparency. The Board is committed to providing clear
and detailed information of the Group to its shareholders
in a timely manner and on a regular basis, through the
publication of quarterly, interim and annual reports and/or
dispatching circulars, notices, and other announcements.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the Board and the Company’s
shareholders. The Chairman of the Board and other
members of the respective committees are available to
answer questions from the shareholders at the general
meeting. The Company recognises the importance of
maintaining on-going communications with the
shareholders and encourages them to attend general
meetings to stay informed of the Group’s businesses and
convey any concerns they may have to the Directors and
senior management.

The Company maintains a website at
http://www.perfect-optronics.com where extensive
information and updates on the Company’s financial
information, corporate governance practices and other
useful information are posted and available for access by
the public investors.
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2021 General meeting

At the annual general meeting held on 6 May 2021,
separate resolutions were proposed by the chairman in
respect of each separate issue, including the re-election
of directors and voted by way of poll. The Company
announced the results of the poll in the manner
prescribed under the GEM Listing Rules. The then
chairman of each of the Board, audit committee,
remuneration committee and nomination committee
attended the annual general meeting held in 2021 to
ensure effective communication with shareholders of the
Company. All Directors attended the annual general
meeting held in 2021.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting and to put forward
proposal at general meetings

Pursuant to Article 64 of the articles of association of the
Company, the Board may, whenever it thinks fit, convene
an extraordinary general meeting. Extraordinary general
meetings shall also be convened on the requisition of one
or more shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of
the requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company with voting rights in the general
meetings attached thereto. Such requisition shall be made
in writing to the Board or the company secretary of the
Company (the “Company Secretary”) for the purpose of
requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within 2
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21
days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to
the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Article 113 of the articles of association of the Company
provides that no person other than a retiring Director,
shall, unless recommended by the Board for election, be
eligible for election to the office of Director at any general
meeting, unless notice in writing of the intention to
propose that person for election as a Director and notice
in writing by that person of his willingness to be elected
shall have been lodged at the head office or at the
registered office. The period for lodgment of the notices
required under this Article will commence no earlier than
the day after the despatch of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election and end no later
than 7 days prior to the date of such general meeting
and the minimum length of the period during which such
notices to the Company may be given will be at least 7
days. The written notice must state that person’s
biographical details as required by Rule 17.50(2) of the
GEM Listing Rules. The procedures for shareholders of
the Company to propose a person for election as director
is posted on the Company’s website.

SHAREHOLDERS’ ENQUIRIES TO THE
BOARD

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board by addressing them to the Company Secretary
by mail to the principal office of the Company in Hong
Kong. The Company Secretary forwards communications
relating to matters within the Board’s purview to the
Board and communications relating to ordinary business
matters, such as suggestions, inquiries and complaints, to
the executive Directors.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at
the general meetings of the Company.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Mr. Tse Ka Wing (“Mr. Tse”), is
an employee of the Company. He was appointed as an
executive Director with effect from 26 March 2015. He
reports to the acting Chairman and is responsible for
advising the Board on corporate governance matters. The
biographical details of Mr. Tse are set out under the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management”.
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During the Year, Mr. Tse has undertaken not less than 15
hours of relevant professional training in accordance with
Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, there was no change to the Company’s
constitutional documents.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Under the Companies Law of Cayman Islands and the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the
Company, dividends may be paid out of the profits of the
Company, or subject to solvency of the Company, out of
sums standing to the credit of the share premium account
of the Company. However, no dividend shall exceed the
amount recommended by Directors.

Declaration and recommendation of payment of dividends
of the Company is subject to the approval of the
Directors, depending on results of operations, working
capital, financial position, future prospects, and capital
requirements, as well as any other factors which the
Directors may consider relevant from time to time. Any
future declaration, recommendation and payment of
dividends of the Company may or may not reflect the
historical declarations and payments of dividends and will
be at the absolute discretion of the Directors. The
Company does not have any predetermined dividend
payout ratio.

Corporate Governance Report
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE - #HERERB®MSE

ABOUT THE REPORT

This is the sixth Environmental, Social and Governance
(“ESG”) report published by the Company. In view of the
increasing attention our stakeholders are paying to
sustainability and related issues, the purpose of this
report is to disclose the Group’s performance and
management approach in respect of sustainability. This
report adequately covers ESG topics that have generated
significant impacts on the economy, society and the
environment.

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company
acknowledges its responsibility to ensure the integrity of
this ESG report and confirms that it has reviewed and
approved the report.

Reporting Guide

This ESG report is prepared in compliance with the ESG
Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 20 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
(the “GEM Listing Rules”). Reporting principles of
Materiality, Quantitative, Balance and Consistency
advocated by the ESG Guide (as below) were adhered in
preparation of this report:

Materiality:

B AN ], &

ABERARABEMUFEANERE HERE
BRE -HeRERDBE -ENFMHER
BHEIAHEERIEAEE AREHRKE
AEBERAKERRNORANMNEETEH - K
BERDREHLE HENRREXNBERY
EHRE HERERAE -

ARRESFE([ESE) AR HEBERARE
HEekErREEEENET IERRAECE
B RRBARSE

& 455l

ARE HEREAREDNETEEMARS
Fr B R 2~ A (B R AT)) MIGEMRE 75 £ R Al
(TGEM_E T4 Bl 1) B $k20PF # < TR 35 - & K2
ERHREEIMAER REAREEEETR
B oHeLEARSEIIRENERE Bt
FEE—BERA RTXHAH

Stakeholder engagement is undertaken annually to identify the material sustainability

topics which are addressed in this report.

ERME:

BFEETENEBRBLTIURMNERFERRAZE  UNAREDE -

Quantitative:

Data in this report are checked and analysed to account for year-on-year changes
and are presented in a way that allows for comparison with previous performance.
Please refer to the Performance Data Summary of this report for standards used for
calculation of environmental performance indicators.

RBENNBBEERE LS USHBRFESY  WUARTEBERBIEAESR
HBROAREY - FAGERERREEMANZRE F2HARENEBERE

We prepare the report in a transparent manner in which both positive and negative

Bt

WE o
Balance:

impacts are disclosed.
T

Consistency:

— B

BAAERNTARUEBS CEAREEZEYTURE -

In order to maintain comparability of information, unless otherwise stated, the data
and statistical methods in this report are presented in a consistent manner, which
allows for meaningful comparison over time.

RRF[FEMAELE  BREBEINAIN  RRENBRBERSATER —BALS
HEARTRIKEREEERLE -
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Reporting Boundary and Period

This report discloses the Group’s ESG management
approach in respect of identified material topics and
quantitative performance for the year from 1 January
2021 to 31 December 2021. The reporting boundary
covers all subsidiaries of the Group, aligning with the
annual report. Additional information pertaining to our
sustainability performance, including comprehensive
financial information and data, can be found in this annual
report.

ESG MANAGEMENT APPROACH

Board Statement

The Board is pleased to present the sixth ESG report. The
Group is principally involved in trading, development and
sale of display and optics products and related electronic
components, as well as trading of other products. The
Group also processes some of the products which it
sells.

The Board assumes ultimate responsibility for overseeing
the Group’s ESG issues and their integration into the
Group’s operations. The Group’s ESG management is led
by the ESG Working Group consisting of senior
management who report quarterly to the Board on ESG
issues. The Board monitors and evaluates ESG-related
decisions made by the ESG Working Group.

To ensure completeness, a list of broad ESG topics
material to the Group are evaluated for materiality. Key
topics were identified to prioritise by extensive interactions
with the stakeholders. The outcome is reviewed by the
Board and incorporated into the Group’s ESG
management strategy.

ESG-related risks are integrated into the Group’s risk
management plan. Potential ESG-related risks that are
relevant to the Group are identified and prioritised based
on the likelihood of occurrence and the potential
consequences. ESG targets are established based on the
Group’s principal business and existing measures.
Potential ESG-related risks and ESG-related targets and
progress are presented to the Board quarterly.

BE HERERRSE
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BE HERERARS

ESG Policy

The Group takes into account environmental and social
considerations into its operations and strategic
decision-making process. This is achieved by following the
ESG Policy during our daily operations. Our ESG policy
covers a holistic view of sustainability issues, including
operations, the environment and people. The policy
guides the Group to create positive impacts for key
stakeholders, including employees, suppliers,

B HEREABAEE

AEBERRE L EE B ALERRBIRE
BT BEDESNAFEEPETRE
HERERARK -RR HERERXERE
AREERIBNIEEY BELE RE
BT BREEAKESIERNHE (BHER
& HER 288 FFRER)EELIER

]]]m/

sub-contractors, customers and the community.

e Conserve resources

REER

e Raise employees’
environmental awareness

REEERRFRER

e Advocate green office
initiatives

REZERDE

e Adopt green procurement
practices

MITHRERE

Protect employee rights
REE B THEF|

Provide training opportunities

REEIKS

Create a safe and healthy
working environment
TEZE2MERENTERE

Support the community
through donations
AR it

ESG Policy
BR -HEREARABE
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Monitor suppliers’
sustainability performance
ERHERNIFERR

Ensure the procurement
process and contractual
arrangement are transparent
and fair
REBBELRSNZHPHS
FHAMRAF
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Stakeholder Engagement

The Group has an extensive network of stakeholders,

R -HERERES

FnESH

AEBEHEARZOFNERE BRRRNEK

including shareholders and

customers,

concerns.

investors,

employees,
suppliers and sub-contractors, government
and community. We communicate with our stakeholders
through various engagement channels to understand their
Below are the stakeholder

&% R

engagement

channels and topics of concern of different stakeholders.

Stakeholders
&

Shareholders and

Concerned Issues

B X =18

e Corporate governance

Engagement Channels

BERE

e Annual general meeting

Investors TEER RFRBFERE
BERMEEE ¢ Risk management ¢ Corporate reporting
[, B & 12 PERSE
e Operations and strategy
1R T R B
Employees e \Welfare and benefits e Reporting channels
=] CEADS T HwERE
¢ Training and e Meetings
development &
Fll RER e Trainings
e Occupational health and %53
safety
BERRELZR
Customers e Product responsibility e Grievance channels
®F EmEE REFRE
e Data privacy
BIEALE
Suppliers/ e Product and service e Regular meetings
Sub-contractors quality FHEH
HES 288 EmEkBRBEE
e Business ethics
BERERE

The Government

B

e Taxation compliance
MG E R

e Regulatory compliance
EEAR

e Business ethics

e Compliance with laws
and regulations
BT IERIER

e Responses to
government policies

BERERE 2 e B R
Community e Community investment e Donations
HE HERE B®

BP - HEEMS
B HMERTRBEDERSHEBRBIAT
AT UTERNENS
NEBINHER -

B~ BT A4

BREM TR

Corresponding Chapters
A6 B E &

Annual Report

F#H

Our People
HMHET

Operating Practices
é«« AA ;ﬁ'

Operating Practices
REER

Operating Practices;
Environmental

Management
mEER
RIBER

Our People
ZMHET
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RE HERERRS

Materiality Assessment EEMAM

The Group has conducted a materiality assessment on AEEBEHAFENIRE HEeRkELEEE
ESG-related topics this year. Following a process of fTEZEMFE - &LHF B ZERERRE
identification, prioritisation, validation and review, this &% @ HEZRFHBIAARNEBREBTHERS
allowed us to identify material ESG-related topics that are EAMEHMIRE HeRERHEBZE -
significant to the Group and its stakeholders.

The Group has identified 6 material topics, including AEBEEHF NEELEHHE 2IEHEES
Supply Chain Management, Anti-corruption, Product B -RES - EREERLZZ BREEEREE
Quality and Safety, Service Quality Control and REBFEE -EBEFREE LUREIZH %
Complaint Handling, Customer Satisfaction, and T REB EZUFTENLERECAEEFES
Employee Engagement, Diversity and Inclusion. The & & KLt -

result of the materiality assessment has been reviewed

and approved by the Board of the Group.

The actions taken to manage our material topics are AEIEEZHZERIMAITEN TR
summarised in the table below:

Material Topics Perfect Optronics’ Actions Corresponding Chapters

EEMEE BXXENITEH HEED

Supply Chain e Adhere to supplier selection and Supply Chain Management
Management evaluation standards HEEEIE

HEEEE B < e kR R TG 2R Maintaining Green Supply Chain

e Require suppliers to sign processing #1347 @ {H JE §8
contracts and supplier agreements
ERHERNEZENISARMEER
1 =%

e Give preference to suppliers with
higher environmental performance,
with all major suppliers obtained
environmental management system
and greenhouse gas quantification
and reporting certificates
BEZRRERRBENHER
FEFTZHERCHNBREERR
HRAERBENRBREZRE

e Adopt eco-friendly raw materials

RARERME
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Material Topics

EEMEE

Anti-corruption

k&S

Product Quality and
Safety
EREERLTE

Service Quality Control
and Complaint
Handling

REEREZERRR
BB

Customer Satisfaction

EFEmREE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Perfect Optronics’ Actions

BXNXENTE

e Adopt an Anti-Fraud Management
System
KR ERER R

e Provide anti-corruption training to
employees, management and
directors
miES -
=]

e Sign Code of Conduct with
employees
HESZZERETTR

e Provide whistle-blowing channels
REBMEE

EEEREERHKRES

e Receive customer feedback on
product quality
HEREENGEEPRE

e Apply quality assurance and control
procedures
EmmBEREREHREF

e Obtain certifications on product
quality

MBEMEERR

e Adopt a grievance resolution
mechanism
BR A0 BR o R R M

e Offer technical support in response
to customer feedback
RERMZEARER P RE

e Provide numerous customer
communication channels
RHZETFPEERS

e Provide guidelines to employees on
customer information handling
MEEREEETE P EMEEN
¥z 3l

BE HERERRSE

Corresponding Chapters
HE =

Anti-corruption
RES

Customer Satisfaction and Product
Quality
EEREEREMEE

Customer Satisfaction and Product
Quality
EEREEREMEE

Customer Satisfaction and Product
Quality
EEREEREMEE
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BE HERERARS

Material Topics

BEEMEE

Perfect Optronics’ Actions

BXNXENTE

Employee Engagement, e Prohibit any form of harassment
and discrimination in the Code of

Diversity and Inclusion

Corresponding Chapters
HEEEH

Employee Rights and Welfare
& A K AE

BIZHE -ZxtRkHEBM  Conduct
RERSTERZ FEREADRE
K548

e Provide reporting channels on
violations of the Code of Conduct
REFEERBRTENNBREE

e QOrganise employee activities and
reward outstanding employees

HEEB TR RBHLER

OPERATING PRACTICES

Supply Chain Management

The ongoing COVID-19 pandemic continues to have
unpredictable impacts on global supply chains. Despite
the obstacles ahead, the Group strives to sustain a
long-term and stable relationship with its suppliers and
processing service providers to ensure the quality and
reliability of the products. During the year, the Group
worked and engaged with 117 suppliers, with 24 located
in Hong Kong, 82 in mainland China and 11 in other
regions.

To ensure our products meet the requisite quality
standards, we maintain communication with
sub-contractors for processing display components after
procurements.

We select suppliers and processing services providers
based on well-defined standards and evaluate
performance on a regular basis. In addition to the
selection criteria including price quote, quality, service and
reputation, the Group has considered risks associated
with social and environmental management of suppliers.
During the year, our major suppliers were ISO 14001
certified and have established well-developed ESG
management systems. The Group continues to encourage
its suppliers and processing services providers to manage
related topics including but not limited to product
responsibility, human rights and environmental protection.
Preference is given to suppliers who use environmentally
friendly products or services.

Perfect Opftronics Limited Annual Report 2021

REER
g

RIT2019E MR A S REIBEEE 2R EEE
RELEANZE - BENRABRRE &8
By hEHEE LN TRERERESEEL
BTHE UWBRRERLZERUSEE - FKR -
REFE7TRHEEREIERAHR 248 60RE
BB MNAF R A IR UREME -

RERERTARERERE RMESERH
PLERBR I TRREFREB® -

T AAVIRIEIE 12 57 E B0 22 Bl PO S e i K o0 T AR

BHREBLEAFERR - K THRE mE -
R MBEZHERENIN  AEEEEEMURE

ARt EeREEEEENRAKR -FRN £2
HEFHEISO 14001RBRERI TEZ=MIR
B HekEREERS AEE—EFHHE
HEFIKNMIRGEHEFIEEE@EEE 213
BTRRRAREREET ABERRERZ-FHAR
RERIBREHEETSEHELEE -



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BE HERERRSE

RS EmEA R AFIRER

Supplier
fPERg

e Supplier agreements are based on our requirements on product quality and delivery inspection
HERGR DERNRMEERL E RBRENER

e Receive product samples and specifications for inspection

e If any quality problem are identified, we request product replacement or exchange

WEREARERE  RAGBRERBERIRE

e Processing contracts are signed to achieve high yield rates for our products that meet our standards

BUNTANMRRERRIESERE - UHEHMINELE

processing e Evaluate our processing services providers' performance regularly

Service AR TR (BRI

Providers

NIRRT
PR

IR HIES EP R R A
REZFILEN T2 RERIE

e Collect feedback from customers through grievance resolution mechanism
e Preserve security and confidentiality of customer privacy

e Protect customer information to avoid improper disclosure, misuse or unauthorised use, loss, damage or

Customers corruption
25 REZFELS  UHHBRTEEHRE  BASER - 8K - BExES

Supply Chain Management

HEgER

Maintaining Green Supply Chain

The Group has been improving its ESG performance by
incorporating environmental considerations into its supply
chain. Guided by our ESG Policy, we adopt green
procurement practices and prioritise suppliers with better
environmental performance.

All of the Group’s major suppliers have obtained
certification under 1ISO 14001 Environmental Management
System and ISO 14064 Greenhouse Gas Accounting and
Verification. We also prefer suppliers that adopt
environmentally friendly products or services. To make our
personal hygiene and disinfectant products eco-friendlier,
we source products according to the Recommended
Green Specifications for products and services published
by the Environmental Protection Department of Hong
Kong.

HEgeftEE

AEEHRRREEEMALHERE KMBENR
EHRE HERERRAE -GERE HEk
ERBREET  RARDSRERBERRE
RERARERARENHRER

AEEMEZHERZILHEESISO 1400138
BEERXH NSO 140648 =R B HBEFN
REFE-BRMMEBLEAFEBRRERKREN
HEE ABTFEEAAFTERESERE AR
R BROABRBEEBREFRESLEMHOER KR
BEZRREARKEBER-
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BE HERERARS

To ensure compliance, we ensure that our service
providers are registered and licensed with the relevant
environmental protection authorities under the PRC laws
and regulations’ through communication and internal
control procedures. We also conduct regular site visits to
further guarantee compliance with environmental
standards.

Customer Satisfaction and Product Quality

We engage with customers to understand their demands
through regular communication. Customers can reach out
to us via different channels including Facebook, Email,
Whatsapp and hotline. Prompt response is provided to
customers’ requests. We strive to strengthen our product
quality and customer services by offering technical
support and resources to respond to our customers’
needs.

We have established a grievance resolution mechanism
for customers to get their opinions on quality, services,
and any other related issues. Responsible departments
and managers are assigned to record and deal with
customer concerns in a timely manner. Subsequent
follow-up actions are taken if necessary. Our sales and
marketing team will work with technical team to provide
responsive customer support service.

To adhere to product standards and external
certifications, we strictly apply quality assurance and
control procedures. Once a non-conformity is identified,
we report it to the original manufacturer for product recall
and replenishment. As a sole agent for “K-clean”, a
personal hygiene and disinfectant product, we have
obtained various certifications including antibacterial test,
chemical safety and disinfection effectiveness.

During the year, there were no product recalls for safety
and health reasons. We did not receive any material
products and service-related complaints.

" List of applicable laws and regulations available in “Laws and Regulations”
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Customer Privacy and Intellectual Property Rights

Qur sales manual for employees outlines the
confidentiality guidelines for our employees and policies
on handling customer information. Customer information is
properly kept to ensure there is no unauthorised access
and it is not misused. All customer information is stored
on the company server. Responsible personnel involved
with customer information keep it confidential and avoid
unauthorised use of information. By adhering to this
protocol, we ensure compliance with all applicable laws
and regulations? related to personal data and privacy.

To protect intellectual property rights, we apply
trademarks for our products to prevent counterfeiting and
fraud.

During the year, the Group complied with all relevant laws
and regulations relating to health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters concerning products and
services sold and provided to customers.

Anti-corruption

The Group firmly upholds integrity and honesty as its core
value. We have zero tolerance for any form of unethical
business practices including but not limited to corruption,
bribery, fraud, blackmail and money laundering. Led by the
top management, we have implemented various
anti-corruption measures in our different business units.
The Anti-Fraud Management System was in place to
ensure our standards align with relevant laws and
regulations. It helps to prevent misconducts, particularly in
conjunction with an organised internal control system.
Audit Committee guides the anti-fraud work while
Anti-Fraud Department organises the anti-fraud work
across the Group.

2 List of applicable laws and regulations available in “Laws and Regulations”
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BE HERERARS

Management
EEE

— Establish and implement anti-fraud
programmes and control such as
fraud risk assessment and
prevention
R NEE R SRR B R AE IR
Bt - ANERER R R AT (4 K TR
Conduct self-assessment on
anti-corruption
HEITRES BRI

Audit Committee
EZLEE

Anti-Fraud Dgpartment
[ SE R EB P

Busi,ness U\nits
FFEN

Anti-Fraud Governance Structure

RERERRE

During the year, we invited the Hong Kong Independent
Commission Against Corruption (“ICAC”) to organise
anti-corruption training for our employees including senior
management. Training materials from ICAC were delivered
to the Board.

During the year, we were not aware of any breach of
laws and regulations® that had a significant impact on the
Group relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering. There were no concluded legal cases
regarding corrupt practices.

Code of Conducts

To ensure all employees can act honestly and with
integrity, they are provided clear instructions on business
ethics. We have in place a comprehensive Code of
Conducts in our Employee Conduct Guideline. The
following table demonstrates some of the major unethical
behaviours that are viewed as corruptive and that should
be avoided at all times.

3 List of applicable laws and regulations available in “Laws and Regulations”
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Failure to declare any conflict
of interest to the Group for
approval

VR B A AN £ B B 3R A AT A 2
187 38 LA BR A5 #E

Staff or their family members
engage in business
relationships that are
competitive to the Group

BETHHEREXBHEER

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE -HERERRS

Accepting gifts of large
economic value, in the form
of services or discounts
BX ARG ST R H
WEERAKLEEBENEM

Deliberately accepting gifts
that put the Group in an
embarrassing situation
HMEEXRY FAREEHMR
A& 35 3,

Damage the goodwill of our
competitors through
fabricating and disseminating
false information
REMBEEERES BE
BHEHTFNEE

Infringe competitors’ trade or
commercial secrets with
ilegal means
NIEEFRELBEFEHFH
BHAMENE

SEERFNRBRAK

e Failure to report the
acceptance of a gift to
supervisors for approval

AREB R LR B RABSHE

BRI
Whistle-blowing

We have developed a system to facilitate whistle-blowing,
comprising communication channels that ensure efficient
reporting of suspicious or known cases of misconduct in
business practices. Through email box, whistle-blowers
can submit information in an anonymous way. The Group
ensures all cases undergo a fair and equal investigation,
and all investigation materials are handled in a confidential
manner to protect the whistle-blower.

Disciplinary actions including immediate termination of
employment are taken against employees who are in
breach of the Code of Conducts. We refer such cases to
law enforcement authorities if any criminal or serious
offence is involved.

FiH
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RE -HERERARS

OUR PEOPLE

The Group protects the rights of its employees and
strives to create an inclusive and healthy working
environment.

As of 31 December 2021, there were a total of 65
employees, of which 34 were based in Hong Kong, 25 in
mainland China and the remaining 6 in Taiwan. Male
employees are 65% while female employees are 35%.
Most employees are between 31 to 50 vyears old,
accounting for approximately 61%. All of our employees
are full-time staff.

Geographical Distribution
& 5 5

9%
52%

35%

39%

[T Hong Kong

/

B Mainland China
[ A it

Taiwan
=]

Employment Type
R R 5!

28%

72%

61%

[ Managerial staff [l General staff
EEAR —MAR
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Gender Profile
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During the year, the overall employee turnover rate was
13.8%. Distribution of the employee turnover is presented
in the graphs below:

Employee Turnover Rate by Gender

BUEREDNEERKE

20% 20%

4 . I
0%
Ma\e Female Below 31 years old 31 to 50 years old

S 243 B1BRAT

mmm Employee Turnover Rate by Gender
IR B HofE Bk

31E505%

mmm Employee Turnover Rate by Age
REREIDHERRAE

Employee Rights and Welfare

To create an inclusive and diverse working environment
for all employees, the Group advocates equal
opportunities in all aspects of the employment system
regardless of age, gender, family status, sexual
orientation, ethnicity, creed, and religion or any other
characteristics.

We adopt a zero-tolerance attitude towards any form of
harassment and discrimination, and have in place a code
of conduct to raise employees’ awareness in this regard.
Employees who are aware of any violation of the code are
required to report promptly to the designated department
through the stipulated reporting channels. Reported cases
are examined in a fair manner and punishment is awarded
to those responsible for any violations.

To protect labour rights, our Personnel Management
System clearly sets out policies regarding recruitment,
promotion, compensation, working hours, rest periods,
dismissal, benefits, and welfare measures, strictly
complying with the prevailing laws and regulations.

Employee Turnover Rate by Age
?’ﬁiFﬁAilﬁE’JEE/m%

R -HERERES

FRBEEBSRAE
RTEZ7 :

< /313.8% - BERAKD

Employee Turnover Rate by Geographical Region

= RitBE D HEERAR

40%

30%

20%
5 .
Above 50 years old Hong Kong Mainland China Ta\wan
505%A L i B A aiE
—_— Emp\oyee Turnover Rate by Geographical Region
RGBS HEE AR
=] =3
EBEEFRER

RTAEREELSEARIRZ TH TIERER
AEBERBHENMAETESRETEH
G TwERK MHH REMR EI@E- B
- EIRRBSAE A E MR-

BAHEAEANRERKRBERRTERRE
B rYERYETER  UMBRESHELTE
WEB MEEHRREMERENNTR JE
BREERIYMNBHRRBRE ERIEEEM - &
BREARARFEARBER S REMERITR
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MEfE e BRETIRAEREEMR
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BE HERERARS

While the Group does not have operations in locations
with high child labour risk, we proactively collaborate with
our suppliers and processing services providers to ensure
no child labour or forced labour is used in their
production facilities. Any violations can result in
termination of business relationship. During the year, the
Group was not aware of any instance of non-compliance
with laws and regulations* having a significant impact on
the Group relating to employment and labour practices.
Nor did the Group identify any incidents relating to the
use of child or forced labour.

To retain talents and acknowledge the contributions of our
employees, we provide competitive remuneration
packages and welfare benefits, including statutory
benefits, caring benefits and incentive benefits. Our
remuneration packages are reviewed once a year for any
updates to meet or exceed the prevailing market
standards.

HAXEEYECETRARSHBELSE
FITR g R B e R TARTS v & 1 - 78
REEERETERETINRALE T - EfE
RABREXEBRETEH -FR AKETHME
EAERERRS TERABERIER MY
AEBEXRERFZENBN - AEETNAER
EREEAET SRS THBOEMF-

RTBBATRREEINER - HARHEE
BREONFMEBMEN B EAERMN - B
BEMNMEBEN RMASFERFHGT BN
TEEMER - EMEDHNBBRITOTHRLE -

e Social insurance e Medical benefits e Year-end bonus
& RE B 13 A FRES
e Provident funds e Holiday benefits e Share option scheme
NES UNEEER BB AR Rt 2l
e Housing reserve funds e Vaccination holidays
TEHFEES EHEEER
e Maternity leave e Qutstanding employee award
ER L e B 52
e Statutory holidays e Team building activities
= E R & X 35 3| E B

Training and Development

The Group provides appropriate training to its employees
to help their career development. To equip our employees
with knowledge and skills required for their respective
positions, we organise internal training programmes that
enhance their technical understanding of products and
sales performance.

4 List of applicable laws and regulations available in “Laws and Regulations”

fOERRRBIRRI RN DERRIER]
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During the year, we provided a total of 493 hours of
training to our employees. About 93% of male employees
and all female employees have received training. All of our
management staff and more than 90% of our general staff
were trained this year. The average training hours for
male and female employees were 7 hours and 8 hours
respectively, and 6 hours for management staff and 8
hours for general staff. We have a well-established
promotion mechanism and provide a clear career
development path to facilitate employees’ growth and
development with the Group.

Occupational Health and Safety

Owing to the nature of our business operation, there are
no activities that entail a high risk of occupational
hazards. Nevertheless, the Group aims to create a safe
and healthy working environment to its employees. Safety
measures in office and warehouse are implemented in
accordance with the ESG policy.

)

}

Keep the workplace clean

REFTIEGEFER

BE HERERRSE

FA - RMFEERES H493 N F - 49
WrHWBEUEEELEBAMRECDEXEI -
2REEASNBIOKH —RAERFAER
Bl BERZIEEE N FHBINEED R R
TR RSN EBABR-RABASHR
6N R8N - HPIRE T ERE T B R IR
HEMHWEXRHREE  WeEBERXRAKE
MARERER -

BERERZR

ERNEBHEEUREER B EBRERTRAR
BeNEMEe FEWL ASEHRSHRE
BERERLZE2NRENIERR -BAERRE
ERERE HEREABRRETLZERER -

Safety Measures

ZEHEE
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BE HERERARS

To control adverse fallouts of outbreak of the COVID-19,
we have implemented a number of precautionary
measures. All employees and visitors entering the office
area must wear a mask and are subjected to temperature
check and sanitisation. We have offered discounts to
employees for purchasing disinfectant products, and
encourage employees to get vaccinated by providing
vaccination leave. To encourage our employees to
exercise, we have joined a charitable programme
organised by the Heep Hong Society which encourages
employees to participate in sports frequently.

During the vyear, there were no recorded work-related
injuries. And the Group recorded zero fatalities for the
past three years. The Group was not aware of any
incidents of non-compliance with relevant laws and
regulations® that have a significant impact on the Group,
relating to providing a safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational hazards.

Community Involvement

During the year, we continued to collaborate with Heep
Hong Society by making a sponsorship of HK$60,000
along with materials support for a fundraising event,
supporting assessment and training for children and
young people with special needs from low-income
families.

In 2021, we continue to receive the Caring Company
Certificate as a recognition of our contribution to building
a cohesive society and being a socially responsible
corporate. We will not be complacent and will continue to
strive to fulfil our share of social responsibility.

5 List of applicable laws and regulations available in “Laws and Regulations”
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ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT

Responding to the increasing attention stakeholders are
paying to environmental sustainability and climate change,
the Group has raised its efforts for reducing
environmental impacts of its operations. Our
environmental management is guided by the ESG policy to
ensure environmental compliance and to promote
resource conservation. This year, we have established a
climate change policy listing out the commitments we
have made to mitigate the impacts brought by climate
change and stepping up our adaptation to climatic
impacts.

Mitigation
=R,

Adopt energy saving, waste reduction and
resource saving measures

PRERERARE - JRlRE R B IRET AU HE

Reduce GHG emissions by developing
environmental targets
HITEIRR B AR LUREK)R =R B HE

Incorporate climate change considerations
into the procurement process

HRIEE(CEEMARBIET

BE HERERRSE

B G

REEBMNEHRRFEEREREE/LHAE
HZEEF AEBELSHOREELENREY
Z-RETEHRRE HLEREABKRES
NERBESHRLREBERRE - FA - &M
FBURBEEHE  JNETREMABERKEE
b %5 2R 8 52 22 70 00 58 ¥ SR MR 52 28 7Y 3 FE P70
G o

Adaptation
i P&

Assess climate-related risks and
opportunities
ST S 15 A A R B R B

Include climate-related issues into the
risk management process and business
continuity plans
HRIEIEREEEES AR EIRE T R
BisERE

Climate Change Policy

RIRS L BUER

Due to the characteristics of our business, generation of
carbon emissions is indirect, mainly from electricity
consumed in office premises and warehouses. However,
the increased frequency of extreme weather triggered by
climate change could pose safety risks to our employees,
causing delay in ongoing projects. In this regard, we
follow the Code of Practice in Times of Typhoons and
Rainstorms by the Labour Department, and include
climate-related issues into our business continuity plan.

Targets are set to reduce the environmental impacts of
the Group and its business. To keep track of our
environmental performance, the Group has reviewed the
progress of its environmental targets on a regular basis.

EREBRHER BRERNELBBET
K- EEBREBASGHARBEBRENEN A
- RAREEAE 5] A8 7 B 58 Z 1R i K R AT BE 4 (B
ERRZEZAR REETHHEBETH - NIt
FE BRPAETEIEN(EREERESTL
tEFRD I RREERERARZBHTER

g -

ZAFIERFURERAEEREEZBORERY
B -SEMBRRRR AKEEHRITHERE
BRHERE -
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BE HERERARS

o {Eb %ﬁ/

Achieve overall waste reduction

Environmental PR R
targets
Achieve overall rise in paper recycling rate
}’%iﬁ A& FEREBREAAROIIE FF

I/}

@ Procure office equipment with higher grades of energy efficiency labels by 2025
T = A2 AR S ARSI AR Bl O A AR

A

During the year, the Group was not aware of any
incidents of non-compliance with laws and regulations®
that have a significant impact on the Group, relating to air
and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and
land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste.

Resources Consumption

Electricity and gasoline are the main types of energy
resources consumed by the Group. In 2021, the Group’s
office premises consumed 147,598 kWh electricity, and its
vehicles consumed 18,495 litres of gasoline, with a total
energy consumption of 1,120,810 MJ and the intensity
was 310 MJ per m?. The energy consumption decreased
by 2.4% compared to the preceding year.

6 List of applicable laws and regulations available in “Laws and Regulations”

¢ ERRRBIARIRER DERRIER]
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Energy Consumption and Intensity

REFEERZE

BE HERERRSE

333 310
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I FElectricity H Casoline e fnergy intensity
EP) YR BRI

Our water consumption mainly comes from tap water
supply in our offices. In 2021, the Group’s total water
consumption was 570 tonnes, with water intensity of 0.37
tonnes per m2. There was no issue in sourcing water that
is fit for the purpose.

BMOAKEETEREREMPAETH F KK
HE- RZZT=Z—F AEEHAKLE RS0
ME o KB E RS T K037 - EE B SEAKE
TR N R e

Water Consumption and Intensity

==
AKERZE
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EE
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0
2020 2021
—ECTF T
I \Vater consumption e \/\/ater intensity
K& IKEE

Our operation also consumes packaging materials. During
the year, approximately 32 tonnes of paper was used as
packaging materials, mainly for our personal hygiene and
disinfectant products.

o
N
Intensity (tonnes/m?)
=E (M, FK)

=
w

BAMEBIEREEMM - FR - L3284
RAEERME  TEZRERMNEARTER

HEER -
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BE HERERARS

Emissions and Waste Management

In 2021, the total GHG emissions amounted to
approximately 130 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent
(“tCO,e"), of which 49 tCO,e were direct emissions
(Scope 1), attributed to gasoline consumed by our private
vehicles. The remaining 81 tCO,e of indirect carbon
emissions (Scope Il) were due to purchased electricity.

FRRBERNER

R-B—_—F RERBHREERDI0M =
StmEE AP —_SARESBREEEE
(EBE—) RN FLRE R T
BT _StRESERMEEHR(EE ) -
BRRABEED - = E 55 F 77 K0.04W
—alEHmEE-

The emission intensity was 0.04 tCO,e per m?,

GHG Emission and Intensity
BERBHIHEREE

160 0.05

0.04 L
~ 140 0.04 —E
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— 0|
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ga 100 003 Qg
<& g0 S i
z 81 )
2E 60 002 G
G g1l
i 001 —E
® 20 1
el
0 0 &
2020 2021
ZECTF —E-—F
I Scope 1 H Scope 2 e mission intensity
#i[E— #HE— ==
* The 2020 data is revised due to updated emission factors. * —E_EHFEEBCRAEFOERE FME -

AEENARKEBERVH  EEXD0IRATHREA
£% - 1032 T REAL Y R0.8A T BIF AL

The Group’s gasoline consumption from private vehicles
generates approximately 0.3 kg sulphur oxides (“SOx”),
10.3 kg nitrogen oxides (“NOx”) and 0.8 kg particulate
matters (“PM”).
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R -HERERES

Air Pollutant Emission

BERBERE
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Predominantly an office-based business, the Group

generates mainly wastepaper as waste. During the year, a
total of 575 kg of paper were consumed. The waste
intensity was 0.16 kg per m?. Our operations do not
generate hazardous waste.

Implementing Green Office

Let S \ll:l

xviky r4-l r%;a

n |nﬂ£
has been participating

The Group in a green office
programme named “Let’'s GO” since 2017 aiming to build
an environmentally friendly culture in our operations.
Based on the assessment criteria specified by a
third-party organisation, our employees are committed to
adopting green office initiatives.

0.8

10.3

2021
=bd=—4=

PM
IR

REBITEURAETEB AT EENEYE
DEEER - TR HHEST5A T MR - B
WEREAEEFHKOABAT - RPN EBTE
EEEEY -

BERSERIE

AEEE T LFR2HE[ Let's GO AR
REFE EERBMANEBEIREIRAEX
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RE HEREREE

To raise employees’ awareness on resource conservation, &ARSETIWERRES H MO LKL
we distributed and pasted stickers and posters about ﬁ B8 4% & (0K H) Bh 4K &/i e MR %
green practices. We also adopted numerous resources Ei)ERMEILEERAE - BEUOT -
conservation and energy-saving measures, listed below.

Energy Paper

HEIR - MR

e Switch off equipment when not in use = | * Use electronic supporting medium to
FARANT SE(E AR AR - reduce printing

* Use switch-sockets to avoid redundant EREFTE  FFIE
energy use e Assign designated area for paper recycling
SRR AR R IR B AL IR 5 T BT A B AR o] s 1

e Collection tray for waste copy paper used

* Purchase office equipment with high
on one side so it is available for printing

grades of efficiency labels

BEHERY & EEAR SRR RE on the Oﬂfrjide
e Clean air conditioners periodically TSR BRI - WRESIE—@E
EEERZEH B4 5R LA BT EN
. . . | .
Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment Plastic
BREERETRE B
e Adopt multi-function devices, such as e Use reusable tableware to avoid disposable
E printing, scanning, fax photocopy utensils
RAZINALRME - BIRRFTED - 474 - EARMEIRGE AN A -
B &0 BREA-—XEEERAA
’ Water Miscellaneous
i * /\ i
|
e Periodically check taps to prevent leakage e Design publications with fewer varnishes
EERERIEH - R T o contings
‘ BETE EROERFZ R TIY)

e Utilise web-conferencing to minimise
business trips
EREREE D REEIRTT

* Reuse stationeries

BRAXA
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LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group has established and implemented internal
policies in all departments to ensure adequate action in
respect of each ESG aspect and compliance with all
applicable laws and regulations. The list of applicable laws
and regulations is as follows:

Aspect
&

Product Responsibility
ERELE

Anti-corruption
RES

Employment
&R

Occupational Health and Safety
BEREERZ2

Environmental Management
RRAERE

Applicable Laws and Regulations

BRERRER

¢ The Trade Descriptions Ordinance
(B et A0

¢ The Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance
(EABH(FLE) & 01)

¢ Product Quality Law of the PRC
(FPEARENBEERLEF)

¢ The Civil Code
(FEAREMERER)

¢ The PRC Customer Rights and Interests Protection

(FEARANBEEERGEREL)

¢ Prevention of Bribery Ordinance
(B B B 1)

¢ The Competition Ordinance
(GRS

¢ Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the PRC
(FEARAMERTEEHFE)

¢ Anti-Money Laundering Law of the PRC
(hEARXABREEE)

¢ Criminal Law of the PRC
(hE AR EAMERE)

¢ The Company Law of the PRC
(PEARKMERFE)

¢ The Anti-Corruption Act of Taiwan
A EN(E AT &)

¢ Employment Ordinance
(EB%RH)

¢ Minimum Wage Ordinance
(RETE GO

e Labour Law of the PRC
(PEARANE L EE)

¢ Labour Contract Law of the PRC
(PEARKANELEHERZE)

BE HERERRSE

EERER

AEEEEMBRFIRL L E A RBHBUOR - &
REZERE HERERIHEH HEHRER
THRBTHREBRERLER - BRNERE
FOERIIRMT

Section/Remarks

BE M

OPERATING PRACTICES
LEER

Anti-corruption
RES

OUR PEOPLE
ZMMET

¢ Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour of the PRC

(FEARANBZLERETIRE)

¢ The Regulation on the Administration of Housing Accumulation

(EERBLEREH)

¢ The Social Insurance Law of the PRC
(PEARLMELERRIE)

¢ The Labor Standards Act of Taiwan
ABN(ABERE)

¢ The Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance
(BEZ2RERED)
¢ Employees’ Compensation Ordinance

(BB MEHD)

Occupational Health and
Safety
BXERRZ2

¢ Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases

(R ARLAME R ERAE)
¢ The Occupational Safety and Health Act of Taiwan

AENBRER2EER)

¢ Air Pollution Control Ordinance
(ERFRE GO

¢ Water Pollution Control Ordinance
CKI5 2 E #1156

¢ Ozone Layer Protection Ordinance

(RIEKEE )

ENVIRONMENTAL
MANAGEMENT
RRER

¢ Atmospheric Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC

(hZEARLMBERRZRRE)

¢ Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC

(P E AR £MEKS 8%
¢ The Environmental Protection Law of the PRC

(hEARANBERRRER)

¢ The Law of the People’s Republic of China on Environment Impact Assessment

(hEARANEREYEFEL)

BEXxXEERLDE 2021 FiR
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B HEREARS

PERFORMANCE DATA SUMMARY HERAFBE
2021 2020
:g— - $ — 7 — $
Total Headcount B T # 2 65 66
By Geographical Distribution % i1 [& £ 5
Hong Kong & /& 34 32
Mainland China B /4 it 25 29
Taiwan 4 & 6 5
By Age IR F# &l 2
<31 9 11
31-50 40 40
>50 16 15
o By Gender #&1f 512l 2
o Male 21 42 42
£H Female %1% 23 24
5 I By Employment Type 1% (& 8 £ 5l 8
= Managerial staff & 2 A 8 18 N/AT 38 A
General staff £38 8 47 N/A i A

T
Employee Turnover Rate & Tifi k&
By Age & EF i E H

<31 11.1% N/A i A
31-50 15.0% N/ATN 38 A
>50 12.5% N/A i A
By Gender &1 5l &l 5
Male 514 14.3% N/AA i A
Female % 1 13.0% N/AT i F
By Geographical Region # i [& £
Hong Kong & 7 8.8% N/AT 33 A
Mainland China /& B A it 16.0% N/AT & B
Taiwan & /2 33.3% N/AT & A
o Work-related incident (case) T/EEBEHRE 0 0
g é‘ﬁ?ﬂ Lost days due to work-related injury L5184k T{F B & 0 0
E B#™  \Workrolated fatalities T{ERBIET A% 0 0
=
c
=5 Donations (HK$) 185 (7 7T) 60,000 50,000
§¢N—
Total Resources Consumption (MJ) ERHELE (KEE) 1,120,810 1,148,571
Electricity (kWh) & 1 (TR &) 147,598 156,114
Gasoline (litres) /58 (2 #) 18,495 18,403
Tap water (tonnes) B X7J< (W) 570 562
Energy intensity (MJ/m?) 86 R % E KEE /F 75 K) 310 333
Water intensity (tonnes/m?) 7k % & (/5 %) 0.37 0.37
Packaging materials 2 # %
Paper (tonnes) 4% (1) 32 N/AT &
s Emissions ¥ i &
E Sulphur oxides (SOx) (kg) &AL ¥ (A ) 0.3 0.3
Sy Nitrogen oxides (NOx) (kg) A &L (A FF) 10.3 10.3
= Particulate matters (PM) (kg) % SAL (2 fT) 0.8 0.8
"“ Waste BE4)
Paper waste (kg) #KEY (R fT) 575 N/A 78 A
Paper waste intensity (kg/m®) HRBENRE (AT FH*K) 0.16 N/AZ i F
Greenhouse Gases Emissions and Intensity* BEREBHHERHE"
Total GHG emissions (tCO,¢) /i % . B8 k 1 48 & (1 — altiE=s) 130 139
Scope 1 (tCO,e) EE — (B — ALK E ) 49 49
Scope 2 (tCO o HE-(WE-_S{HES) 81 90
Emission intensity (tCOe/m) N EHRE (M_aLiRE g/ THK) 0.04 0.04
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Notes:

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Calculation standards and methodologies for carbon

emissions:

Carbon emissions are calculated using “Greenhouse Gas
Protocol” published by the World Resources Institute and

World Business Council on Sustainable Development

The sources of published emission factors for the reporting

of carbon emissions are:

(@)

(o)

2020 Sustainability Report of CLP

“Guidelines to Account for and Report on
Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Removals for
Buildings (Commercial, Residential or Institutional
Purposes) in Hong Kong” published by the
Environmental Protection Department

“2019 Carbon Emissions Supplementary Data
Accounting Report Template” published by the
Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the People’s
Republic of China ({20194 i HF 7 7t B & 1% & 3R
HERD)

The 2020 GHG emission data is revised due to emission
factor revision

BE HERERRSE

REEMMET ERER A

HRERMRAAMEARACEKEEREZER
HRHCORERBREETESE)

B R R 5 AR PR A B T B R B F 9 SO 40
T

(@) TEZ_ZFARBERES
REREZEMAKEERED(H

¥ EEHLXHABBR)NBEREBIN
TR bR 9 i E AN 3R 45 51D

T

© PEARAMBAERREHEMD
(ZE-NERFPRHABERERS
R

HARBEREFHET T _TFRRERE
HRBURAFTELE
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RIE -HERERES

ESG CONTENT INDEX

ESGR A R 5l

Stock Exchange ESG Reporting Guide Requirements
BRAER HERERREHEIER

A. Environmental
A BE

Aspect A1 : Emissions

EEA: B

General Disclosure Information on:
-REE

a) the policies; and

HE: R

EHERLBEERESN

B AKRLHNES AEREEERMNELSH

b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
ETHETABEATENEREERAGINEH -

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation of

hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

KPI A1.1

B8 MUEIRAL1

KPI A1.2

HRERIEEA12

KPI A1.3

HREMIEEALS

KPI A1.4

BRENERAL4

KPI A1.5

BRENERALS

KPI A1.6

BREANERALS

The types of emissions and the respective emissions data.

BmmEERAREREE -

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions (in
tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

BUAMGE) R

ER(BE-)RER (@R =
4

Mz (EE ) RERELHEN
EWMLEEE )

s

5 BERMEEE)

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g.
per unit of production volume, per facility).

MELAERENEE UG E) R (NER)BE (MASER B - §ERE
H8)-

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

A EEEENEE ()
#e) -

Rt E) R (MER)EE (MASESEN  BERE

Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

WA INEREBRAEIELERARRNTR -

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, and a
description of reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

WRRBEAEREZTBEENNNZE RELMTUAREERRAE
BRATRERA S -

FiE
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Section/Remarks

B/

ENVIRONMENTAL
MANAGEMENT
RIEEE

Emissions and Waste
Management;
PERFORMANCE DATA
SUMMARY
FRREEDER:
HERERE

Emissions and Waste
Management;
PERFORMANCE DATA
SUMMARY
HHREENER
BERRBE

Emissions and Waste
Management

HHRBEENER

Emissions and Waste
Management;
PERFORMANCE DATA
SUMMARY
FHREENER:
BERRBE

ENVIRONMENTAL
MANAGEMENT;
Implementing Green
Office;

Maintaining Green
Supply Chain
REEE Emﬁ@%
“fiﬁﬁﬁ@

ENVIRONMENTAL
MANAGEMENT;
Implementing Green
Office

RIEER B

N

NE

Ren



Environmental, Social and Governonce Reporr

Stock Exchange ESG Reporting Guide Requirements

BXARE HERE

Aspect A2 : Use of Resources

EEA2: EREA

AREEIIER

5B 45

General Disclosure Policies on efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw materials.

—-REE

B RER(

KPI A2.1

BR AR IRA2 1

KPI A2.2

BREANERA22

KPI A2.3
RS AN ERA23

KPI A2.4

BRANERA24

KPI A2.5

BRENERA2S

BEER

OKREAM R BB -

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in
total (kWh in'000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

} %g}}l i“
BE(MABESEN  BEREIE

MERR/SMELRIE  Ran) B8

g) o

ENTETRE

&)

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per

facility).

BRKERTE(MUSESEM

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve

them.

BRI LM RERREE R R AENELE

RATHRERA S8R -

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose,
water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

HSKBER KR EAIBEMARE  ARATINBAKRRARERRBEREL

BRFAERBRA TR -

Total packaging materials used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if applicable,

with reference to per unit produced.

U mAARENHNEE

Aspect A3 : The Environment and Natural Resources

BHA3: BERARER

General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on the environment and natural resources.

—-REE

REFTAHRERRAEREXNEATENHK -

KPI A3.1

BB E IR IRAS

E(MEGE) K

R(ER) S EEEIY

HEH\[H

Description of significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural
resources and the actions taken to manage them.

WREBEDHRERRAERNEAY ERERREREHUTENTY -

BEXxXEERLDE 2021 FiR
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=
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE -HERERHRSE

Stock Exchange ESG Reporting Guide Requirements
BRARE HEREARERIER

Aspect A4 : Climate Change
EEAL: RIEEL

General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues which have impacted, and
-REE those which may impact, the issuer.
B R EHEE R EH R TAREVENEARGERSENICR

KPI Ad.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have impacted, and
those which may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.

BRANERAMT HACKRRURSHETAELAYENEARGANEE LEHGY-

B. Social
B.#®&
Aspect B1: Employment
EEB1: EfE
General Disclosure Information on:
-REE EREMREE BEREA IHERY BY FEKe 2t REGUREASBRETN:
a) the policies; and
HE R

b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
ETHETABEAZENERERRAGINEH -

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal

opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, full- or part-time), age
group and geographical region.

BREmEEs  RUH - BREN(NE2RAFRE) FRAFRBEISNERLE -

KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region.

BREgEEB2  RUH FRANEMEIHIMESRALE -

Aspect B2: Health and Safety

BEB2: B#EHZ2

General Disclosure Information on:

-REE FARGEZ2THERERREBEEREBENLRAEN:
a) the policies; and
B R

b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
ETHETABEAZENERERRAGINEH -
relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees from occupational hazards.
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past three
years including the reporting year.

BRENERB BEZFREERFE)SFAICHMARRIL K.

KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury.
MREREEB?2 RIBBAIEAH-
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, how they are

implemented and monitored.

BRENEEBL HAMRANBERFAREEE URARATREERE-
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE -HERERHRS

Stock Exchange ESG Reporting Guide Requirements
BRARE HERERARERIER

Aspect B3: Development and Training

EmB3: #EREH

General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties at work. Description of

—-REE

training activities.

ERRABRRROIEREANAMBRBENRR A

KPI B3.1
B2 18 MUEIRB3A
KPI B3.2

BREMIERB32

Aspect B4: Labour Standards

EEB4 : & TR

General Disclosure

—-REE

Information on:

BIETES -

The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category (e.g.
senior management, middle management).

BRI ES

The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee

category.

BRI RESR

EBMEIETRAHS T :

a) the policies; and
W& R

BRl(nekE

BHES

BE $4%F

"B2ER

BE) &

MEHNEEEDL -

SRS F g EE -

b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer

EFHETABEAZENEBZERAONER -

relating to preventing of child and forced labour.

KPI B4.1
B A 5 B4.1
KPI B4.2

BRENEEBL2

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

[EmB5: HEEERE

Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and forced

Iabour

ftins HBE

PIBERARRETRAHET

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered.

Rt EFRRRBEAREREBERMERN S -

General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain.
ERHEERENREERMERABBER

—-REE

KPI B5.1
B 52 48 W15 12B5. 1
KPI B5.2

MR EWIEIERS.2

KPI B5.3

MR ENIEERSS

KPI B5.4

BREMIERB54

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

RitEENH

HERBHA -

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers where
the practices are being implemented, and how they are implemented and

monitored.
fi i A A EE AR
ERRE.

HERNE

CERITAREH

HEBHE  URBBAHRITR

Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks along the
supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored.

i 1L 75 8 35 Al 4
Fik e

HERGERONRERLERR

H1EG -

AEEBRTRER

Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable products and
services when selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and monitored.

W EREH
& e

ERERESR

RREmIRENED -

NEREBRTRERD
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

=45

HtERELRRE

Stock Exchange ESG Reporting Guide Requirements
BRARE HEREARERIER

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

EmB6: EmAR

General Disclosure

Information on:

BRMREERTRENERE
a) the policies; and
W& R

2 EE BEMBEEAREREN:

b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
ETHETABEAYENEREZLAOIMES -

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products and services

provided and methods of redress.

KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and
health reasons.

MREIEEBY CEACREERLETRZ2ERERAMABRKNE D

KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received and how they are
dealt with.

BRERERB2 BEBRERRRBNRFHANREHT % -

KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual property
rights.

MREREEBS HOEEERREOREEGENED -

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.

BRENERBSs HIZERTBEREMEREF -

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they are
implemented and monitored.
BRERERBSS HOBEEEEHRERLEBIE ARBBATRERHE-

Aspect B7: An:fi—corruption

BEB7: RES

General Disclosure
BE

Information on:

BRVLLHER BR K

a) the policies; and
BE R

b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
ETHBETABEAYENEREEZRROIMNEN -

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

FRLRER

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the

issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the outcomes of the

cases.
BRANERR  RERAAHETAZHERRLYCEANEDFARIMEAE RFAAER

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, how they are
implemented and monitored. B )

BREREER2 HAMEEBRRERER UREBRTRERSE-

KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff.

BRENERBIS HENEZFREIRAHRERSE -

Aspect B8: Community Investment

B8 : HERE

General Disclosure
-REE

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the communities where the issuer
operates and to ensure its activities take into consideration the communities’ interests.

BHENHE2ERTREEMAHERENRRELBEDCZRUBRNEMUE -

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns, labour
neggsl, healtrl culture, sport). o \ . .

BREYERBsl  TIEREE(MBE REFE SIH% BEFE X 85

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area.

MRERERB2 AZIERMHAER(MEEREME) -
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
EEReREEERAER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheng Wai Tak, aged 52, was appointed as director
of the Company on 13 June 2013. Mr. Cheng is a
founder of the Group. He has been in the business of
trading TFT-LCD components for over 18 years and has
established close relationships with various suppliers. He
graduated from Hong Kong Baptist University with a
bachelor of science in combined sciences in mathematical
science degree. Pending the outcome of the legal
proceedings of the Petition, Mr. Cheng has been
suspended from his duties as an executive Director, the
chairman of the Board, the chief executive officer of the
Company and the director of Perfect Display Limited, a
major subsidiary of the Company, effective from
25 September 2020. He continues to serve the Company
as a consultant to bring in businesses and maintain the
relationship with business partners. He is also a
substantial shareholder of the Company. Save as
disclosed above, Mr. Cheng is also a director of certain of
the Group’s subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong, the
British Virgin Islands, Samoa and Taiwan.

Mr. Liu Ka Wing, aged 49, was appointed as an executive
Director on 18 June 2013. He joined the Group in
November 2008. Mr. Liu has about 27 years of
experience in accounting. Prior to joining the Group, he
worked in various certified public accountants firm and
corporations, responsible for general accounting functions.
He is responsible for the Group’s finance and
administrative functions. Pending the outcome of the legal
proceedings of the Petition, Mr. Liu has been suspended
from his duties as an executive Director effective from
25 September 2020 and he continues to serve the
Company as the financial controller. Mr. Liu is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Tse Ka Wing, aged 46, joined the Group in May 2013
and is the Company Secretary and Chief Financial Officer
of the Company. He was appointed as an executive
Director with effect from 26 March 2015. He is primarily
responsible for the financial management, supervision of
financial reporting and corporate finance matters, and
company secretarial matters of the Group. Mr. Tse
graduated from The Chinese University of Hong Kong with
a bachelor of business administration degree. He is an
associate of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Tse is a professional
accountant with over 24 years of experience in
accounting and had previously served as a senior
manager of an international firm of certified public
accountants. Pending the outcome of the legal
proceedings of the Petition, Mr. Tse has been suspended
from his duties as an executive Director effective from
25 September 2020 and he continues to serve the
Company as the chief financial officer and the company
secretary.

HITES
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENRSAREEEBAESR

Mr. Chang Huan Chia, aged 44, was appointed as an
executive Director on 25 September 2020. He obtained a
bachelor degree in electrical engineering in Yuan Ze
University in Taiwan in 2001 and has over 17 years of
experience in the technology and electronics industry.
Prior to joining the Group in September 2016, Mr. Chang
was a field application engineer and served as an
assistant manager in HannStar Display Corporation and a
project manager in Fitipower Integrated Technology Inc.
He is the chief executive officer and a director of Perfect
Intelligent Technology Limited, a director of Perinnova
Limited and a director of Perfect Display Limited, all of
which are subsidiaries of the Company. He is also
responsible for supervising the sales teams of the Group
and is the responsible person of the Taiwan branch of
Perfect Intelligent Technology Limited.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Yik Chung John, aged 55, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 20 January 2014
and is responsible for providing independent advice on
material issues of the Company. Pending the outcome of
the legal proceedings of the Petition, Mr. Wong has been
suspended from his duties as an independent
non-executive Director effective from 25 September 2020.
Mr. Wong graduated from the University of Melbourne,
Australia with a degree of bachelor of commerce. He was
a member of the Australian Society of Certified Practising
Accountants and was admitted as an associate of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in
April 1997. Mr. Wong has more than 30 vyears of
experience in auditing and corporate finance work. Over
the past three years, he served as independent non-
executive director for Xinjiang Xinxin Mining Industry Co.,
Ltd. (stock code: 3833), which is listed on the Stock
Exchange, and Beijing Capital Land Ltd. (stock code:
2868), which was listed on the Stock Exchange and
privatised in September 2021. He is currently serving as
an independent non-executive director for EcoGreen
International Group Limited (stock code: 2341) and
LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited (stock code:
1281), which are listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Wong Chi Chiu, aged 51, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 20 January 2014
and is responsible for providing independent advice on
material issues of the Company. Pending the outcome of
the legal proceedings of the Petition, Mr. Wong has been
suspended from his duties as an independent
non-executive Director effective from 25 September 2020.
Mr. Wong graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University with a degree of bachelor of engineering in
electrical engineering. He further received his master of
science in engineering (building services engineering)
degree from The University of Hong Kong. Mr. Wong was
registered as a chartered engineer (CEng) at the
Engineering Council in April 1998 and was registered as a
registered professional engineer in electrical discipline at
the Engineers Registration Board in July 1999. He has
been a member of The Institution of Engineering and
Technology since February 1998 and the Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers since May 1998. Mr. Wong has
over 29 years of experience in the engineering industry.

Mr. Kan Man Wai, aged 58, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 1 January 2020
and is responsible for providing independent judgment on
issues of strategy, performance, resources and standard
of conduct of the Company. He is the acting chairman of
the Board. He is also the chairman of the remuneration
committee of the Company and a member of the audit
committee and nomination committee of the Company.
Mr. Kan obtained a Diploma in Management Studies
awarded by The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and
the Hong Kong Management Association, and
subsequently obtained a Master’'s Degree of Business
Administration in International Management from the Royal
Melbourne Institute of Technology in Australia. He has
over 30 vyears of experience in the electronics
manufacturing services industry, including over 20 years
of experience at management level of sales and business
development and 4 years of experience at management
level of business operations. Mr. Kan is a Vice President
of Business Development for Great China and Korea of
Sanmina Corporation, a leading electronics manufacturing
services provider in the world that serves original
equipment manufacturers in communications, medical,
automotive, industrial and defense and aerospace fields
which is headquartered in San Jose, California, USA and
is listed on the Nasdag Stock Market. In his current
position, he is responsible for managing sales business,
exploring new business and introducing mergers and
acquisitions.
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EENRSAREEEBAESR

Mr. Cho Chi Kong, aged 69, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 1 January 2020
and is responsible for providing independent judgment on
issues of strategy, performance, resources and standard
of conduct of the Company. He is also the chairman of
the nomination committee of the Company and a member
of the audit committee and remuneration committee of the
Company. Mr. Cho has extensive experience in corporate
law, legal and regulatory compliance and prevention and
detection of fraud. Mr. Cho is a Non-practicing Barrister
of the Honorable Society of Lincoln’s Inn United Kingdom,
the High Court of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region, the Supreme Court of Australian Capital Territory
and the High Court of Australia. He is a Certified Fraud
Examiner of the Association of Certified Fraud Examiner
and a former President of the Hong Kong Chapter of the
Association of Certified Fraud Examiner, and is also a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors.
Mr. Cho has served as adviser and in-house legal
consultant on legal and compliance matters for
companies in Hong Kong and London. Mr. Cho taught
post-graduate courses in corporate governance and
regulatory framework as a Professor of Practice (Law) at
the School of Accounting and Finance, The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University before he retired in July 2020. He
has also lectured at universities in Hong Kong and
Mainland China on corporate law, securities law and
business law. Over the past three years, Mr. Cho served
as an independent non-executive director for Mansion
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 8456) from
June 2019 to May 2021 and New Western Group Limited
(currently known as “GSN Corporations Limited”) (stock
code: 8242) from June 2021 to Dec 2021, the shares of
which are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Ms. Hsu Wai Man Helen, aged 52, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 25 September
2020 and is responsible for providing independent
judgment on issues of strategy, performance, resources
and standard of conduct of the Company. She is the
chairperson of the audit committee of the Company. She
is also a member of the nomination committee and
remuneration committee of the Company. Ms. Hsu
graduated from The Chinese University of Hong Kong with
a bachelor degree in business administration. Ms. Hsu is
a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a member of the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. She has more
than 20 years’ experience in accounting. Ms. Hsu had
been working with Ernst & Young for 18 years and was a
partner of Ernst & Young before she retired from the firm
in February 2011. Ms. Hsu is currently an independent
non-executive director of Richly Field China Development
Limited (stock code: 313), China Display Optoelectronics
Technology Holdings Limited (stock code: 334), Perfect
Medical Health Management Limited (formerly known as
“Perfect Shape Medical Limited”) (stock code: 1830) and
Beijing Gas Blue Sky Holdings Limited (stock code:
6828), the shares of which are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. Over the past three vyears,
Ms. Hsu was an independent non-executive director of
Harmonicare Medical Holdings Limited (stock code: 1509)
from August 2020 to March 2021, the listing of the
shares of which on the Stock Exchange was cancelled in
March 2021. She was also an independent non-executive
director of Circle International Holdings Limited (stock
code: CCH) from September 2017 to May 2020, which is
listed on the National Stock Exchange of Australia (NSX).

Note: The executive Directors are also the senior management of the
Company.
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Report of the Directors
SEEERE

The Directors present their report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2021 (the “Year”).

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as
an exempted company with limited liability on 13 June
2013 under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.
The Company’s shares were listed on the GEM (“GEM”) of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 7 February 2014 (the “Listing Date”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set
out in Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.
There were no significant changes in the nature of the
Group’s principal activities during the Year.

Business review of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021 as required by Schedule 5 to the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a description
of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group
and an indication of likely future development in the
Group’s business, can be found in the Management
Discussion and Analysis set out on pages 8 to 21 of this
annual report which forms part of this directors’ report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the Year by
operating segment is set out in Note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

To help conserve the environment, the Group has
implemented policies to encourage its employees for the
efficient use of energy and resources. Besides, the Group
has internal control measures in place to ensure that its
processing service providers comply with the relevant
environmental laws and regulations.
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In addition, details regarding the Group’s environmental
policies and performance can be found in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report set out on
pages 42 to 72 of this annual report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) do
not recommend the payment of a dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

There were no movements in the Company’s share capital
during the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December
2021 amounted to approximately HK$478,481,000 (2020:
HK$478,509,000).

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during
the year amounted to HK$60,000 (2020: HK$50,000).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association and there was no
restriction against such rights under the laws of Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities
and non-controlling interests of the Group, as extracted
from the consolidated financial statements of the
Company for the years ended 31 December 2017,
31 December 2018, 31 December 2019, 31 December
2020 and 31 December 2021, is set out on page 164 of
this annual report. This summary does not form part of the
audited financial statements.

Report of the Directors
EEERE

PN BRAEBERBEBREREERRBZFHE - &
RAFERFLI2ET2ENRE HERERR
=l NI

FRERDIK

I

AEBZASERZATINEEE2E KSR -

ApmEgEzeg((E5e ) TAEaRkNEE=
-+ _A=+—BIEFEZRE(=ZZ
ZTFE)

[N

FR - ADTMBRAEE BT -

"] 7k &

ARNFIRZ—_ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HBHAHNIKE
b B #9478,481,000% (= T = T &
478,509,000 7T ) ©

B

TR AEEREENESREGCBRZEEA
60,0008 7T (ZFE ZZ 4 : 50,0008 7T) °

BrEEHE

ARAZABERANYEFBEARBARKL
FIRRARRREZ2REFROCELBEERER
EMASHS AR ES R LT EAENR
i) o

MBERRE

AEBNAMEEREE BERFEERER
FHINAFRFI648 - BHEEH IEHEERR
ABRE_T—tF+-_A=+t—RH ZF—-AN
F+-_A=+t—B ZF-NAF+-A=+—
H —E_EF+t__HA=t—BRZ-ZZ_—%
T-A=T-"BLEFENFAMBRR A
EVTEREEZTBREN D -

BEXxXEERLDE 2021 FiR

79



Report of the Directors
EEERE

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company
did not redeem any of its shares, and neither did the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchase or sell any
of the Company’s shares.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) which was approved and adopted
pursuant to the written resolutions of the sole
Shareholder passed on 20 January 2014 (the “Adoption
Date”). The following is a summary of the principal terms
of the Share Option Scheme. The terms of the Share
Option Scheme are in accordance with the provisions of
Chapter 23 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the GEM (the “GEM Listing Rules”).

(@) Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to
provide the Company with a flexible means of giving
incentive to, rewarding, remunerating, compensating
and/or providing benefits to the Participants (as
defined below) and for such other purposes as the
Board may approve from time to time.

(b) Participants of the Share Option Scheme

On and subject to the terms of the Share Option
Scheme and the requirements of the GEM Listing
Rules, the Board may, at its discretion, invite:

(i) any director of each member of the Group or
of any entity in which any member of the
Group holds any equity interest (“Invested
Entity”);

(i) any employee (whether full-time or part-time) of
each member of the Group or of any Invested
Entity (the “Employee”);

(i) any discretionary objects of a discretionary trust
established by any Employee or any director
of each member of the Group or of any
Invested Entity;
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(iv) a company beneficially owned by any Employee
or any director of each member of the Group
or of any Invested Entity;

(v)  any consultant, professional and other adviser
to each member of the Group or any Invested
Entity (including their employees or executives
or any persons, firms or companies proposed
to be appointed for providing such services);

(vi) any chief executives or substantial shareholders
of the Company;

(vi) any supplier, customer, service provider,
business or joint venture partner, contractor,
of the Group or any Invested Entity; and

(viii) any person who, at the absolute discretion of
the Board, has contributed or may contribute
to the Group or any Invested Entity, provided
that the Board may at its absolute discretion
determine whether or not one falls within the
above categories,

(together, the “Participants” and each a
“Participant”), to take up share options to subscribe
for shares of the Company at a price determined in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme.

In determining the basis of eligibility of each
Participant, the Board would take into account such
factors as the Board may at its discretion consider
appropriate.

Duration and the remaining life of the Share Option
Scheme

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and
effective for a period of 10 years commencing on
the Adoption Date and ending on 19 January 2024.

Report of the Directors
EEERE

vy AEMSREADRTARREE
BHEAEERTANEERAES
MDA F

V) AKREZKERAIEARKREE
B(BREESHTHABSEMH
BZERHEARBEHENAL
B AR MERBAA  BXA
TREAMER

vy ARAFBERFEFETBRABERETER
H

(i) ANEEKEMHIEE T BN TG
B BF - IRGHER - EHRE

SOHEBNE ABE &
(i) EEZE2HNBERETAEEN(E

MR EBRIEH TR A REIE
BERMEMAL HEFSA 2R
MBEREZALTRESHER LE
LI

(L AT ARERAI2EHE]) &
WEERE  WAREBREKRIETNER
REARNTOS -

RREBRSBEENERE EFEHKE
BEFENERA/KENEE -

R AR RE ST I A9 HA PR 1% 1 BR BV B S

BREGFHERMBEHNEFERNAS T+
F E_T_MFE-HA+hB-

BEXxXEERLDE 2021 FiR

81



Report of the Directors
EEERE

Timing for exercising option

The period as the Board may in its absolute
discretion determine and specify in relation to any
particular option holder in his option agreement
during which the option may be exercised (subject
to such restriction on exercisability specified therein),
which shall be not greater than the period
prescribed by the GEM Listing Rules from time to
time (which is, as at the date of adoption of the
Share Option Scheme, a period of 10 years from the
date of the granting of the option).

Acceptance and payment on acceptance of option
offer

The offer of a grant of share options may be
accepted within the period from the date on which
such offer is made by the Board in accordance with
the Share Option Scheme to such date as the
Board may determine and specify in the letter where
such offer is made to a Participant in such form as
the Board may from time to time determine, upon
payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total
by the grantee.

Subscription Price

The subscription price in respect of each Share
issued pursuant to the exercise of options granted
hereunder shall be a price solely determined by the
Board and notified to a Participant and shall be at
least the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on
the date of offer, which must be a business
day;

(i)  a price being the average of the closing price
of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5
business days immediately preceding the date
of offer; and

(i)~ the nominal value of a Share.
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Maximum number of Shares available for
subscription

The total number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company shall not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in issue
immediately following completion of the Placing and
the Capitalisation Issue (as defined in the
prospectus of the Company dated 24 January 2014
(the “Prospectus”)) (being 132,000,000 Shares). The
Company may renew this limit at any time, subject
to shareholders’ approval and the issue of a circular
and in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules
provided that the number of shares to be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under all the share option
schemes does not exceed 30% of the shares in
issue from time to time.

As at the date of this report, the Company had
132,000,000 share options available to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme, which represented
approximately 8.9% of the Company’s shares in
issue as at that date.

Maximum entitlement of Shares of each Participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to each
Participant under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company
(including both exercised and outstanding Options)
in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the
total number of Shares in issue. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to
any of their respective associates, are subject to
approval in advance by the independent non-
executive Directors. In addition, any share options
granted to a substantial Shareholder or an
independent non-executive Director, or to any of
their respective associates, in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time or with
an aggregate value (based on the price of the
Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of
HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are
subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a
general meeting.
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No share option has been granted under the Share
Option Scheme since its adoption.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save for the Share Option Scheme, at no time during the
Year was the Company, its parent company, or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the Year and up to
the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Cheng Wai Tak (suspended)
Mr. Liu Ka Wing (suspended)
Mr. Tse Ka Wing (suspended)
Mr. Chang Huan Chia

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Wong Yik Chung John (suspended)
Mr. Wong Chi Chiu (suspended)

Mr. Kan Man Wai (Acting Chairman)
Mr. Cho Chi Kong

Ms. Hsu Wai Man Helen

By virtue of article 108 of the articles of association of the
Company, Mr. Cheng Wai Tak, Mr. Tse Ka Wing and
Mr. Kan Man Wai will retire by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. Mr. Cheng Wai Tak, Mr. Tse Ka
Wing and Mr. Kan Man Wai will, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
25 September 2020, pending the outcome of the legal
proceedings of the petition dated 25 September 2019
issued by the High Court of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region which was taken out by the
Securities and Futures Commission against certain
directors of the Company, Mr. Cheng Wai Tak, Mr. Liu Ka
Wing, Mr. Tse Ka Wing, Mr. Wong Yik Chung John and
Mr. Wong Chi Chiu have been suspended from their
duties as Directors with effect from 25 September 2020.
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The Company has received annual confirmation of
independence from all the existing independent non-
executive Directors pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM
Listing Rules. As at the date of this report, the Board
considers them to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years,
except terminated by either party giving not less than
three months’ prior written notice to the other. They are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
Company’s annual general meeting in accordance with the
Company’s articles of association.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for
a term of three years, except terminated by not less than
three months’ notice in writing served by either party on
the other. They are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the Company’s annual general meeting.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable
within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

In order to attract and retain high quality staff and to
enable smooth operation within the Group, the Group
offers competitive remuneration packages (with reference
to market conditions and individual qualifications and
experience) and various in-house training courses. The
remuneration packages are subject to review on a regular
basis.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the
remuneration committee of the Company, having regard to
the Group’s operating results, market competitiveness,
individual performance and achievement, to the Board for
determination.

Details of the Directors’ remuneration and the five highest
paid individuals are set out in Note 34 and Note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company, any of its subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or its
parent company was a party and in which a director of
the Company or his connected entities had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the Year or at any time during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association, every
director of the Company shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all
losses or liabilities which he may sustain or incur in or
about the execution of the duties of his office or
otherwise in relation thereto. The Company maintains
directors and officers liability insurance, which gives
appropriate cover for any legal action brought against its
directors. The level of the coverage is reviewed annually.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior
management are set out on pages 73 to 77 of this annual
report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT
LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the Year, there was no material breach of or non-
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by
the Group.

COMPETING INTERESTS

Based on the information available to the Company and
within the knowledge and belief of the Directors, none of
the Directors or the controlling shareholders of the
Company (as defined under the GEM Listing Rules) have
any business or interest which competes or may compete
with the business of the Group, or have any other conflict
of interest which any such person has or may have with
the Group throughout the year ended 31 December
2021.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS
IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2021, interests and short positions in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”)) held by the Directors and chief
executives of the Company which have been notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which were taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO) or have been
entered in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise have
been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the standard of dealings by directors set out
in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules were as
follows:
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Long positions in shares of the Company: RAEAQXFTRMGHER :
Percentage of
the Company’s
Number of issued share
Name of Director Capacity shares held capital
¥ NS
EsnR 87} ARG EE RAE D
Mr. Cheng Wai Tak Interest in controlled corporation 928,427,151 62.24%
BB E R EE R (Note) (Fff &%)
Beneficial owner 2,220,000 0.15%
EnEE A
925,647,151 62.39%
Mr. Kan Man Wai Beneficial owner 320,000 0.02%
LSy EmEB A
Note: B 5

These 923,427,151 shares are held by Winful Enterprises Limited (“Winful
Enterprises”), which in turn is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Cheng
Wai Tak. As such, Mr. Cheng Wai Tak is deemed under the SFO to be
interested in these 923,427,151 shares held by Winful Enterprises.

7% 923,427,151 % i% 5 BB Winful Enterprises Limited ([ Winful
Enterprises |) #74 » MWinful Enterprises B Z8 &£ 2 & &
BEnilEa Al BEIFHFRPBEGKN BEELEHER
M Winful EnterprisesFT# 8 B :% £923,427 151 I 5 R #H
M o

BEXxXEERLDE 2021 FiR

87



88

Report of the Directors
EEERE

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none
of the Directors and chief executives of the Company had
registered an interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
required to be entered in the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or which
were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the standard of dealings by
directors set out in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS
IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

So far as the Directors are aware, as at 31 December
2021, other than the Directors and chief executives of the
Company, the following persons/entities have an interest
or a short position in the shares or the underlying shares
of the Company which were required to be disclosed to
the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO or which were required to be recorded in the
register of the Company required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO:

Long position in shares of the Company

Name Nature of interests

=r R E

Winful Enterprises
BEEERHEAR

Note: Mr. Cheng Wai Tak is deemed under the SFO to be interested in
these 923,427,151 shares held by Winful Enterprises.
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Directly beneficially owned
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Percentage of
the Company’s
Number of issued share
shares held capital
PANETIEE - Y
FRERGOEE BRAB D
923,427,151 62.24%

(Note) (Bff 5% )

MisE: BIBEZESHRBEED - 823 % £ %8 B %A Winful
Enterprises$¥ B # i% 5923,427,1518% B% 19 & % A #
%o



Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, no
other person had any interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which were
required to be disclosed to the Company under Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were required to
be recorded in the register of the Company required to be
kept under section 336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the Year.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, sales to the
Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 51.1% (2020: 50.6%) of the total sales for
the year and sales to the largest customer included
therein amounted to approximately 22.2% (2020: 17.5%).
Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 95.7% (2020: 89.5%) of the
total purchases for the year and purchase from the
largest supplier included therein amounted to
approximately 81.3% (2020: 66.4%).

None of the Directors, their close associates or any
shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns more than 5% of the number of issued shares of
the Company) had an interest in these major suppliers or
customers.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The material related party transactions in relation to the
key management personnel remuneration and the
guarantee provided by a director as disclosed in Note
32(c) and Note 32(d) to the consolidated financial
statements respectively are connected transactions
exempt from reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 20 of
the GEM Listing Rules.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float
required by the GEM Listing Rules as at the date of this
report.

COMPLIANCE OF NON-COMPETITION
UNDERTAKING

All the independent non-executive Directors were
delegated with the authority to review on an annual basis
the compliance with the non-competition undertaking
given by each of Mr. Cheng Wai Tak and Winful
Enterprises, the controlling shareholders of the Company
(collectively, the “Covenantors”) in favour of the Company
dated 20 January 2014 (the “Non-Competition Deed”).
The Covenantors have provided to the Company all
information necessary for the annual review by the
independent non-executive Directors and the Covenantors
have confirmed to the Company that each of the
Covenantors and his/its associates has not breached the
terms of the undertakings contained in the Non-
Competition Deed. All independent non-executive
Directors confirmed that they are not aware of any non-
compliance with the Non-Competition Deed by the
Covenantors during the Year.

Details of the Non-Competition Deed have been set out in

the section headed “Relationship with Controlling
Shareholders” of the Prospectus.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into during the Year or
subsisted at the end of the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the corporate governance practices adopted by
the Company are set out in the Corporate Governance
Report on pages 22 to 41 of this annual report.

Perfect Opftronics Limited Annual Report 2021
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited
by PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire at the forth
coming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company to re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers as
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Perfect Optronics Limited

Kan Man Wai
Acting Chairman
Hong Kong, 22 March 2022
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

M A% BAD

i
pwec

To the Shareholders of Perfect Optronics Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Perfect Optronics
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
which are set out on pages 100 to 163, comprise:

° the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2021;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for
the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statement,
which include significant accounting polices and
other explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 December 2021, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(“the Code”), and we have fulfiled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised
as follows:

° Inventory provision

° Valuation of financial asset at fair value through profit
or loss

Independent Auditor’'s Report
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Key Audit Matter
HRETSR

Inventory provision

FEMERRE

Refer to Note 2.12, Note 4.1(a) and Note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.
BLMEAMBRERNE2.12 ~ i 5E4.1(a) R HI5E20 °

As at 31 December 2021, the Group held inventories
of HK$43,125,000. As described in the accounting
policies in Note 2.12 to the consolidated financial
statements, inventories are carried at the lower of
cost and net realisable value (“NRV”).
RZBE-_—F+-_A=+—8  BEX£EEEEFE
43,125,000/ 7T ° AN 4R & B IS IR & I E2. 12 51
AT - FEIRKAR R AT IRFE ([] #3357 FE])
MEZBIREFIR -

The Group operates in a market where new product
releases are regular. There is a risk that inventories
held will be sold below cost or become obsolete in
light of technological advancement and changing
market conditions. There is inherent judgement in the
levels of sales and the selling price the directors
forecast when assessing the NRV.
EEERKENTSTMENERED - ALMAHF
EREHANERKANER D EREARRERET
MEEBMBRER - RAFEAZRFER  EFH
HEKFREEBNEAFERS B -

Management calculates the NRV at each period end
based on the estimated selling price less cost to sell,
which requires significant judgements and
assumptions to be made to determine the estimated
selling price of individual products of similar nature
and expectation of future sales based on current
market conditions and available information. The
estimations are also subject to uncertainty as a result
of future changes of market trends, customer
demands and technology development.

REEEAR R - 12 ERIR (5 E B R H S B AN Gt
HAEHHE BETREAMEMNERGFSER T2
EH BRI R BFH - AR ESTERARERT
TMRANAIBERNETE - AANTXENTSBE  TFF
ﬁ&ﬂ&%@%*%ﬁ@ﬁéi%$%iﬁ%%@

|| o

Perfect Opftronics Limited Annual Report 2021

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RN BT NAEEREARENSE

We understood, evaluated and tested relevant
controls over management’s estimation of NRV and
periodic reviews of inventory obsolescence and
assessed the inherent risk of material misstatement
by considering the degree of estimation uncertainty
and level of other inherent risk factors such as
complexity, subjectively, changes and susceptibility to
management bias or fraud;

BMER FERASNEBEBYNER FENMGE
REFEEREETERBRANEMEZERERE  IEEMG
T EEERMEERBRER(MERE =8
M BEEE IR E SCIEFA AT AR M) B K% - DAY
HERERRMEEE R -

We performed retrospective review by comparing
previous estimates to actual outcome. We evaluated
the outcome of prior period assessment of inventory
provision to assess the effectiveness of
management’s estimation process;
BMBALRENGRERARET TRENLS
& o HMFHE L — SR TFERBEOMEGER - ARG
EREMFHARENF ML

In relation to the types of products which had
material balances as at year end, we challenged the
assumptions applied by management on using the
historical sales data which reflected the expected life
cycle of similar products as the basis to estimate
their future sales. We reconsidered these
assumptions appropriate based on the Group’s
historical sales pattern.

ARFREEREHRNERBAEMS  RAZER
EREMEANRR  ZEFRIEARBRFAEE®
B AN BEHERBRERGAERKRBEENE
£-RE SEEEBENHEESX  RMADRRZE

BREBHEE -



Key Audit Matter
HRETSR

Inventory provision (Continued)

FEMAERREE)

We focused on this area because the estimation of
NRV is subject to high degree of estimation
uncertainty. The inherent risk in relation to the
impairment assessment of inventory is considered
significant due to subjectivity of significant
assumptions used and significant judgements
involved in selecting data.

HREET AT 2R FEAESENMGEATHEEN &
BMEIRLES BRERBBERAEANERX
BE;MBEAHABGEAFEH L FERETENES

FERERLSBERX -
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RN BT NAEERARENSE

We further discussed with management to
understand the additional factors that were
considered relevant based on the current market
conditions that may require adjustments to the
historical sales pattern for both the price and the
quantity of the selected products and obtained
evidence for these explanations. We independently
evaluated the relevance of these factors and
evidence supporting the estimation of the NRV by
using our industry knowledge and external market
analysis and found them to be reasonable. We
further tested, on a sample basis, by comparing the
estimated selling price and sales quantity with post
year-end sales data of the selected products and
found the estimated selling price and sales quantity
in the NRV assessment to be within reasonable
ranges.
BT E IR B — WOUNTHEREARER
ﬂ%%ﬁmﬁmﬁﬁlﬁ magedEEHmERE
EWFW&QEWEE%EEMWﬁM% LA R 3t
% 5 B R EUIS 58 4% o BT LA B AT B0 17 SR G e D
TSP MBI EZERAZNHERE R A
ﬁ@@%ﬁm B URREBEIE - RAE—TE
AR UAAAEEREEEMEERNFLE
HENHESBUBELER WL # ﬁ@ﬁ%ﬁ$
WEAEERHEBAEEHE -

Based on the work performed, we considered that
the inventory provided was in line with the Group’s
policy and was supportable by historical market
trends, customer demands, technology development
as well as management’s expectations for future
sales and inventory management plans.
EREMEATHIE RMBR/MAFRNOTE R
ESE=Y ﬁ%EWﬁ%’ﬁﬁLﬁm%% CBF®
KOBRERALREEBEUARRHEENTERREFE
EIRET &IPS o
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Key Audit Matter
HRETSR

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RN BT NAEEREARENSE

Valuation of financial asset at fair value through profit or loss

EfRAABEFABREZEREE

Refer to Note 3.3, Note 4.1(b) and Note 19 to the
consolldated financial statements. ‘
BB T EHRARM S M4 10) R FE19 -

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has an unlisted
investment of HK$38,461,000 measured at fair value
through profit or loss, using market information and
significant unobservable inputs.
R_EBZ—F+_A=1+T—H FNAmHSERLE
I EREARE . EXEBEFRAAEBETA
18 %5 B 3F £ T $% & 38,461,000 JT °

The Group has an engaged external appraiser to
assess the fair value of the unlisted investment. The
appraised value is based on valuation model.
Because of the limited comparable transactions in the
market, it is challenging to validate the appraisal
values and therefore inherent risks in the appraised
value remain.

EEEC AT EMAEZEFELTEREZA
REE- -TEBEIDUGEEERSEE - ARMS
AR5 ER  RENGEEEREE - FULaT
HEEFEERS AR -

We focused on this area because the estimation of
the fair value is subject to high degree of estimation
uncertainty. The inherent risk in relation to the
valuation of financial asset at fair value through profit
or loss is considered significant due to subjectivity of
significant assumptions used.
Eﬂﬁéﬂﬁ{%@wﬁﬂ?ﬁ%@ﬁ’ﬂﬁﬁTﬁﬁém M
BB ITRLES AR AEREER Eﬁ{&ﬁ
M BAR EfEEJr)\TEﬁT&Z@EﬂéFE’JIEH 2 1R
RRBEKX -

Perfect Opftronics Limited Annual Report 2021

We understood, evaluated and tested the operating
effectiveness of related controls to determine that
appropriate oversight from directors had been
exercised within the valuations process and assessed
the inherent risk of material misstatement by
considering the degree of estimation uncertainty and
level of other inherent risk factors such as
complexity, subjectively, changes and susceptibility to
management bias or fraud.

BT RE - R RORI SR B B IR R B AE R - AR TE
EEENHEBETFELEENES W EEMGT
WA EE REMERREREZ(EHEN - T8
g5 gﬁfﬁ%tﬁkﬁﬂ’]ﬂ g1E) BKF - AEEE
K88 BR R 6 [E B R B

As the valuation of the unlisted investment required
significant estimates and reliance on external
valuation, we assessed the objectivities,
independences and expertise of the external
appraiser.

HRIFELMIREZIEERTEEAGE KB INELE
TE RPN MM F B BT REE

In addition, we also assessed both the
methodologies and assumptions used by
management in the calculation of the year end fair
value by the following procedures:

N BT EE BB EFRAABEMAY
AERBE  BFOT:

e FEvaluated the methodologies and key
assumptions used in valuation models by
comparing the assumptions used against
appropriate benchmarks and investigated
significant differences, challenging the
appropriateness of the pricing multiples available
from comparable companies and assessing
sensitivities to assumptions.
HM%TE%-?MWHZH&%&I;&EJ“ C FHERK
Ffr {58 AR &) fRR AR B ﬁ?.c".??ahtt?? JEERER -
;T“Jtt? AN EEBEGEERE rAéé?%HjE%i&
AR EBRRE -

e Tested the data integrity for the valuation models.

HEERANER T EREFETAH -
e Used our valuation expert to perform independent

assessments.

MARMOEESZSFETE LT -
Based on the work performed, we considered the
assumptions used above all fell within an acceptable
range.
EREHTNIE RARA LMEHEANBRE
HERAEXEE -



OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises all of
the information included in the annual report other than
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.
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° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Ng Ka Ho.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 22 March 2022

Independent Auditor’'s Report
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Consolidated STdTemen’r of Comprehensive Income

e HERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_Z-_-—F+_-_A=+—RALEFE

2020
—E_THF
Note HK$'OO_O
B 5E FAT
Revenue A 5, 6 528,350 206,973
Cost of sales 5 B AR 8 (510,795) (189,869)
Gross profit %ﬂ 17,555 17,104
Other (losses)/gains, net Hih(F18) W F58 7 (19,486) 3,256
Distribution and selling expenses % 8 M 85 & F X2 8 (15,843) (10,119)
General and administrative — & 1T BZ %
expenses 8 (25,472) (26,747)
Research and development MREEEERX
expenses 8 (1,301) (1,394)
Operating loss KR (44,547) (17,900)
Finance income B 75 YL A 36 31
Finance costs W% &R (496) (678)
Finance costs, net W5 B A FE 10 (460) (647)
Loss before income tax MRETEBATE R (45,007) (18,547)
Income tax (expense)/credit AP %D 11 (79) 17
Loss for the year FEEIE (45,086) (18,530)
Other comprehensive income/  HtZ2mEUWE,~ (BiE):
(loss):
Iltem that may be subsequently — [& & ] & 7 5 48
reclassified to income Wz .28 5
statement
Currency translation differences SN & =58 53 86
Item that will not be subsequently F&{&-T & & # 48 2
reclassified to income Wz zE A
statement
Change in value of financial asset 1% 7% /i (B{E 7T A K fth
at fair value through other FEHKNGE EREE
comprehensive income EBEEEZE (224) (797)
Total comprehensive loss FEXEEBRAE
for the year (45,257) (19,241)
Loss for the year attributable to: FEEEREBER :
Equity holders of the Company KA & # fm?-rﬁ A (43,857) (16,883
Non-controlling interests FEVERR R A (1,229) (1,647)
(45,086) (18,530)
Total comprehensive loss for the EE 2 HE B &
year attributable to: BER:
Equity holders of the Company ZARQAF#ERER A (44,051) (17,586)
Non-controlling interests IEERR R A (1,206) (1,655)
(45,257) (19,241)
Basic and diluted loss per share SREA R #EEHE
(HK cents) (L) 12 (2.96) (1.14)
The above consolidated statement of comprehensive LA L#RA 2 EWHREBEN I E—HEE

income should be read

accompanying notes.

in conjunction with the

Perfect Optronics Limited Annual Report 2021



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B A AR R

As at 31 December 2021
RZBEZ—F+=ZA=+—H

2021 2020
—E_—F —E-F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B = FET FAT
Assets EE
Non-current assets kREBEE
Property, plant and equipment  #1% - B E L& & 14 259 835
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 15 5,565 9,867
Intangible assets ﬁEﬂ>E§F§ 16 5,322 5,322
Deferred income tax assets LS HEE 26 94 171
Financial asset at fair value BRRA S BEE AR
through other comprehensive TEKE 2 H
income BE 18 1,652 1,876
Financial asset at fair value EARrEEFAEBERE
through profit or loss L EREE 19 38,461 59,547
51,353 77,618
Current assets REBEE
Inventories ey 20 43,125 31,904
Trade and other receivables FEWER S /T/\ KE M
JE Wk 21 12,760 34,007
Cash and cash equivalents fﬁ@&fﬁu@%{gﬁ% 22 88,512 76,403
144,397 142,314
Total assets EEHRE 195,750 219,932
Equity and liabilities EnRAE
Equity attributable to equity EATEFEEEAERN
holders of the Company R
Share capital & 7 23 14,837 14,837
Reserves & 116,167 116,361
(Accumulated losses)/retained (REtEB1B) B1F
earnings W 2= (23,694) 20,163
R 107310 . 151,361
Non-controlling interests FIERER (1,451) (245)
Total equity DB 105,859 151,116

BEXEARLDA 2021 F£F
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e M BRR R

As at 31 December 2021
RZBEZ—F+=ZA=+—H

2021 2020
—E-—f T -TF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5% FE T FE T
Liabilities =R
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Bank loan RITER 25 5,205 -
Lease liabilities HEA®E 15 1,813 7,191
S rote et
Current liabilities REBAEE
Trade and other payables JE AT BR SR 2 oAt
FE 5P 3K 24 78,358 57,253
Bank loan RITER 25 683 -
Lease liabilities HEAE 15 3,832 4,372
R 82873 | 61,625
Tollabiites  Ame® 8891 68,816
Total equity and liabilities EERBEEHE 195,750 219,932

The consolidated financial statements on pages 100 to Z1002163E MGG M BREEN T ==
163 were approved by the Board of Directors on 22 ZA-+ " HHEZEeH i TRXEESH
March 2022 and were signed on its behalf. Eo

Chang Huan Chia Hsu Wai Man Helen

RiER BREH
Director Director
EF EZE

The above consolidated statement of financial position A F4RA& Bk R EEBEM T — R E -
should be read in conjunction with the accompanying
notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GmeEs

% 8 %

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=1+—BLEE
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
ARARERAARLER
(GER)] (Note 2)
(W&t1) (H&2)
Retained
earnings/ Non-
Share Share Other Merger Revaluation  Exchange (accumulated controlling Total
capital premium  Reserves reserve reserve reserve losses) Total EENY equity
Bk
Rx  REEE Hthk  AKRE  ERRE  EXRE (RHER) B FRREE ERER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TR TER TER TR TER TR TER TER
Balance at 1 January 2021 ZE--%-f-H
33 14837 465,738 67349 (415,675) (730) (321) 20,163 151,361 (045) 151,116
Comprehensive loss 2EEE
Loss for the year FEFE - - - - - - (43,857) (43,857) (1,229) (45,086)
Other comprehensive income/ ~ Ef2EMhE/
(loss) (B8)
Currency translation differences SN HEEE - - - - - 30 - 30 23 53
Change i value of financial asset &2 A BEFAZMZ
at fair value through other AhEZEREE
comprehensive income EEEY - - - - (224) - - (224) - (224)
Total other comprehensive E2EME/
income/(loss) (BB aE - - - - (224) 30 - (194) 23 (171)
Total comprehensive loss 2EFRAE - - - - (224) 30 (43,857) (44,051) (1,206) (45,257)
Balance at 31 December 2021 ZF=-£+Zf
=t-REH 14837 465738 67349 (415675) (954) (291) (23694) 107,310 (1451) 105859

BxXEARAF 2021 FR
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
ReRRBHX

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_Z-_-—F+_-_A=+—RALEFE
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
FRAERHAAREES

(Note 1) (Note 2)
(M&1) (Mzk2)
Non-
Share Share Other Merger  Revaluation  Exchange Retained controlling Total
capital premium  Reserves reserve reserve reserve eamings Total interests equity

B REE  E6EE  AKER  EEEE ELRE  EFME it FERES  EERE
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$'0O00  HK$'000  HK$O000  HKS$000  HKS000  HK$'000
TEL  TEm TRz TET  TET  TEx TET  TET  TET  TER

Balance at 1 January 2020 —Z-F%-A-H

33 14,837 465738 67,349 (415,675 67 (415) 37,046 168,947 1410 170,357
Comprehensive loss 2EER
Loss for the year FERE - - - - - - (16,883 (16,883 (1647)  (18530)
Other comprehensive income/ E 1 2E W%,/
(loss) (&%)
Currency tranglation differences  SMNEH &= - - - - - % - % ] 86

Change in value of financial ~ #2A % BEFALL
asset at fair value through 2EhEZER
other comprehensive EEEEEY
income - - - - (797) - - (797) - (797)

Total other comprehensive Eth2EkE/
income/(loss) (BB es - - - - (797) 94 - (703) @ (111)

Balance at 31 December 2020 —Z=F%+=8

=t-HEH 14,837 465,738 67,349 (415,675) (730) (321) 20,163 151,361 (245) 151,116
Notes: B 5
1 Other reserves include: (1) the difference between the share capital 1 HEmEHEeFE: WREAAG Lm#ETHEA(E
issued by the Company for acquisition of the subsidiaries pursuant M) ARFBRKEHBEARBBITHRARREAR
to a reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) for the listing of the BHBENHNBRARZEEANEZE RQTKLR
Company and the aggregate capital of the subsidiaries being EHEHRIERRRBEZERSRE -

acquired at the time of the Reorganisation; and (2) the amount of
the loan waived by the controlling shareholder upon completion of
a common control combination.

2 Revaluation reserve represents fair value reserve for financial asset 2 EEFEENERAABEFAEMZAREZE2/ME
at fair value through other comprehensive income. ENARBERE-

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity W F4GARZEBREEBEHHE—HEE -
should be read in conjunction with the accompanying
notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE_ZTZ-_— &+ _-_A=+—RALEE

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-THF
Note HK$’000 HK$ 000
Bt & FTHET FATT
Cash flows from operating RETHNHRERE
activities
Cash generated from operations #& & FT15IR & 28 11,681 12,106
Income tax recovered HﬁZ@Fﬁ S - 4
Interest paid =ENElES! (27) -
Payments of interest element of X {3 TE&E1 RSN
lease liabilities 15, 28 (469) (678)
Net cash generated from KETEESEEFRS
operating activities 11,185 11,432
Cash flows from investing RETHNRESRE
activities
Purchase of property, plant and B EW¥ - HE L& H
equipment 14 (91) (33)
Proceeds from disposal of HEME BEREE
property, plant and equipment kG ﬁy’( 9 -
Interest received 2B 36 31
Net cash used in investing KREEEHMAFERS®
activities (46) @)
Cash flows from financing METHNRESRE
activities
Proceeds from bank loan IRITERFTBRIE 28 6,000 —
Repayments of bank loan BERITER (112) -
Payments of principal element of % fi ﬁ%ﬁ%$fﬂ%%ﬁﬁ
lease liabilities 15, 28 (4,984) (5,465)

Net cash generated from/(used in) Bt & EZ8 RS, (FTA)
financing activities FHRE 904 (5,465)

Net increase in cash and cash BERKRLZEYIE N

equivalents FE 12,043 5,965
Cash and cash equivalents at FUREMRESEEY

beginning of year 76,403 70,308
Exchange differences on cash and & RIR ¢ EEWE X

cash equivalents E 66 130

Cash and cash equivalents at FFREERBREEEY
end of year 22 88,512 76,403

o

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should NEREREREREREM K E—GHE
be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R Y R

1

GENERAL INFORMATION

Perfect Optronics Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 13 June
2013, as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law (as Revised) of the
Cayman lIslands. The address of its registered office
is Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, PO Box 1350,
Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman lIslands. The
Company’s shares are listed on the GEM of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The Company is an investment holding company
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are
principally engaged in trading, development and sale
of display and optics products and related electronic
components, as well as trading of other products.
The Group also processes some of the products
which it sells.

These consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand
(“HK$’000”), unless otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant
accounting policies adopted in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented, unless otherwise stated. The
consolidated financial statements are for the Group
consisting of Perfect Optronics Limited and its
subsidiaries.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the
Group have been prepared in accordance with
all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap.
622. The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on a historical cost basis,
except for financial asset at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) and
financial asset at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL”) which have been measured at
fair value.
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2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of financial

statements in

conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of

certain critical accounting estimates.
requires management

It also
to exercise its

judgement in the process of applying the

Group’s accounting policies.

The areas

involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

@)

(b)

Amended standards adopted by the
Group

The Group has applied the following
amended standards for the first time for
its annual reporting period commencing
on 1 January 2021:

° HKFRS 16 (Amendments) — Covid-
19-Related Rent Concessions

° HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, and HKFRS
7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16
(Amendments) — Interest Rate
Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

The amendments listed above did not
have any impact on the amounts
recognised in prior periods and are not
expected to significantly affect the
current or future periods.

New and amended standards issued but
not yet adopted by the Group

Certain new and amended standards
have been published that are not
mandatory for this reporting period and
have not been early adopted by the
Group. The Group has already
commenced an assessment of the
impact of adoption of these new and
amended standards to the Group but is
not yet in a position to state whether
any substantial change to the Group’s
accounting policies and presentation of
the financial statements will result.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 7% 3R R Bt 5

)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2

2.3

Principles of consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an
entity when the Group is exposed to, or has
rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power to direct the
activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used
to account for business combinations by the
Group.

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and
equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of financial
position respectively.

Business combinations

Except for the Reorganisation and business
combinations under common control, the
Group applies the acquisition method to
account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of
a subsidiary comprises the:

° fair values of the assets transferred

° liabilities incurred to the former owners of
the acquired business

° equity interests issued by the Group
° fair value of any asset or liability resulting

from a contingent consideration
arrangement, and

Perfect Opftronics Limited Annual Report 2021
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2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

Business combinations (Continued)

° fair value of any pre-existing equity
interest in the subsidiary

|dentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are, with limited exceptions,
measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises any
non-controlling interest in the acquired entity
on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net
identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

The excess of the:
° consideration transferred,

° amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquired entity, and

° acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those
amounts are less than the fair value of the net
identifiable assets of the business acquired,
the difference is recognised directly in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as a bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash
consideration is deferred, the amounts payable
in the future are discounted to their present
value as at the date of exchange. The
discount rate used is the entity’s incremental
borrowing rate, being the rate at which a
similar borrowing could be obtained from an
independent financier under comparable terms
and conditions. Contingent consideration is
classified either as equity or a financial liability.
Amounts classified as a financial liability are
subsequently remeasured to fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FE M BRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Business combinations (Continued)

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the
acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising
from such remeasurement are recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income.

2.4 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of

subsidiaries are accounted for

Company on the basis of dividend received

and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a
dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary in the period the dividend
declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements

exceeds the carrying amount

consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

2.5 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker.

chief operating decision-maker,

responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the
directors, who make strategic decisions.

Perfect Optronics Limited Annual Report 2021

2

2.3

2.4

2.5

TESHHEBE(H)

EBE o (H)

fifs %5 & 0f 2 & BEAT - RIBEE 5
%m%ﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁh$% YN
BEOHNEmEANNERRENR
RRBEFE - EAEZBAEHF
g?i%%ﬁ&%%#mé%ﬁ%
R R

BYMBHEER

R B R B 2 & E R AR RE
AR -ANBREREZEEZRE
A BARZEBEEARRE R
BARE KR ERERBARK-

=3

1B R A2 BB BB B R
SR EN ‘T;Zi & ek 4
ﬁEﬁi%%ﬁ%Z&ﬁ%
HERA M B RERARRIRE
éé@ﬁ%ﬂﬁ?@Z%ﬁ
ARBMZFERE 2R EE
1B QA B ETTIRE R

o I+
Nﬁﬂﬁﬁ

PWE D B R
mﬂ@

§\I\bl1rF
M

E=[1
o
o

N

i)

KREDHMHOEHmRS AN EFHFELE
REEZRABREH SR — B o
BEEKERREARE DR ERMT
Vﬂw*‘$m%ﬁ I 7 T & 1F
RESERENES -

ok

B ==4

I

Fl



2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation

@)

®)

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial
statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in HK$, which
is the Company’s functional and the
Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are
translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions or valuation
where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the
consolidated statement of
comprehensive income within “other
(losses)/gains, net”.

Non-monetary items that are measured
at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value was
determined. Translation differences on
assets and liabilities carried at fair value
are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss. For example, translation
differences on non-monetary assets and
liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss are
recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income as part of the
fair value gain or loss and translation
differences on non-monetary assets such
as equities classified as fair value
through other comprehensive income are
recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FE M BRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(©

Group companies

The results and financial position of all
the Group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency
as follows:

o assets and liabilities for each
statement of financial position
presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position,

° income and expenses for each
income statement are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this
average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the
transactions), and

° all resulting currency translation
differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences
arising from the translation of any net
investment in foreign entities, and of
borrowings and other financial
instruments designated as hedges of
such investments, are recognised in
other comprehensive income. When a
foreign operation is sold or any
borrowings forming part of the net
investment are repaid, the associated
exchange differences are reclassified to
profit or loss, as part of the gain or loss
on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments
arising on the acquisition of a foreign
entity are treated as assets and liabilities
of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6

2.7

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(d) Disposal of foreign operation

On the disposal of a foreign operation
(that is, a disposal of the Group’s entire
interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, a disposal involving loss of
joint control over a joint venture that
includes a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associate that includes
a foreign operation), all of the currency
translation differences accumulated in
equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the
company are reclassified to the
consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their cost to their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold Over the shorter of
improvements the term of the
leases or 5 years
Moulds and machinery 2-5 years
Furniture and office 3-5 years
equipment
Motor vehicles 4-5 years
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.7

2.8

2.9

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the
end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing the proceeds with the carrying
amount and are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income within “other (losses)/gains, net”.

Intangible assets

Club memberships

Club memberships with indefinite useful life are
stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful
life are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment, or more
frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be
impaired. Other assets are tested for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows which are
largely independent of the cash inflows from
other assets or group of assets (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at the end of each reporting
period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Investments and other financial assets

@)

(b)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets
in the following measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently
at fair value (either through other
comprehensive income or through
profit or loss), and

° those to be measured at amortised
cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the
financial assets and the contractual
terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains
and losses will either be recorded in
profit or loss or other comprehensive
income. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading,
this will depend on whether the Group
has made an irrevocable election at the
time of initial recognition to account for
the equity investment at FVOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt investments
when and only when its business model
for managing those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on trade-
date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial assets have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FE M BRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Investments and other financial assets

(Continued)
(c) Measurement
At initial recognition, the Group

measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at FVTPL, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at FVTPL are expensed in the
consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Financial assets with embedded
derivatives are considered in their
entirety when determining whether their
cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt investments

Subsequent measurement of debt
instruments depends on the Group’s
business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the
asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

° Amortised cost: Assets that are
held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is
included in finance income using
the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition is recognised directly
in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income and
presented in “other (losses)/gains,
net” together with foreign
exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented as
separate line item in the
consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

(©

Measurement (Continued)

Debt investments (Continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows
and for selling the financial assets,
where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are
measured at FVOCI. Movements in
the carrying amount are taken
through other comprehensive
income, except for the recognition
of impairment gains or losses,
interest income and foreign
exchange gains and losses which
are recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive
income. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gains
or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is
reclassified from equity to profit or
loss and recognised in other
(losses)/gains, net. Interest income
from these financial assets is
included in finance income using
the effective interest rate method.
Foreign exchange gains and losses
are presented in other (losses)/
gains, net and impairment
expenses are presented as
separate line item in the
consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

FVTPL: Assets that do not meet the
criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI
are measured at FVTPL. A gain or
loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVTPL
is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive
income and presented within “other
(losses)/gains, net” in the period in
which it arises.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FE M BRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

(©

(@

Measurement (Continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all
equity investments at fair value. Where
the Group’s management has elected to
present fair value gains and losses on
equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value
gains and losses to profit or loss
following the derecognition of the
investment. Dividends from such
investments continue to be recognised in
the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as other income
when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial
assets at FVTPL are recognised in other
(losses)/gains, net in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as
applicable. Impairment losses (and
reversal of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at FVOCI are not
reported separately from other changes
in fair value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward
looking basis the expected credit losses
associated with its debt instruments
carried at amortised cost and FVOCI.
The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies
the simplified approach permitted by
HKFRS 9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from
initial recognition of the receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

212

2.13

2.14

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts, and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using
the weighted average method. The cost of
finished goods and work in progress
comprises raw materials and other direct
costs. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of
business, the estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from
customers for merchandise sold or services
performed in the ordinary course of business.
If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets. Trade and
other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less allowance for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the
consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents include cash on hand,
deposits held at call with banks, other short-
term, highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.15

2.16

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods
and services provided to the Group prior to
the end of financial year which are unpaid.
Trade and other payables are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one
year or less (or in the normal operating cycle
of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities. Trade and
other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost. Any
difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.
Fees paid on the establishment of loan
facilities are recognised as transaction costs of
the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down.
In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-
down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of
the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.17

2.19

Borrowings (Continued)

Borrowings are removed from the
consolidated statement of financial position
when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of a
financial liability that has been extinguished or
transferred to another party and the
consideration paid, including any non-cash
assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the end of the reporting period.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income in the period in which they are
incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the
period is the tax payable on the current
period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction
adjusted by changes in deferred income tax
assets and liabilities attributable to temporary
differences and to unused tax losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FE M BRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

@)

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is
calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the
statement of financial position date in the
countries where the Group operates and
generates taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided, using
the liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred income
tax liabilities are not recognised if they
arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the end of the
reporting period and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are
recognised only if it is probable that
future taxable amounts will be available
to utilise those temporary differences and
losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities
are not recognised for temporary
differences between the carrying amount
and tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the company is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable
that the differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities
are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current income
tax assets and liabilities and when the
deferred income tax balances relate to
the same taxation authority. Current
income tax assets and liabilities are
offset where the entity has a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Current and deferred income tax is
recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is
also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

2.20 Employee benefits

@)

Pension obligations

The Group pays contributions to defined
contribution plans in Hong Kong and
Taiwan. The schemes are generally
funded through payments to separate
trustee-administered funds, determined
by periodic calculations.

A defined contribution plan is a pension
plan under which the Group pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity. The
Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions if
the fund does not hold sufficient assets
to pay all employees the benefits relating
to employee service in the current and
prior periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

)

2

B 7% 3R R Bt 5

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Employee benefits (Continued)

@)

(b)

()

Pension obligations (Continued)

The Group pays contributions to
administered pension plans on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary
basis. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have
been paid. The contributions are
recognised as employee benefit
expenses when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset
to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in the future payments is
available.

The Group also contributes on a monthly
basis to defined contribution retirement
benefit plans organised by relevant
municipal and provincial governments in
the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”). The municipal and provincial
governments undertake to assume the
retirement benefit obligations payable to
all existing and future retired employees
for post-retirement benefits beyond the
contributions made. The assets of these
plans are held separately from those of
the Group in independently administered
funds managed by the PRC government.
Contributions to these plans are
expensed as incurred.

Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus payments
wholly due within 12 months after the
balance sheet date are recognised as a
liability where the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a
result of services rendered by employees
and a reliable estimate of the obligation
can be made.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave
are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a
result of services rendered by employees
up to the statement of financial position
date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until
the time of leave.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.21

2.22

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events; it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and the amount can be reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar
obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will
be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to anyone
item included in the same class of obligations
may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value
of the expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to
the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expenses.

Revenue recognition

(a) Sales of goods

Sales of goods are recognised when
control of the products has transferred,
being when the products are delivered to
the customer, the customer has full
discretion over the products, and there
is no unfulfilled obligation that could
affect the customer’s acceptance of the
products. Delivery occurs when the
products have been shipped to the
specified location, the risks of
obsolescence and loss have been
transferred to the customer, and either
the customer has accepted the products
in accordance with the sales contract,
the acceptance provisions have lapsed,
or the Group has objective evidence that
all criteria for acceptance have been
satisfied.

A receivable is recognised when the
goods are delivered as this is the point
in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage
of time is required before the payment is
due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 7% 3R R Bt 5

)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(b) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time
proportion basis using the effective
interest method.

2.23 Earnings per share

(@) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by
dividing:

the profit attributable to owners of
the Company, excluding any costs
of servicing equity other than
ordinary shares

by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during
the financial year, adjusted for
bonus elements in ordinary shares
issued during the vyear and
excluding treasury shares.

(b)  Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the
figures used in the determination of basic
earnings per share to take into account:

2.24 Leases

the after-income tax effect of
interest and other financing costs
associated with dilutive potential
ordinary shares, and

the weighted average number of
additional ordinary shares that
would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.

The Group leases various properties. Rental
contracts are typically made for fixed periods
of 2 to 6 years. Lease terms are negotiated
on an individual basis and contain various
terms and conditions. The lease agreements
do not impose any covenants, but leased
assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.24 Leases (Continued)

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets
and the corresponding liabilities at the date at
which the leased assets are available for use
by the Group.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are
initially measured on a present value basis.
Lease liabilities include the net present value of
the following lease payments:

° fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments), less any lease
incentives receivable

° variable lease payment that are based on
an index or a rate, initially measured
using the index or rate as at the
commencement date

° amounts expected to be payable by the
Group under residual value guarantees

° the exercise price of a purchase option if
the Group is reasonably certain to
exercise that option, and

° payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising that option

Lease payments to be made under reasonably
certain extension options are also included in
the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate
cannot be readily determined, which is
generally the case for leases in the Group, the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would
have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to
obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-
use asset in a similar economic environment
with similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate,
the Group, where possible, uses recent third-
party financing received by the individual
lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect
changes in financing conditions since third
party financing was received.
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FE M BRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.24

2.25

Leases (Continued)

Lease payments are allocated between
principal and finance cost. The finance cost is
charged to profit or loss over the lease period
so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the
liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost
comprising the following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of
lease liability

° any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date less any lease
incentives received

° any initial direct costs, and
o restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated
over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and
the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise a
purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful
life.

Payments associated with short-term leases
and all leases of low-value assets are
recognised on a straight-line basis over the
lease term as an expense in profit or loss.
Short-term leases are leases with a lease term
of 12 months or less.

Government subsidies

Subsidies from the government are recognised
at their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the subsidies will be received
and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government subsidies relating to costs are
deferred and recognised in the profit or loss
over the period necessary to match them with
the costs that they are intended to
compensate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk, cash flow and fair value interest
rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of

financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance. Risk management is

carried out by the senior management of the
Group.

(@) Market risk

() Foreign exchange risk

The Group is primarily exposed to
foreign exchange risk arising from
United States dollars (“USD”),
Renminbi (“RMB”) and New Taiwan
dollars (“TWD”).

Foreign exchange risk arises when
future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities are
denominated in a currency that is
not the entity’s functional currency.
Management periodically reviews
assets and liabilities held in
currencies other than the entity’s
functional currency to ensure that
net exposure is kept at an
acceptable level. The Group does
not enter into any arrangement to
hedge its foreign exchange rate
risk.

The Group manages its foreign
exchange risk by closely
monitoring the movement of the
foreign currency rates. In the
opinion of the directors, HK$ are
reasonably stable against the USD
under the Linked Exchange Rate
System, and accordingly, no
sensitivity analysis with respect to
the USD against HK$ is
performed.

The directors of the Company are
of the opinion that the impact on
exchange differences for TWD and
RMB are immaterial as at 31
December 2021 and 2020 due to
the low volume of transactions and
minimal amount of balances, and
accordingly no sensitivity analysis is
performed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FE M BRRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Cash flow and fair value interest
rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk
that the fair value or cash flows of
a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group’s interest
rate risk arises from bank balances
and bank loan. Other than bank
balances and bank loan, the Group
does not have significant interest-
bearing assets or liabilities.

At 31 December 2021, if interest
rates had been 100 basis points
higher/lower, with all other
variables held constant, the pre-tax
loss for the year would have been
approximately HK$826,000 (2020:
HK$764,000) lower/higher, mainly
as a result of higher/lower interest
income from bank balances.

Price risk

The Group’s exposure to price risk
arises from investments held by the
Group and classified in the
consolidated statement of financial
position either as FVOCI or at
FVTPL.

At 31 December 2021, if the fair
values of the investments classified
as financial assets at FVTPL and
FVOCI had been 10% higher/lower,
with all other variables held
constant, the Group’s pre-tax loss
and other components of equity
would have been approximately
HK$3,846,000 lower/higher (2020:
HK$5,955,000 lower/higher) and
approximately HK$165,000 higher/
lower (2020: HK$188,000 higher/
lower) respectively. Pre-tax loss for
the year would decrease/increase
as a result of gains/losses on
financial asset classified as at
FVTPL. Other components of
equity would increase/decrease as
a result of gains/losses on financial
asset classified as FVOCI.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

(©

Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis.
Credit risk arises from trade and other
receivables, restricted bank deposits and
bank balances. The carrying amounts of
these balances represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to financial assets. The credit
risk is monitored on an ongoing basis
with reference to the financial position of
the debtors, past experience and other
factors.

The Group has policies in place to
ensure that the sales of products are
made to customers with appropriate
credit histories and the Group performs
regular credit evaluations of its major
customers.

The Group applies the lifetime expected
loss provision, as permitted under
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments, for all
trade and bills receivables.

The Group considers the credit risk
characteristics of the trade and bills
receivables to measure the expected
credit loss (“ECL”). For the trade and
bills receivables, the Group has
assessed the ECL by considering
historical default rates, existing market
conditions and forward-looking
information. Based on the Group’s
assessment, ECL rate of trade and bills
receivables is close to zero. Therefore,
the loss allowance provision for these
trade and bills receivables balances was
not material.

The Group’s bank deposits and bank
balances are deposited in reputable
banks. Management does not expect
any losses from non-performance by
these banks.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management
includes maintaining sufficient cash and
marketable securities, the availability of
funding through an adequate amount of
committed credit facilities and the ability
to settle the payables of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRMET
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MBERERE)
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 HX¥ERREZEE)
(c)  Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) mEBEEEE (&)
The table below analyses the Group’s TRINAAEENSRAGER
financial liabilities into relevant maturity BHIEBRAXKBZS O
groupings based on the remaining period A& er B IR FRAE RE 2 AR 48
at the date of the statement of financial BIETHDT - EXRAEED
position to the contractual maturity date. SHEAEBHNRUBHNREN
The amounts disclosed in the table are E-HRFBEZEYAEEKN
the contractual undiscounted cash flows. HA2ME A NEIHAR & R EL E R
Balances due within 12 months equal HAERES -
their carrying balances, as the impact of
discounting is not significant.
Between  Between
lessthan 1and2 2and5 Over
1 year years years 5 years Total
1E 0l 1ZE2F  2E55  5FLE @t
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$O000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAEL FHBT FHET FHET THET
At 31 December 2021 RZ-ZZT=-—f
+=B=+—-H
Trade payables e R 3N 62,815 - - — 62,815
Other payables Hfth B AT X 11,773 - - - 11,773
Bank loan BITER 836 836 2,509 2,370 6,551
Lease liabilities HEARE 4,013 1,851 - - 5,864
79,437 2,687 2,509 2,370 87,003
At 31 December 2020 R=-ZE=-EF
t=ZA=+-H
Trade payables &5 BR 3K 44,885 - - - 44,885
Other payables H ity B 3K 9,403 - - - 9,403
Lease liabilities HEAE 4,905 7,591 - - 12,49
59,193 7,591 — - 66,784
3.2 Capital management 32 EBEXER

The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.2

3.3

Capital management (Continued)

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the
debt-to-asset ratio. The ratio is calculated as
total debt divided by total assets. Total debt is
calculated as interest-bearing borrowings. In
order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares and sell
assets to reduce debit.

During the year, the Group’s strategy, which
remained unchanged from prior year, was to
maintain a net cash position. As at 31
December 2021, the Group has a net cash
position and the aggregate balances of
unrestricted bank deposits, and cash and cash
equivalents exceeded the total interest-bearing
debt by HK$82,624,000 (2020:
HK$76,403,000).

Fair value estimation

Financial instruments carried at fair value are
analysed by valuation method. The different
levels have been defined as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities
(level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the
assets or liabilities, either directly (that is,
as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices) (level 2).

° Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are
not based on observable market data
(that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
assets, including cash and cash equivalents
and trade, bills and other receivables; and the
Group’s financial liabilities, including bank loan,
trade and other payables approximate their fair
values due to their short maturities.
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R ﬁ%ﬁﬂ‘%%@%ﬁ%ﬁ
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FE M BRRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HXRKBER(E)

(Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AREEMLE(E)
The nominal values less any estimated credit HEBMAIR—FreREERSE
adjustments for financial assets and liabilities BEmME BEREAGETEEAERE
with a maturity of less than one year are DREEHEAREBEMES - LEE
assumed to approximate their fair values. The BEMmME SREEBECAREBED
fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure EASEREUSRTATESZ
purposes is estimated by discounting the BTG ERZERRENRE A=
future contractual cash flows at the current WRAEE -
market interest rate that is available to the
Group for similar financial instruments.
The following table presents the carrying value TRIM=(ARANREGEE T BHRR
of financial instruments measured at fair value REAREBEFEZEMIARR
at the consolidated statement of financial (ERC

position across the three levels.

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2021
R-B--F+-A=+-HZAAEEIE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

2B #2E 3B - H
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TR TR TR

Recurring fair value measurements EE# A AEEFE

Financial asset at FVTPL BRAnBEFABREL
SREE
— Unlisted preferred shares - FLETELR - - 38,461 38,461
Financial asset at FVOCI BRARBEFTAEM
2EUBEZEBEE
— Unlisted equity securities - EEmREZES - - 1,652 1,652

- - 40,113 40,113

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2020
RZE-ZEF+-A=+—-HZRABEEHZ
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E1E vl £3E B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHEL TET FHEL FHEL

Recurring fair value measurements ZE 4 A ABEE

Financial asset at FVTPL BRABEFARGZ
— Unlisted preferred shares - FLETmEER - - 59,547 59,547
Financial asset at FVOCI BRABETALM
ARG CERMEE
— Unlisted equity securities - EETREZES - - 1,876 1,876
- - 61,423 61,423
There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 FARFEIE  FEHEFIE 2 M E
and 3 during the year (2020: Nil). EHRE(ZTE_TF /)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (level 3)

The following table presents the changes in
level 3 instruments for the years ended 31

GeMBRRME

3 BMHERERHE)

33 QDABEME(A)

BHEATTBEBAZBHRL
15 8 (E3E)

TRERBE_ZS_—FR_ZT—
;ﬁif:ﬁ —t+—HIEFEEIET

December 2021 and 2020: BEv#F:
Unlisted Unlisted
preferred equity
shares securities Total
EET FETH
BER B #E 3% 3 45t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
F& T FET FET
Balance at R-ZZE-TF
1 January 2020 —B—B2z#&& 57,538 2,673 60,211
Fair value changes PE M2 WS
recognised in other Rz AREBE
comprehensive income & H) — (797) (797)
Fair value changes REAM (F518)
recognised in other W FREER 2
(losses)/gains, net NABEEEZES 2,009 — 2,009
Balance at R-ZZE-ZTHF
31 December 2020 and +=A=+—H
1 January 2021 E—_E=-—&
—A— Bz 59,547 1,876 61,423
Fair value changes REMEE K
recognised in other BRZAAEE
comprehensive income e - (224) (224)
Fair value changes REM(EE)
recognised in other W FHEBRZ
(losses)/gains, net NREEEE (21,086) — (21,086)
Balance at R-ZZB=-—F
31 December 2021 +=A=+—8
2 iE e 38,461 1,652 40,113

BxEXxEHERAT 2021 £33
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMEHRKKE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (level 3) (Continued)

The following table summarises the valuation
techniques used and the quantitative
information about the significant unobservable
inputs used in level 3 fair value

measurements:

Significant
Description Valuation technique unobservable inputs
B fh {8 5 i

EXFURRAARE

MR EREEE)

D ABEEMLE ()

BHEATTBEBAZBHRL
EEE (F3E) (&)

TREGERFIE A £ BIE BA A
AR TS BT BB AR A AR 8 A
BENTERAN

Value  Relationship of unobservable inputs to fair value

BE FIERRBARBALABENBE

(a) Preferred shares issued by ~ 2021: Market comparable companies and  Volatility
a private entity equity value allocation with
option-pricing method (2020: same)

—RAECERTZEER —E--F NHULBRARRERSE KE
EEESERERE
(Z2ZZF:R)

(b) Ordinary shares issued by a  Discounted cash flow method (2020: WACC
private entity same)

-ARELERTZERAR BRRERNAECEREBR)  METHERRL

Valuations of the above financial assets held
by the Group as at the end of the reporting
period were performed by independent
valuers.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of financial statements requires the
use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will
seldom equal the actual results. Management also
needs to exercise judgement in applying the
Group’s accounting policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated.
They are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that
may have a financial impact on the entity and that
are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Perfect Optronics Limited Annual Report 2021

50.30% 10% increase/(decrease) in the volatility would

(2020: 53.21%) result in (decrease)/increase in fair value by

approximately (HK$129,000)/HK$185,000
(2000: (HK$344,000/HKS157,000)
50.30% EEEM/ (RD)10% B2 AL BEED)/

(Z2-%%: #1704 (129,000% ) /185,000% T (ZF =

5321%) B4 : (344,000 7T) /157,000 TT)

16.40% 10% increase/(decrease) in WACC would result in

(2020: 15.42%) (decrease)/increase in fair value by

approximately (HK$196,000)/HK$252,000
(2020: (HK$216,000)/HKS270,000)
16.40% METHERMAEM/ (BH)10% B2 R

(ZZz%F: BB (5ib) /504 (196,000% ) /252,000

15.42%)  BIL(ZEZTF (2160008 7T) /270,000

ATL)
AEBERNHRERRAFNIA LS E
BEMNMBEHRB L GEMET -

BA & = 5t fh 5F K& M

REP MR ALT A B
2BE ARAARIESZNER
BR-BEEENFCERAAKEN
ST IR B 1E L H I -

{51 B2 20 BF 7 55 4 5F o 5 B fi Bt
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates

@)

(b)

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less estimated selling
expenses. These estimates are based on
the current market condition and the
historical experience of selling products
of similar nature. It could change
significantly as a result of changes in
consumer preferences and competitor
actions in response to severe industry
cycles. Management reassesses these
estimations by each date of the
statement of financial position to ensure
inventories are shown at the lower of
cost and net realisable value.

Estimation of the fair value of certain
financial assets

The fair value of financial instruments
that are not traded in an active market is
determined by using valuation
techniques. The Group uses its
judgement to select a variety of methods
and makes assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at
the end of each reporting period.

4.2 Critical accounting judgements

@)

(b)

Impairment of financial assets

The loss allowances for financial assets
are based on assumptions about risk of
default and expected loss rates. The
Group uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to
the impairment calculation, based on the
Group’s past history, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking
estimates at the end of each reporting
period.

Determination of the lease term

In determining the lease term,
management considers all facts and
circumstances that create an economic
incentive to exercise an extension option,
or not exercise a termination option.
Extension options (or periods after
termination options) are only included in
the lease term if the lease is reasonably
certain to be extended (or not
terminated).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FE M BRRME

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision-maker,
for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment focuses on the revenue analysis by
products.

Other than the Group’s result and financial position
as a whole, no other discrete financial information is
provided for the assessment of different business
activities. Accordingly, only entity-wide disclosures,
major customers and geographic information are
presented.

(@)  The Group’s revenues from its major products
for the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020 are as follows:

7 RPE R

MARFES (AERBEEARE) 2MU
ETERIELTENERBEENZER
5 H WA DT -

BT ASBREBRBEEMBARIN I
BT L H A IF L] M%éﬂ%f’hﬂﬁxlﬁ?

EEL VTR I bk

@E:g _ﬁE&—?—7ﬁE+_
A=+—RLFE AEHEKXBH
TE2EMZWARIIAT

2021 2020
— % == qi — 7 J— E'E
HK$’000 HK$ OOO
T % T FHEIT

Thin film transistor liquid crystal & & & & 82 &% ~
display panels and modules R & 5 48 431,770 138,466
Polarisers 1R YR 44,865 35,794
Health-related products fi 5z 4R B EE 19,162 4,507
Electronic signage BETFESER 15,266 11,774
Integrated circuits £ K E K 7,428 1,196
Optics products Y EE M 3,171 6,353
Others H b 6,688 8,883
528,350 206,973

(b)  Segment revenue by customers’ geographical
location

The amount of the Group’s revenue from
external customers by locations where the
Group’s products are delivered to its
customers is shown in the table below.

) HEPHMEMES DD IMKA

AEEREAEP XM EmMIO MBI
DML EFPEERASTER
TRIIR

2021 2020
— g == qE — ? — E'E

HK$’000 HK$ ooo

T &t FHE T

Hong Kong BB 410,716 157,261
The PRC e 105,940 42,764
Taiwan =0 11,694 6,948
528,350 206,973
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

() Revenues from major customers who have
individually contributed 10% or more of the
total revenue of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021 are disclosed as follows:

GeMBRRME

5 22EMER(E)

(©

Customer A ZFEA

BHE - -_—F+-_A=+—HI1t
FE RAFTEEF(ZSEAEER
W A10% e A )RR AT E DT ¢

2021 2020
—=E- —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FE T

117,272 31,589

(d)  An analysis of the Group’s non-current assets
(other than financial assets and deferred

(d)

REEUE AKREZIRPEE
(TEREREEMNEEMSRE

optics products and related electronic components,
and other products to external parties.

income tax assets) by location of assets is as E)DONET
follows:
Hong Kong The PRC Taiwan Total
&8 A El =) ] et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FE T FAT FAT
As at 31 December R-ZEZ—F
2021 +=A
=t+—8:
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and Y- BE &
equipment B — 171 88 259
Intangible assets mEEE 4,200 1,122 — 5,322
Right-of-use assets TREEE 3,100 2,406 59 5,565
7,300 3,699 147 11,146
As at 31 December R-ZEBE-EHF
2020 +=A
=+—H8:
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and mE - WE K&
equipment & 81 644 110 835
Intangible assets mEEE 4,200 1,122 — 5,322
Right-of-use assets TRAEEE 2,806 6,932 129 9,867
7,087 8,698 239 16,024
6 REVENUE 6 WA
Revenue represents the sales of display products, WANEERTNER KEERLEBS

FEEMEMERTIRALABERA -

BEXEARLDA 2021 F£F
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ey

7

B 7% 3R R Bt 5

OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS, NET 7

HK$’000
FER

Hi (B18) W FE

2021
—E-—fF

2020
—E-TF

—= =

HK$’000
TAET

Fair value changes in financial EARBETAEBEGEZSR
asset at FVTPL BEAAEBEEEY (21,086) 2,009

Gain on early termination of lease 12 F & 1FH & W% 1,246 —
Gain on lease modification HEBT W= 165 —
Government subsidies X I 485 B 303 1,349
Net exchange losses & 5 B 18 5 (115) (110)
Loss on disposal of property, TLEYE BERIHEZ
plant and equipment (g} (4) -
Others H fth 5 8
(19,486) 3,256
8 EXPENSES BY NATURE 8 BHMEBESTWEHR
Cost of sales, distribution and selling expenses, HEKRAKA DHEEEERE —MRITH

X R RRAZERIOTET

general and administrative expenses and research
and development expenses are analysed as follows:

2021 2020
—B=-—F —_T_F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Cost of inventories sold (Note 20) #4% 77 & Ak A8 (Ff 5£20) 505,869 198,138
Processing and sub-contracting A1 T & 4M 6 & F
expenses 415 1,695
Transportation expenses ERER 3,150 1,370
Write back of provision for PREFEREHRE (FI:E20)
obsolete inventories (Note 20) (1,499) (14,832)
Auditor’s remuneration % HAD B &
— Audit services — FETR 850 800
— Non-audit services — FEFFTRTHG 78 I
Employee benefit expenses & 8 & F 32 (F529)
(Note 9) 25,331 23,011
Depreciation of property, plant and % - = X & BT &
equipment (Note 14) (P 5E14) 667 979
Depreciation of right-of-use assets {# FA# & E I & (M :£15)
(Note 15) 4,751 5,565

Lease expenses not included in  WIHFATREGFEHEZ
the measurement of lease HER S (HM&15)
liabilities (Note 15) 806 426
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GeMBRRME

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 9 EETEFAMX
2021 2020
—E- & —E-FTHF
HK$°000 HK$’000
T#& T FE T
Short-term employee benefits EEHESEMN(MiE@))
(Note (a)) 24,446 23,383
Post-employment benefits 1B B R IK1& F
— defined contribution plans — EREHREE 885 528
Total employee benefit expenses, & B @ FI5 X 44 %8 © B
including directors’ ExWe
remuneration 25,331 23,911
Notes: B 5
(@) For the year ended 31 December 2021, short-term employee (@) BE-T-—F+-A=+—HLEFE &8
benefits include salary, wages, bonus paid to employees, EERFEEINTEES S TE RBek
and insurance premium for staff insurance schemes. ETRIBFENRE -
(b) Post-employment benefits — defined contribution plans (b) B BRAREN — EREMEKEE
No forfeited contributions for the Group is available to 7R 55 B R A 408 WO 41 KA LA B R 2R R B
reduce the contribution payment in the future years. B WA SRR ZER -
Contributions to schemes vest immediately.
() Five highest paid individuals () AEmEmH AT

The five individuals whose remuneration were the highest in
the Group for the year include four directors (2020: three)
whose remuneration are reflected in the analysis shown in
Note 34. The emoluments payable to the remaining one
(2020: two) individual during the year are as follows:

FAFREERIERSHFMALBENRES
(Z2=FF: =) EHHIRBRRKEI4PT
HOOMEF - FRAENBT —R(ZT_F
FoMB)ALZHMESWOT

2020
—E-EF
HK$’000
F BT

Basic salaries, staff quarter expenses, EAT&E - BEIE&MX - Ef
other allowances and benefits in kind 38 & & ¥ 1& 7 1,644 2,064
Discretionary bonuses BB TEAT 56 144
Contribution to pension scheme BAIRET B R 18 36
1,718 2,244

The number of highest paid non-director individuals whose
remunerations for the year fell within the following bands:

AEEHMNFUATHENFEFZSH M
ALTHAENT :

2021 2020
—B-—-F —T-TF

W< & E -
Z 8 7L 21,000,000/ 7T
1,500,001% 7T 22,000,000 7T

Emolument bands:
HK$nil to HK$1,000,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000

- 1
1 1

For the year ended 31 December 2021, no remuneration
(2020: Nil) was paid by the Group to the directors or the
five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office, and no arrangement under which a director or the
five highest paid individuals waived or agreed to waive any
of the remuneration.

BHE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE A%
ERAERFKAETEH AT AT
B EREMARSEBE N BEREE
EAMEESTEERTHALHRELRE
MEFHOLH(CE_ZF &) -

B=xXEARKRLT 2021 F3]
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REMKRERMEE
10 FINANCE COSTS, NET 10 I ERZFEEHE
2021 2020
—E-—F —EFF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#&x FET
Finance income B 75 A
Interest income on bank deposits. RITFHZMEMA 36 o, 31
Finance costs B 7% & R
Interest expenses on: NTEBEELMNERY
Bank loan IRITER (27) -
Lease liabilities (Note 15) HE & & (M &E15) (469) 678)
. (%) (678) _
Finance costs, net BB R FRHE (460) (647)
11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) 11 FiE%ipx, (&)

Taxation on profits has been calculated on the
estimated assessable profits for the year at the

F R A 2 B IR B 1R il 5T R SR K DA AR
SELEMENBE RBTERNH

applicable rates of taxation prevailing in the £ BERIBAEBRBED - 2R RIS FI R
countries/places in which the Group operates, g
based on existing legislation, interpretations and
practices in respect thereof.
The amount of income tax charged/(credited) to the REre2EBERINE 7 (GEA) BFTEH
consolidated statement of comprehensive income & EIE
represents:
2021 2020
—B=-—F —_T_EF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FE T FAT
Current income tax EHMEN
— Adjustments in respect of — HRTFENFAE
prior years - (6)
Deferred income tax EIEFTISHE
— Origination and reversal of —EXRBHERESR
temporary differences (P 5E26)
(Note 26) 79 (11)
Income tax expense/(credit) Frisiifx (%) 79 (17)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRMET
INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) 11 FiIBHEX(ER)(E)
(Continued)
The income tax on the Group’s loss before income REBFLER TSR ET B FT 1S 75 B (5 A
tax differs from the theoretical amount that would AEEBRANGEREENERSBEME
arise using the tax rate applicable to the Group as 2-ABHAT:
follows:
2021 2020
—EB-—fF —E_TF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FE T FAET
Loss before income tax BRETISFL R & 18 (18,547)
Tax calculated at Hong Kong tax 1% & T £16.5% T E 0
rate of 16.5% (2020; 16.5%) B(ZE-T4%  16.5%) (7,426) (3,060)
Tax effects of: AT &IEMRE T E -
— Different taxation rate in — HihRAEBER TR
other jurisdictions o & 197 233
— Income not subject to tax — BAGF KA (30) (552)
— Expenses not deductible for ~ — ANAIYEHIFE A & 4Y
tax purposes & 3,671 7
— Utilisation of previously — FRAEAIEERL
unrecognised tax losses TIEE 18 - (912)
— Tax losses for which no — WEBREEMREH
deferred income tax asset BEMBIERIE
was recognised 3,667 4,273
Adjustments in respect of prior  #i8E FE & A XK
years — (6)
Income tax expense/(credit) FisRiMs (HE%) 79 (17)
BASIC AND DILUTED LOSS PER 12 BREAREEER

SHARE

Basic loss per share for the year is calculated by
dividing the loss attributable to equity holders of the
Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

4 79 ) B A R B YRR A AR
ABE A AR ER 3 4 PO B 58 17 BB AR 2 B
BT Y -

2021 2020
—EC-—F —_T_FF

Loss attributable to equity holders 7R R Fl#E sk A A B B8

of the Company (HK$’000) (F%&mT) (43,857) (16,883)
Weighted average number of EBITEBR 2N T

ordinary shares in issue (F8)

(thousands) 1,483,687 1,483,687
Basic and diluted loss per share &M E K K& # & k18

(HK cents per share) (BB (2.96) (1.14)

For the purpose of determining the diluted loss per
share amount, no adjustment has been made to the
basic loss per share amount for the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020 as the Group had no
potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during
these years.

NETEREEEFEEMNS  ARAEER
BHEzE_2-_—Fk=-_Z2-_Z2F+ A
—tBIFEVETABBTEEES
TRER BUYERZEFEZINTRE
KAEBELHFHE-

BEXEARLDA 2021 F£F
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FE M BRRME

13

The following

is a

SUBSIDIARIES

December 2021 and 2020:

Name

£8

Place of incorporation/
establishment and kind
of legal entity

HRAY/ HIBER
ERERER

list of subsidiaries at 31

Principal activities and
place of operation

TEEBREEDY

13 B2

NoT——
HeaktE A

=

F

M=
G

Proportion of

Particulars of ordinary  Proportion of
issued share shares directly ordinary
capital/paid up held by the shares held by
capital Company (%) the Group (%)
AAREE

BRITRSG/ BEZEER AEEEEZ
BARARE ol BERLA

(%) (%)

Rightone Resources Limited
Rightone Resources Limited

Shinwa Technology Limited
HENRBRLA
Sinosky Resources Limited
Sinosky Resources Limited
Dexing Investment Limited
Dexing Investment Limited
Yuan Tai Investment Limited

EeREABERAA

Perfect Display Limited

EXBTRERAA

Perfect Sky Technology
Limited

BXAHRERAA

K-clean Limited
K-clean Limited
Yuan Mei Xin Technology

(Shenzhen) Company
Limited

BXERE(RINERRE

Yuan Tian Technology
(Shenzhen) Company
Limited

BXRBH RN BRAT

144

British Virgin Islands
(“BVI"), limited
liability company

ERRAHE ((EER
REBIERAR

BVI, limited liability
company

RERABEERAA
BV, limited liability
company
ERRAHBERD
BVI, limited liability
company
EERANEERAA
Samoa, limited liability
company

BEZERAT

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

EEERAA

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

EEERRQA

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

EEERAA

The PRC, limited
liability company

FEARATF

The PRC, limited
liability company

FEAERAT

Investment holding

o

SAER

Holding of patents
BRAEEN
Investment holding
REZR
Investment holding
RARR
Investment holding

REZR

Trading of display panels
and related electronic
components
in Hong Kong

F?%%E%T@W&@
BETHH

Electronic product
application
development
in Hong Kong

REBENETERER
ok

Dormant
TEEH

Wholesaling, import and
export of display
panels and related
electronic components
and provision of
technical support and
related services in the
PRC

R B F B R E R RUE
BEFHHOME £
AREA - URERR
i & REBR%

Research and
development, provision
of technical support
and related services in
the PRC

R B E R R R
EE

Perfect Optronics Limited Annual Report 2021

100

10,000 ordinary 100
shares at no par
value

10,0008 EE (&
LBk

1 ordinary share at - 100
no par value

REEESRR

1 ordinary share at - 100
no par value

TRERELBR

1 ordinary share at - 100
no par value

TRERELBR

100 ordinary shares - 100
of USD1 each

100 B REEIE
T B

38,000,000 ordinary - 100

shares

38,000,0008% & & B

1 ordinary share - 100

100

USD1,000,000 - 100

1,000,000% 7T
100

USD100,000 -

100,000% 7T

Proportion of

ordinary  Proportion of

shares directly ordinary

held by the shares held by

Company (%) the Group (%)
AAREE

BEZEER AEEEEZ

ol BERLA

(%) (%)

2020 2020

“T-TF  ZTCZF

100 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100



13
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REMBHRRKE

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Name

£8

Place of incorporation/
establishment and kind
of legal entity

EMAY/ HIBER
EREBRER

Principal activities and
place of operation

TREBRGEH

13 BT (&)

Proportion of

Particulars of ordinary
issued share shares directly
capital/paid up held by the
capital Company (%)
AR EE

BRTRE/ BEZEBR
BRRAFE LBl
(%)

Yuan Tai Electronics Company
Limited

REEFRHBRAA
Perfect Shiny Technology
Limited

ERHRERAA

Perfect Shiny Technology (HK)
Limited

ERHR(FR)BRAT

Perfect Shiny Technology
(Shenzhen) Limited

ERHH ORI BRAT

Skyteam Resources Limited
Skyteam Resources Limited
Naruto Technology Limited
BAMZERLA

Perinnova Limited
Perinnova Limited
Perfect Intelligent Technology

Limited

EXERMRERRE

Fayeking Technology Limited

RYBRERDA

Perfect Health Holdings
Limited
EXRRARERAR

K-clean (Macau) Limited

K-clean (Macau) Limited

Taiwan, limited liability
company

BEARAE

Samoa, limited liability
company

BEZARAT

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

EBERAA

The PRC, limited
liability company

FEERRAT

BVI, limited liability
company

EERAHERRAA
Hong Kong, limited
liability company

BEERDA

BVI, limited liability
company

ARERBEEERAA

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

EEERAA

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

EEERAA

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

ERERAA

Macau, limited liability
company
BRBERAR

Not yet commenced
business

AERER

Investment holding
REER

Design, development and
sales of applied
optics-related products
in Hong Kong

EEER HERHE
ERXEER

Sales, research and
development of optics-
related products in the

PRC
IR S R Bt 2R

H E 1)
Investment holding
REZR

Not yet commenced
business

AREEH

Investment holding
REAZRK

Design, development and
sales of digital
information signage
and electronic shelf
display products in
Hong Kong

REBRE HER
HEABETRR
ETERBTRER

Design, development and
sales of environmental-
friendly products and
sale of health-related

products in Hong Kong

AR FAER
HERRERR
HERRABER

Dormant
TEEis

Not yet commenced
business

REREH

500,000 ordinary -
shares of TWD10
each

500,000% % i F &
MakiomH

500,000 ordinary -
shares of USD1
each

500,000 5 R E &
1ETZ EBR

1 ordinary share -

R AR

RMB1,000,000 -

AR #1,000,0007

1 ordinary share at -
no par value
TRERELBR

10,000,000 ordinary -
shares

10,000,000 % & %

10,000 ordinary -
share at no par
value

10,0008 & B
TRR

10,000 ordinary -
shares

10,000 & i

10,000 ordinary -
shares

10,000 & & Rk

1 ordinary share -
1REBR
Macau Pataca -

25,000
25,0008 9%

Proportion of
ordinary
shares held by
the Group (%)

rEEBRZ
EERLA
(%)

100

100

100

100

100

100

62

62

100

100

100

Bxx®

Proportion of

ordinary  Proportion of

shares directly ordinary

held by the shares held by

Company (%) the Group (%)
AR EE

BEZEER *EEEEZ

o EERLA

(%) (%)

2020 2020

“T-TF ZRCEF

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 62

- 62

- 100

BR A A 2021 £
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FE M BRRME

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14 PE- -BERRZE

Furniture and

Leasehold  Moulds and office Motor
improvements machinery  equipment vehicles Total
HER
HEBTHE HARKR BLZERB AE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T FET FET T
At 1 January 2020 R-ZBZEF
-A-H
Cost PR 3,055 1,854 2,335 4,583 11,827
Accumulated depreciation R E (2,207) (1,699) (1,858) (4,331) (10,095)
Net book amount EEFE 848 155 477 252 1,732
Year ended 31 December HE-ZB-F&£+=-A

2020 =+-HLEE
Opening net book amount ~ EEEFE 848 155 477 252 1,732
Currency translation MNEREER

differences 24 7 18 - 49
Additions £ - - 33 - 33
Depreciation charge FrEZ M (M)

(Note 8) (536) (65) (206) (172) (979)
Closing net book amount EREEFAE 336 97 322 80 835
At 31 December 2020 R-B-EE

+ZA=t+-H
Cost KR 3,165 1,971 2,478 4,622 12,236
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE (2,829) (1,874) 2,156) (4,542) (11,401)
Net book amount ERFE 336 97 322 80 835
Year ended 31 December HZE-ZE=--%£+=A

2021 Z+-HLEEE
Opening net book amount ~ FHEEFE 336 97 322 80 835
Currency translation NEFEES

differences 4 1 8 - 13
Additions = m - - 91 - 91
Disposals HE - - (13) - (13)
Depreciation charge FrEZ M (M)

(Note 8) (309) (69) (209) (80) (667)
Closing net book amount EREEFAE 31 29 199 - 259
At 31 December 2021 R-B--%

+=B=t+-H
Cost R 3,227 2,037 2,586 4,644 12,494
Accumulated depreciation ZETE (3,196) (2,008) (2,387) (4,644) (12,235)
Net book amount EEmFE 31 29 199 - 259
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REMBRRMET
15 LEASES 15 &
This note provides information for leases where the ULH iR AR B AERBANEEER -
Group is a lessee.
(@) Amounts recognised in the consolidated (@ REEHBERRIBIANESE

statement of financial position

2021 2020
—B=-—F —E_TF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FE& T FAT
Right-of-use assets — FRAEESE — W%
Properties
As at 1 January K—AB—H 9,867 12,292
Additions IN=T 5,629 2,709
Lease modifications HEBET (1,457) -
Early termination of leases RERILHEE (3,887) —
Depreciation expense (Note 8) #7 & 5% (Kf:¥8) (4,751) (5,565)
Exchange realignment b 2 & 158 431
As at 31 December Rt+=-—A=+—H 5,565 9,867
Lease liabilities HEEE
As at 1 January A—HA—H 11,563 13,790
Additions NE 5,629 2,709
Interest expense M BERX 469 678
Lease modifications HEBFT (1,616) -
Early termination of leases REKRIEHEE (5,133) —
Payments of principal element 3 it AN & 28 5 (4,984) (5,465)
Payments of interest element X {5 %] & 28 5 (469) (678)
Exchange realignment b 2 3 & 186 529
As at 31 December R+=-—A=+—H 5,645 11,563
Current & 3,832 4,372
Non-current ER B 1,813 7,191
5,645 11,563

B=xXEARKRLT 2021 F3]
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mEMEHRKKE

15 LEASES (Continued)

(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income

The consolidated statement of comprehensive
income shows the following amounts relating
to leases:

15

HE (&)

(b)

Depreciation charge of right-of- A EE 2 T E X &

use assets — Properties
(Note 8)
Interest expense (Note 10)
Expense relating to short-term

— W (M 5E8)

A8 5 sz (K aE10)
SRR RiEl bl

leases (Note 8) (Fft 3E8)

Expense relating to leases of KW EXEBRAFEIME
low-value assets that are not ERKEEEEMRE
shown above as short-term T8 BB =2 (FF 5E8)
leases (Note 8)

Expense relating to variable WEFAREAGENT

4%
2

(Pt 5£8)

lease payments not included
in lease liabilities (Note 8)

%8 & HR %

REEEZEUERBANESHE

GBAREREERERNTRAEM

2020

—E-FF

HK$'000

FE T

4,751 5,565
469 678
288 224
65 52
453 150

The payments of principal and interest element
of leases liabilities during the year ended 31
December 2021 were HK$4,984,000 (2020:
HK$5,465,000) and HK$469,000 (2020:
HK$678,000) respectively.

Payments for short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets were not shown separately,
but included in the line of “loss before income
tax” in respect of the net cash generated from
operation.

(c) The Group’s leasing activities and how these
are accounted for

The Group leases various offices and
warehouses. The leases run for periods up to
2 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain a wide range of
different terms and conditions. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants, but
leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

Perfect Optronics Limited Annual Report 2021

BEe_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HL
FE - YHEEEENERERFE
#8599 Bl AH4,984,0008 T (Z T —
T £ : 5,465,000/ 7T) &469,0005
TT(ZZE - : 678,000 7T) °

HHAEENEEEEEEENMR
AREBIL  EEREREEMER
FEPIBAESHAERI -

FAEENEEEBREARS R

AEREHERERLAEREE-H
ERREB2F - MERFRIEE 5
BhApEmE EheasE R
fi 3R Ko AR 44 - A0 & 15 2% 3 4B 5 H0AE

MR HEREEETAAERBRK
ZEH e
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LEASES (Continued)

(d) Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included
in a number of property leases across the
Group. These are used to maximise
operational flexibility in terms of managing the
assets used in the Group’s operations. The
majority of extension and termination options
held are exercisable only by the Group and not
by the respective lessor.

GeMBRRME

HE (&)
() SMERKLEEE

AEBERUNETHEREHEGE
MERPERE - HAREEER
SEZ2EMAEETHEERTE
EMEAE IR ABOBERERK
IFEEZRERHAKE(MESA D
HMA)ITRE -

INTANGIBLE ASSETS BEEE
Club
memberships
EFEE
HK$’000
FHE T
At 1 January 2020 R=-B-2F-H—H
Cost BN 5,322
Accumulated amortisation RET s -
Net book amount REHEE 5,322
Year ended 31 December 2020 BE-_Z-_ZHF+-A=+—HLEE
Opening net book amount H W) BR EFE 5,322
Amortisation charge #iE -
Closing net book amount HR R F A 5,322
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-_ZBF+=-A=+—H
Cost [N 5,322
Accumulated amortisation e | -
Net book amount REFE 5,322
Year ended 31 December 2021 BE-ZE-_—F+-A=+—HLEE
Opening net book amount B g R EFE 5,322
Amortisation charge g —
Closing net book amount HRERMEF A 5,322
At 31 December 2021 R=-B-_—F+=-H=+-—-8
Cost [N 5,322
Accumulated amortisation RET -
Net book amount BREFE 5,322

The Group’s intangible assets as at 31 December
2021 and 2020 comprise membership rights and are
stated at cost less any impairment losses in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policies.

AEBR-_ZE-_—FR_ZT-_FTF+_A
—t+—BENEFEEBEGHEERN  BIE
AREEH S BREN AR T AREERE
HIER ©

BxEXxEHERAT 2021 £33
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FE M BRRME

17 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 17 REHE NI A
CATEGORY
The Group holds the following financial instruments REER T —FR-_E-FTF+_A
at 31 December 2021 and 2020: —t+—HBETYEMIA:
2020
B HE$ 000
FE T
Financial assets SRMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost: %% 84 A% 7< 71] BE &9
%%ﬁlﬁ&
Trade and other receivables JE U BR 3R R E i JE IR AR 10,821 32,606
Cash and cash equivalents B MREeEEY 88,512 76,403
Financial asset at FVOCI BAnBEFTAHMEE
H&EZL:E%‘}&E 1,652 1,876
Financial asset at FVTPL BARBEEFABRZ
THEE 38,461 59,547
139,446 170,432
Financial liabilities cRBaE
Financial liabilities at amortised TE%%’&$§'JEEE’U$E§
cost: afs
Trade and other payables FEHBE X N H i JE A 3R 74,588 54,288
Bank loan RITE K 5,888 -
Lease liabilities HEBRE 5,645 11,563
86,121 65,851
18 FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE 18 EAAREBEESAREMZEHIKE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LEMEE
INCOME
The Group’s financial asset at FVOCI comprises the rEBEARBEFAEMEEARZN S
Group’s equity investment in certain ordinary shares MEEDRAEER —HELARBIMET
issued by a private company principally engaged in ETEARRNKRERE (HhZ 2 A2%MK
the research and development, manufacturing and (T _ZTF :222% ) ZRARAE
sale of separator which is a key component in EREME RERHERBE(RES
lithium battery, representing 2% (2020: 2.22%) MEEEE D) - ERAFT A ERE -
shareholding of such company. The balance is
denominated in TWD.
2021 2020
—E-_—F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FAT
Balance at 1 January R—B—Bz&t 1,876 2,673
Fair value changes recognised in 7 H b 2 [ J 7% A #E 7R
other comprehensive income NAEEEZES (224) (797)
Balance at 31 December R+t-ZA=+—RHRz#&& 1,652 1,876
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FmeMBmRME
FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE 19 BAARBEFTAERZEHME
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS E
The Group’s financial asset at FVTPL comprises the AEBZAREBEFABRZERHEER
holding of certain preferred shares in Mobvoi Inc. 5 #5 BMobvoi Inc. (I Mobvoi |) & T & 5
(“Mobvoi”), a private company principally engaged in f% + Mobvoi B ZH BT REHEFH -
the business of developing and providing voice %ﬁ%ﬂﬂﬁk‘tﬂﬁ . mi&ﬁ‘r@“ﬁZ%E
search artificial intelligent systems on mobile, smart HRAIEERGEBHILART © %4
wearable, automotive and other devices. The BUETHE BREER T — ﬂi—
balance is denominated in USD. There have been no RAEHZRENAR  FHEKRETERE K
addition to or disposal of such investment since the HE - REE K A Mobvoi i BUB A B, »
Group made the investment in January 2015. No ZIS%@E/\\Mobvom*JﬁthWJEAiWIE“‘
dividend has been received by the Group from BoR T +ZA=+—8" ' X&
Mobvoi. There were no changes in the Group’s E iMobvoi I £ IR L 0l (i 2 E#H L B
shareholding proportion in Mobvoi during the year. ERERGTE) N R/1.24% °
As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s shareholding
proportion in Mobvoi (on a fully diluted and as
converted basis) is approximately 1.24%.
2021 2020
—E-_—F —ZT=F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET T T
Balance at 1 January A—B—HBz#&8R 59,547 57,538
Fair value changes recognised in Eéﬁ{ 18) W E S
other (losses)/gains, net T2 E]"] NREBEEEH (21,086) 2,009
Balance at 31 December R+t-ZA=+—B2#&t 38,461 59,547
INVENTORIES 20 7€
2021 2020
—E-—F —EF-F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET T T
Work in progress M 58 556
Finished goods SEAK Gh 53,542 43,253
Less: Provision for obsolete W RETFEBE
inventories (10,475) (11,905)
43,125 31,904
The cost of inventories recognised as expense and ANEFRAABET I ATEERS BT
included in “cost of sales” amounted to E K7 £505,869,0008 T (ZE =T F ¢
HK$505,869,000 (2020: HK$198,138,000) for the 108,138,000 75)([91]‘ g) o
year (Note 8).
A write back of provision for obsolete inventories of AREBRENEB (FEFERLEERE)
HK$1,499,000 (2020: HK$14,832,000) was MEFTERE MEFTEBE BHAKE
recognised in the consolidated statement of GERELRMEGEEETEEE%EmMR
comprehensive income in respect of the net amount EATHKSIEERABESSRERD
of the (write back of provision)/provision for obsolete 1,499,000/ 7T (Z & — & 4 © 14,832,000
inventories, loss on obsolete inventories, utilisation BIL) R ERBEAGREGEAERER
of provision for obsolete inventories and write-down B[S ERARIET

of inventories to their net realisable value for the
year. These amounts have been included in cost of
sales in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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FE M BRRME

21 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

21

FE W B R % L th BB WK

2021 2020
—E-—F —EFF
HK$°000 HK$’000
TER T T
Trade receivables (Note (a)) JRE L2 BR 3K (BT 5% (a) ) 7,758 24,680
Bills receivables (Note (a)) FEWE I (5E(@)) - 6,144
7,758 30,824

Prepayments, deposits and AR e RE UK
other receivables 5,002 3,183
12,760 34,007

Notes:

(@) The Group generally grants credit periods of 30 to 60 days.
The ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables based on
invoice date is as follows:

B FE

(@ AREE —RIXIEB0E0RMNEE - REER
FHFENBERERERENRROTOT

2021 2020

—B-—F —TTF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FExT FHET

0-30 days 0E30K 4,235 20,997
31-60 days 31E60K 3,266 9,738
61-90 days 61290k 119 53
Over 90 days 90K LA £ 138 36
7,758 30,824

(b) As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s trade receivables of
HK$446,000 (2020: HK$442,000) were past due but not
impaired. The ageing analysis of trade receivables that were

(b) R-ZB-—F+-A=+—H AEECAH
1B R (8 B9 e Wt BR 3% 5446,000/8 T (ZE = F
F 442,000 70) © B i@ 218 R R B &9 FE UK BR

past due but not impaired is as follows: HERESTT
2021 2020
—B-—-F —TTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER & T
Amounts past due 1 B FRIE
1-30 days 1230k 308 376
31-60 days 31E60K 76 30
61-90 days 61E90K 58 36
Over 90 days 90K M £ 4 -
446 442
For these past due trade receivables, the Group has MZECAHERER  AEECEREER

assessed the expected credit losses by considering
historical default rates, existing market conditions and
forward-looking information. Based on the assessment, ECL
rate of trade receivables is close to zero. Therefore, the
loss allowance provision for these trade receivables
balances was not material.

Perfect Optronics Limited Annual Report 2021

FERE ERITORRATREER - FEED
EEER - RIEBEAME - BURRFOEBRE
EBEBXEOT AR RZEERIEREHRE
HEBEBELTERK -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GeMBRRME

21 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21 BEWERR R HAMEWRK(E)
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued) Bt : (48)
() The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other () 7R 5 [ FE U BR R I EL fh FE R 2 BR TE B R DA
receivables are denominated in the following currencies: THEEE:
2021 2020
—E-—F —E_FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT F BT
HK$ BT 2,796 1,889
usD E 6,948 28,052
RMB AR 1,733 3,916
TWD Ak 1,283 150
12,760 34,007
(d) The fair values of trade and other receivables approximate (d) EREFRREMERRZ AR BEEEER
their carrying amounts. BRE-
22 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 22 HMERKRETEEY

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER T T

Bank deposits, bank balances and $E177F 5« SRITA S NIR S

cash 88,512 76,403
The carrying amounts of the Group’s total bank REBRITHER RITERERBR S 2RE
deposits, bank balances and cash are denominated BEUATIEEGE:

in the following currencies:

2020
—E-FF

HK$'000

FE T

HK$ BT 8,135 7,478
usD ETT 68,952 59,560
RMB AR # 9,006 8,805
TWD =k 2,419 560
88,512 76,403

BEXEXEHERAR 2021 £ 153
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FE M BRRME

23 SHARE CAPITAL 23 KA
31 December 2021 and 2020
—E-_-FR-ZZE-ZEF+=A
=+—H
Number of shares Amount
B EE oL
(thousands) HK$’000
(FR%) FHET
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each & % & 3@ §%0.0178 7T 5,000,000 50,000
Number of Ordinary shares
shares of HK$0.01 each
BEREBR
il §E| 0.01%8 T
HK$’000
TFET
Issued and fully paid: 2% 'BUE&E
At 1 January 2020, 31 December E’\_ T-_FTF—H—H"
2020, 1 January 2021 and —-= _ﬁi‘i' A
31 December 2021 =+—8" :;:—i
‘f‘_ﬂ =+— El 1,483,687,151 14,837
There were no movements in the Company’s share FRARARABETANESH (=T
capital during the year (2020: Nil). THEE) e
24 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 24 BMNRARHMENR
2021 2020
— - —T-FTHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T & T FHE T
Trade payables (Note (a)) FE A BR 3R (M 5% (a)) 62,815 44,885
Deposits received from customers WE & F iz & 9,864 7,163
Accruals and other payables JE 5T 30 IE & E M FE R 5,679 5,205
78,358 57,253
Notes: P EE -
(@) The ageing analysis of trade payables based on invoice date (@) BEZFZAHTENEMEROERR S TN
is as follows: T~
2020
ZEZTF
HK$'000
FAT
0-30 days 0E30K 35,819 35,957
31-60 days 31260K 26,995 8,905
61-90 days 61E90K 1 23
62,815 44,885
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24 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 24

25

(Continued)

GeMBRRME

FE A3 BR R B H b FE S K ()

Notes: (Continued) Bt : (48)
(b) The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other (b) AEEBNE S EWHIE R EAMEMREAT
payables are denominated in the following currencies: T EEEE -
2020
—ECEF
HK$'000
F T
HK$ BT 3,094 3,447
usD eV 67,252 50,952
RMB AR 3,328 2,487
TWD ek 4,684 367
78,358 57,253
() The carrying amounts of trade and other payables () ENEREEMENRZEmERZLARE
approximate their fair values. BHEE -
BANK LOAN 25 RITEX
2021 2020
— B —ZT-FTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Current portion & 8 E o 683 —
Non-current portion EE BE H 5,205 —
5,888 -

At 31 December, the Group’s bank loan was
repayable as follows:

R+—A=Z+—H AEERTERNE
BEBHRAT

2021 2020
—E-— —E-FHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F# T FAE T

Within 1 year 1F AR
Between 1 and 2 years 1524
Between 2 and 5 years 2E54F
Over 5 years 5F LA F

683 -
702 -
2,226 -
2,277 -

5,888 -

The Group’s bank loan was obtained under the
SME Financing Guarantee Scheme launched by the
Government of HKSAR, mature until 2029. The
carrying amount of the bank loan was denominated
in HK$ and carried at a floating interest rate of
2.75% per annum.

AEENRITERDREBEEB T RBUTHE
HE RN EERG RS HRE—
Z_NEF - ZRTEFNEHRERAETR
B RIFEBFNE276EFE -

BxXEARAF 2021 FR
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)

25

26

27

B 7% 3R R Bt 5

BANK LOAN (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank loan as
at 31 December 2021 approximated their fair values
since the interest payable on those bank loan is
close to current market rates.

The Group’s bank loan is secured by HKMC
Insurance Limited and personal guarantee from Mr.
Cheng Wai Tak, a substantial shareholder of the
Company.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s total
unutilised banking facilities restricted for trade
finance purposes amounted to approximately
HK$15,600,000.

Details of the Group’s exposure to risks arising from
bank loan is set out in Note 3.1.

DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS

The movements in deferred income tax assets in
respect of accelerated tax depreciation during the
year are as follows:

25

26

RITER(AE)

R=ZF=—FT=A=+—H KREIR
T8 H’]ﬁﬁﬁfﬁéﬁﬁ’&ﬁ{ﬁfﬁﬁ AR
ZERITE ) B F BT E AT 5 A

o

\
2

$

AEBERIRTT
A RAR TI%H&%%B
RIEA -

REEFBHERRERA
EREENEALE

RZFZ—F+ZA=+—H AKEHR
RAEESBANRBANRITEENS
15,600,000/ 7T ©

AEEEBENRITERR RN FBHNMH
8.1 °
EEFFEHERE

SR N B AN AR B IR AT & 5 B MR AT AT IS
REEZPHWT

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Beginning of the year F4 171 155
(Charged)/credited to the (ka) fTAGEZEK
consolidated statement of @R (HEE11)
comprehensive income
Exchange realignment bE 3 & 2
End of the year FR 94 171
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax EEFTS B A EDHBEERLEE M
loss carry-forwards to the extent that the realisation ﬁ?’é R MERN BRI IER & B R K E

of the related tax benefit through future taxable
profits is probable. As at 31 December 2021, the
Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets
of HK$38,078,000 (2020: HK$34,411,000) in respect
of tax losses of certain PRC subsidiaries of
HK$7,436,000 (2020: HK$3,429,000), which will
expire in five years, and tax loss of certain Hong
Kong subsidiaries of HK$228,524,000 (2020:
HK$207,537,000) which will not expire under current
tax legislation.

DIVIDENDS

The Board did not declare any dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBHRRKE

28 CASH FLOW INFORMATION 28

(@) Reconciliation of loss before income tax to
cash generated from operations

BEREEHR

BRASHABEREERSREZ

2021 2020
—E-—F ZEZTHF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FEx FAT
Loss before income tax b BT 15 4 Bl B 18 (45,007) (18,547)
Adjustments for: AT RIEFE
— Depreciation of property, — ME - WENREE
plant and equipment ¥ & (Ke7E8)
(Note 8) 667 979
— Depreciation of right-of- — FRAREENE
use assets (Note 8) (P #8) 4,751 5,565
— Write back of provision for — — FRE 17 & {5 & 0
obsolete inventories (P 5£8)
(Note 8) (1,499) (14,832)
— Finance income (Note 10)  — BF &g A (Fff 5E10) (36) (31)
— Finance costs (Note 10) — B &M K E10) 496 678
— Fair value changes on — BRAanBEFA
financial asset at FVTPL BamemEE
(Note 7) ZANEEEY
(B 5E7) 21,086 (2,009)
— Gain on early termination ~ — IRE& LA E IS
of leases (Note 7) (B 3E7) (1,246) -
— Gain on lease modification —— FAE BT WHE
(Note 7) (P 5E7) (165) -
— Loss on disposal of - HEME - -HER
property, plant and REMNEE
equipment (Note 7) (F3E7) 4 —
Operating loss before changes %8 & & & &) i (&£ &
in working capital [=gi=! (20,949) (28,197)
Changes in working capital LBEEEE
— Inventories - FE (9,722) 15,373
— Trade and other — AR R E M
receivables FE R 21,247 (12,809)
— Trade and other payables — FEfTEEZ R H b
J& 1~ 5% 21,105 37,739
Cash generated from KEMBRE
operations 11,681 12,106

B=xXEARKRLT 2021 F3]
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REMBRERMT
28 CASH FLOW INFORMATION 28 HEeEREEN (&)
(Continued)
(b)  Reconciliation of liabilities arising from b) BETHFELEBZHE
financing activities
Bank loan  Lease liabilities Total
RITER HE Fey
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FH T FATT
As at 1 January 2020 R-ZT-2F—-HA—H - 13,790 13,790
Cash flows B
— Payments of principal - XfHEEELRS
element of lease liabilities B - (5,465) (5,465)
— Payments of interest - INHERENE
element of lease liabilities ) - 678) 678)
Other non-cash movements Hit 3F He#E)
— Addition of lease - EAHERR
liabilities — 2,709 2,709
— Interest expenses on - HEEENTE
lease liabilities G52 - 678 678
— Exchange realignment - BRAE - 529 529
As at 31 December 2020 and R-ZZE-2F
1 January 2021 t=ZB=t-8BK
—E-_-%5-H—8 - 11,563 11,563
Cash flows B
— Payments of principal - XfHERELRS
element of lease liabilities BH - (4,984) (4,984)
— Payments of interest - XNHEBENE
element of lease liabilities ) - (469) (469)
— Proceeds from bank - RITERMBRE
loan 6,000 - 6,000
— Repayments of bank - EERITER
loan (112) - (112)
Other non-cash movements HthFEREEH
— Addition of lease - BFHERRE
liabilities - 5,629 5,629
— Lease modifications - HEEBH% - (1,616) (1,616)
— Early termination of - REAKLHEE
leases - (5,133) (5,133)
— Interest expenses on - HEEENTE
lease liabilities 53 - 469 469
— Exchange realignment - ERAE - 186 186
As at 31 December 2021 R-ZBE-Z—F
+=ZHA=+—-8H 5,888 5,645 11,533
29 COMMITMENTS 29 EIE

R-ZE-_—F+-_A=+—H AEER
BEMRYECTNERKERSBEN
EREARAHE(ZT_FTF &)

At 31 December 2021, the Group has no significant
capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the
reporting period but not recognised as liabilities
(2020: Nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has no
material contingent liabilities (2020: Nil).

ASSETS PLEDGED AS SECURITIES

The Group has charged in favour of a bank by way
of first fixed charge of certain trade receivables of
the Group as continuing security for certain banking
facilities granted to the Group. Such trade
receivables amounted to approximately
HK$5,377,000 as at 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Parent entity

The Company’s immediate and ultimate
holding company is Winful Enterprises Limited,
a company incorporated in the BVI, and
ultimately controlled by Mr. Cheng Wai Tak, a
director of the Company.

(b)  Subsidiaries

Interests in subsidiaries are set out in Note
13.

() Key management personnel compensation

Key management includes directors and senior
management. The compensation paid or
payable to key management for employee
services is shown below:

30

31

32

GeMBRRME

HAREE

R-E-—F+-_A=+—8H AEET
MEAXRAB(CE_ZTF:|)o

BEHRERNEE

AEFEEE-EEEBESRNUA—FEIRITA
XmABAEENETRKEREFIER  (E
ABAEEERMNETRITIEENFEE
Re-R_BE-_—F+-_A=+—H %k
s BE 3k 4 B5,377,0008 T (Z B - E4F :
;) o

&
ARARAMEEREERERAAA
Winful Enterprises Limited @ £ & —
FRRBEXLBESEMA IR T
FEARRESREELERKE
i

(b) HEQF
KM BB 2 SR FN M FE13 -

(c) EEEBABEHMH

TEERANERRESRSRER
E-REEMNRFCHNABNEE
EEABMFMAOT

2021 2020
—E- & ZECETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FAET

Short-term employee benefits 52 B {E 8 18 & (M 31)
(Note) 8,059 8,819

Post-employment benefits 1B B R IK1& F

— defined contribution plans — — EZ8 4t &5t 2l 84 81
8,143 8,900

Note: Include lease payments of HK$688,000 for staff

quarter for the year ended 31 December 2020.
(d) Guarantee provided by a director

The Group’s bank loan as at 31 December
2021 was secured by personal guarantee from
Mr. Cheng Wai Tak.

Wi : pREHE-_SE-_EE+=-A=+—H
IEFE R B TR & 6971 £688,0008 7T ©

(d —BEEZEHENER
AEBR _ZE-_—F+-_A=+—

BRRITESABEBELENEA
ORI

BxEXxEHERAT 2021 £33
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RE M| ERMETE
33 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 33 ARAFMBBRRAREHES
POSITION AND RESERVES )
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(a) Statement of financial position of the () A2THNEBHEMRRE
Company
As at 31 December
R+=ZA=+—8H
2021
—E_—F
Note HK$°000
B =E FET
Assets BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
_Investments in subsidiaries  HMIBARMKE 525657 525667
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables H At i W5k 302 287
Amounts due from FE UL BT 8 A BRI
subsidiaries 98,823 99,290
Cash and cash equivalents e hREeEEY 5,199 5,181
R 104,324 ... 104,758
Total assets EEHE 629,981 630,415
Equity and liabilities EZREE
Equity attributable to equity AATEZIFZTHEA
holder of the Company EiEER
Share capital [N 14,837 14,837
Reserves i 1 (b) 614,563 614,591
Totalequity mm@® 629400 629428
Liabilities a8\
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables H e 3R 581 987
Total liabilites ~ S"fE#esw o8l . 98T
Total equity and liabilities ExRkEaEEHE 629,981 630,415
The statement of financial position of the AARMPBRARER T ==
Company was approved by the Board of FZAZt+-_HEBEESTSHME T
Directors on 22 March 2022 and was signed RREZEGEZE -
on its behalf.
Chang Huan Chia Hsu Wai Man Helen
RIEE BREH
Director Director
EFE EZE
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GeMBRRME

33 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION AND RESERVES
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

7

33 AAAIMHMBRRARRFEES
B

(A&

N—

(Continued)
(b) Reserves movement of the Company (b)) EAENFEES
Share Contributed Retained
premium surplus earnings Total
B 45 % & BB ERANE st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FAET
(Note)
(B 31 )
At 1 January 2020 RZT_FF
—H—H 465,738 136,082 18,306 615,126
Loss for the year FEEE — — (535) (535)
At 31 December 2020 and R —ZT - T F
1 January 2021 +=-—A=+—H
R-_ZT——%
—H—H 465,738 136,082 12,771 614,591
Loss for the year FEEBA - - (28) (28)
At 31 December 2021 RZZTE——F
+=—A=+—H 465,738 136,082 12,743 614,563
Note: Contributed surplus of the Company represents the e : RARZBARBREARAREEIT
difference between the excess of the nominal value BOEERBEARNAR LT mET
of the Company’s shares issued and the aggregate zEEAMBRE s WE R 2 EEFE
net asset value of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant Bt 2B A -
to a reorganisation for the listing of the Company.
34 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF 34 EEZEINRESR
DIRECTORS
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (@ EBERTHAIZIZHMS

The remuneration of every director and the
chief executive is set out below:

BEFERITRABHZHFMMT -

Employer’s
REIEE contribution
allowances to retirement
and benefits Discretionary benefit
in kind bonuses schemes
Ei -1
REYMER 15 B AL
HK$°000 HK$’000
FTER FTERT
For the year ended BHE-_T-—F
31 December 2021 tZA=T-BLEHFE
Executive directors: HITEE -
Mr. Cheng Wai Tak BRELE - 4,200 175 18 4,393
Mr. Liu Ka Wing BRREE - 636 27 18 681
Mr. Tse Ka Wing FRETE - 1,440 60 18 1,518
Mr. Chang Huan Chia (Note 1) 3% 18 5 5t & (Kf&E1) 240 278 43 30 591
Independent non-executive BUHHTEF
directors:
Mr. Wong Yik Chung John BERBRE 120 - - - 120
Mr. Wong Chi Chiu ERBEE 120 - - - 120
Mr. Kan Man Wai (Note 3) 4 318 5t A& (P 3E3) 240 - - - 240
Mr. Cho Chi Kong (Note 3) B 54 (M EES) 240 - - - 240
Ms. Hsu Wai Man Helen BREHZ L ()
(Note 1) 240 - - 240
1,200 6,554 305 84 8,143
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mEMEHRKKE

34 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF 34 EEZEANRER (F)
DIRECTORS (Continued)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (@ EBRTHEARZHNE (&)
(Continued)
The remuneration of every director and the BEEEFRTHEHE 2F MO T
chief executive is set out below: (Continued) (&
Employer’s
Salaries, contribution
allowances to retirement
and benefits Discretionary benefit
Fees in kind bonuses schemes Total
BEHEK
Er =41 Bl E
e REYEF BB HE @it
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
FAET FAET FAET FAET FAET
For the year ended Bz %%
31 December 2020 +ZA=+—HItHF
Executive directors: HITEE -
Mr. Cheng Wai Tak BERELE - 4,888 350 18 5,256
Mr. Liu Ka Wing BR4rs - 636 53 18 707
Mr. Tse Ka Wing BEC YA - 1,440 120 18 1,578
Mr. Chang Huan Chia (Note 1) 54858 5t & (M &E1) 152 259 42 27 480
Independent non-executive BUHNTEE -
directors:
Mr. Wong Yik Chung John BEERLE 120 - - - 120
Mr. Wong Chi Chiu ERBEE 120 - - - 120
Mr. Li Shui Yan (Note 2) Fhn B k£ (M E2) 95 - - - 95
Mr. Kan Man Wai (Note 3) 4 3018 5t A& (P 723) 240 - - - 240
Mr. Cho Chi Kong (Note 3) B4 (MTEES) 240 - - - 240
Ms. Hsu Wai Man Helen HEg Lt (M)
(Note 1) 64 — _ _ 64
1,031 7,223 565 81 8,900
Note 1: Appointed on 25 September 2020 a1 RZZZZTFALA-t+HHBAEZT
Note 2: Resigned on 15 October 2020 e HRZZZZTF+A+THAHT
Note 3: Appointed on 1 January 2020 a3 H-ZZ-ZZTF—F—HEZME

MEEERFARRXRABRRML
M (T _FF: 8)-

No directors waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments during the year (2020: Nil).
ESERNBEARALERER

(b) Directors’ retirement benefits and termination (b)
benefits

REzEzE-_ET-_—F+_HA=+—H
HFE BERAQRE S WE
W B AT fa] 3R UK 48 ) 3k 42 L 1B 1 48 7
(ZE=ZZF |-

None of the directors of the Company
received or will receive any retirement benefits
or termination benefits for the year ended 31
December 2021 (2020: Nil).
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34 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DIRECTORS (Continued)

(©)

Consideration provided to third parties for (c)
making available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2021,
the Company does not pay consideration to
third parties for making available directors’
service (2020: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and (d)
other dealings in favour of directors,

controlled bodies corporate by and

connected entitles with such directors

As at 31 December 2021, there are no loans,
quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements in
favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and controlled entities with such
directors (2020: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions, (e)
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the years.

GeMBRRME

34 EEZRARER (F)
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Financial Summary

B R

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilites and AEBRBERA AR BRFENZENLEE &
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five EUAKLFEEBREZME (B HELEZ
financial years, as extracted from the published audited BA#&#R#&) 7 &M~ -

financial statements, is set out below.

For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=Z+-BLEFE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
=S —ToTF - NF —ZE-N\F ZT—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET FET FET FET

Results ¥iE
Revenue KA 528,350 206,973 166,607 254,072 371,518
Loss for the year FEBEBSE
attributable to: BR:
Equity holders of the PN
Company BAA (43,857) (16,883) (34,078) (55,780) (98,329)
Non-controlling interests  JEIF AR #E 5 (1,229) (1,647) (1,570) - —
(45,086) (18,530) (35,648) (65,780) (98,329)
As at 31 December
R+t=ZA=+—H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

= = 2 —T-2F —T-nF ZZT-N\F ZT—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
THET FAET FET FET FHET

Assets, liabilities and EE-EBER

non-controlling FERER

interests
Total assets BEBS 195,750 219,932 203,663 240,795 298,353
Total liabilities BERE (89,891) (68,816) (33,306) (36,830) (38,317)
Non-controlling interests ~ FF#2 A 4 % 1,451 245 (1,410) - -

107,310 151,361 168,947 203,965 260,036
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